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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
INTRODUCTION

Willis Lease Finance Corporation with its subsidiaries is a leading lassoservicenf commerciakircraft
andengines. Our principal business objective is to build value for our shareholders by acquiring commerciadradrcraft
engines and managing thasgsetsn order to provide a return on investment, primarily through lease rent and
maintenanceaserve revenues, as well as through management fees earned for managing aircraft engines owned by other
parties.As of December 31, 2016, we had a total lease portfolio consistinddaigfines and related equipmert, 1
aircraft and 5 spare parts packagith 80 lessees in3countrieswith an aggregate net book valuekdf,136.6million.
In addition to our owned portfoliosaof December 31, 2016, we managed a total lease poufdid2 engines and
related equipment for other parties. We also seeRj fime to time, to act as a leasing agent of engines for other parties.

In 2013, we launched Willis Aeronautical Servidtesa c . ( A Wi | | i sownkdsubsidigry, whase wh ol | y
primary focus is the sale of aircraft engine parts and materials througbdhisition or consignment from third parties
of aircraft and engines.

In 2016, wepurchasd, throughour wholly owned subsidiary Willis Asset Management Limiedi iMé Asset
Managemert )t he busi ness and assets ofdo)Tot allESErhguisn eb eSwnp pt chret el
and consulting business of the TES Aviation Grodjdlis Asset Management has 502 engines under management as of
December 31, 2016.

We are a Delaware corporation, incorporated in 1996. Our executive officesatesllat 773 San Marin Drive,
Suite2215, Novato, California 94998. We transact business directly and through our subsidiaries unless otherwise
indicated.

We maintain a website at www.willislease.com where our Annual Reports onlPafmQuarterly Reportsn
Form10-Q, Current Reports on For&K and all amendments to those reports are available without charge, as soon as
reasonably practicable following the time they are filed with or furnished to the SEC. You may read and copy any
materials we file with he SEC at the SECO6s public reference room at
may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Ryaralling the SEC at-800-SEG0300. The SEC
also maintains an electronic Internet site thata&ios our reports, proxies and information statements, and other
information at http://www.sec.gov.

We separate our business into two reportable segments, Equipment Leasing and Spare Parts Sales. Our business
activities by reportable segment are describeldw.

Equipment Leasing

Our strategy is to lease aircraft engines and aircraft and provide related services to a diversified group of
commerci al aircraft operators and maintenance, repair a
aircraft operators need enginesaddition to those installed on the aircraft that they operate. These spare engines are
required for various reasons including requirements that engines be inspected and repaired at regular intervals based on
equipment utilization. Furthermore, unscheduteents such as mechanical faillfederal Aviation Administration
( FAAO pirworthiness directives or manufacturecommended actions for maintenance, repair and overhaul of engines
result in the need for spare engines. Commercial aircraft operatbotlaers in the industry generally estimate that the
total number of spare engines needed is between 10% and 14% of the total number of installed engines. Today it is
estimated that there are nearh,@D0 engines installed on commercial aircraft. Accayljinwe estimate that there are
between 4,200 and 5,900 spare engines in the market, including both owned and leased spare engines.

Our engine portfolio consists of noisempliant Stage 11l commercial jet engines manufactured by CFMI,
General Electric, Rtt& Whitney, Rolls Royce and International Aero Engines. These engines generally may be used on



one or more aircraft types and are the most widely used engines in the world, powering Airbus, Boeing, McDonnell
Douglas, Bombardier and Embraer aircraft.

The Company acquires engines for its leasing portfolio in a number of Wargters into sale and lease back
transactions with operators of aircraft and providers of engine maintenance cost per hour services. We also purchase both
new and used engin#sat are subject to a lease when purchasedaradspeculative basis (i.e. without a lease attached
from manufacturers or other parties which own such engines).

Spare Parts Sales

Our wholly owned subsidiary Willis Aero primarily engages in the sale ofadtrengine parts and materials
through the acquisition or consignmefitenginesrom third parties. The launch of this business segment in
November2013 positioned our Company to provide @fdife solutions for the growing supply of surplus aircraftla
engines. With the establishment of Willis Aero, we are able to manage the full lifecycle of our lease assets, enhance the
returns on our engine portfolio and create incremental value for our shareholders.

THE WEST Il SECURITIZATION

Willis Engine Securt i zati on Tr ust | |-purpose, bankiipt&amote, IDélawaré s a speci
statutory trust that is whollgwned by us and consolidated in our financial statements. We established WEST Il in
Septembe012, when WEST Il issued and sold $390 millagregate principal amount of Cl&&¥12A Term Notes
(the ANoteso) and received $384.9 million in net procee
termination costs, together with our revolving credit facility, to pay off the pyidis Engine Securitization Trust, or
AWESTO notes totaling $435.9 million. At closing, the n
WEST to the Companyds revolving credit f ackSTnotey.Thewhi ch
|

assets and Iliabilities of WEST I wi | 158 corenmeecibl jet amcraft t he Co
engines and leases thereof secures the obligations of WEST II.
WEST |1 6s obligations umrwruesfromhtieedease and dispcsitioa of its ersgimas,v i ¢ e ©

and are secured by all of its assets, including all of its interests in its engines, its subsidiaries, restricted ctssh accoun
engine maintenance reserve accounts, all proceeds from the sale sitidisjpd engines, and all insurance proceeds.
We have not guaranteed any obligations of WEST Il and no assets outside of the WEST Il trust secure such obligations.

We are the servicer and administrative agent for WEST Il. Our annual fees for thesessaneit1.5% as
servicer and 2.0% as administrative agent of the aggregate net rents actually received by WEST Il on its engines, and
such fees are payable to us monthly. We are also paid a fee of 3.0% of the net proceeds from the sale of any engines. As
WEST Il is consolidated in our financial statements these fees eliminate in consolidation. Proceeds from engine sales
wi || be used, at WEST |1 6s election, to reduce WEST I1268

WEST Il gives us the flexibility to manage thertfolio to adapt to changes in aircraft fleets and customer
demand over time, benefiting both us and our investors. Thelzssetd securitization is well suited to our engine
leasing business as it provides long term capital in which debt maturijtés matched to our long term asset lives.

INDUSTRY BACKGROUND- THE DEMAND FOR LEASED AIRCRAFT ENGINES

Historically, commercial aircraft operators owned rather than leased their spare engines. As engines become
more powerful and technicalophisticated, they also become more expensive to acquire and maintain. In part due to
cash constraints on commercial aircraft operators and the costs associated with engine ownership, commercial aircraft
operators have become more eoshscious and nowtilize operating leases for a portion of their spare engines and are
therefore better able to manage their finances in this capiéaisive business. Engine leasing is a specialized business
that has evolved into a discrete sector of the commercial@viaiarket. Participants in this sector need access to
capital, as well as specialized technical knowledge, in order to compete successfully.



Growth in the spare engine leasing industry is dependent on two fundamental drivers:

1 the number of commercialraraft, and therefore engines, in the market; and

1 the proportion of engines that are leased, rather than owned, by commercial aircraft operators.

We believe both drivers will increase over time.

Increased number of aircraft, and therefore engines, émtlarket

We believe that the number of commercial and cargo aircraft, and hence spare engines, will increase. Boeing
estimates that there are roughB;@0 aircraft as of 2@land projects this will grow to approximatel$,800 aircraft by
2035. Aircraft equipment manufacturers have predicted such an increase in aircraft to address the rapid growth of both
passenger and cargo traffic in the Asian markets, as well as demand for new aircraft in more mature markets.

Increased lease penetration rate

Spare agines provide support for installed engines in the event of routine or other engine maintenance or

unscheduled removal. The number of spare engines needed to service any fleet is determined by many factors. These
factors include:

1 thenumberandtypeofa craft in an aircraft operatorés fleet;

T the geographic scope of such aircraft operatoréoés
1 the time an engine is eming between removals;
1 average shop visit time; and

1 the number of spare engines an aircraft operator requires in omlesuee coverage for predicted and
unscheduled removals.

We believe that commercial aircraft operators are increasingly considering their spare engines as significant
capital assets, where operating leases may be more attractive than capital leasesshiposirspare engines. Some
believe that currently as many as 35% to 40% of the spare engine market falls under the category of leased engines.
Industry analysts have forecast that the percentage of leased engines is likely to increase over tgeansxsléngine
leasing follows the growth of aircraft leasing. We believe this is due to the increasing cost of newer engines, the
anticipated modernization of the worldwide aircraft fleet and the significant cost associated therewith, and the emergence
of new nichefocused airlines which generally use leasing in order to obtain their capital assets.

ENGINE LEASING

As of December 31, 2@] all of our leases to air carriers, manufacturers and MROs are operating leases as
opposed to finance leases. Undperating leases, we retain the potential benefit and assume the risk of the residual
value of the aircraft equipment, in contrast to capital or financing leases where the lessee has more of the potential
benefits and risks of ownership. Operating lealesva&commercial aircraft operators greater fleet and financial
flexibility due to the relatively small initial capital outlay necessary to obtain use of the aircraft equipment, and the
availability of short and long term leases to better meet their nepesating lease rates are generally higher than
finance lease rates, in part because of the risks associated with the residual value.

We describe all of -merocoapeeat i ng eobratisgslease reduikes thepil el e
lessedo make the full lease payment and pay any other expenses associated with the use of the engines, such as
maintenance, casualty and liability insurance, sales or use taxes and personal property taxes. The leases contain detailed

d

provisions specifyingtheels sees 6 responsibility for engine damage, mai



the engine upon return at the end of the lease. During the term of the lease, we generally require the lessee to maintain
the engine in accordance with an apprbwgintenance program designed to meet applicable regulatory requirements in
the jurisdictions in which the lessee operates.

We try to mitigate risk where possible. For example, we make an analysis of the credit risk associated with the
lessee before entag into any significant lease transaction. Our credit analysis generally consists of evaluating the
prospective | esseeds financial standing by wutilizing fi
circumstances, we may requirer dessees to provide additional credit support such as a letter of credit or a guaranty
from a bank or a third party or a security deposit. We also evaluate insurance and expropriation risk and evaluate and
monitor the political and legal climate of theuedry in which a particular lessee is located in order to determine our
ability to repossess our engines should the need arise. Despite these guidelines, we cannot give assurance that we will not
experience collection problems or significant losses irithet ur e. See fARi sk Factorso bel ow

At the commencement of a lease, we may collect, in advance, a security deposit normally equal to at least one
mont hds | ease payment. The security deposit enmetreturned
Under the terms of some of our leases, during the term of the lease, the lessees pay amounts to us based on usage of the
engine, which is referred to as maintenance reserves or use fees, which are designed to cover the expected future
maintenanceasts. For those leases in which the maintenance reserves are reimbursable to the lessee, maintenance
reserves are collected and are reimbursed to the lessee when qualifying maintenance is performed. Urtdemlonger
leases, to the extent that cumulatige dee billings are inadequate to fund expenditures required prior to return of the
engine to us, the lessee is obligated to cover the shortfall. Recovery is therefore dependent upon the financial condition
of the lessee.

During the lease period, our lessrequire that maintenance and inspection of the leased engines be performed
at qualified maintenance facilities certified by the FAA or its foreign equivalent. In addition, when an engine becomes
off-lease, it undergoes inspection to verify compliandé eiase return conditions. Our management believes that our
attention to our lessees and our emphasis on maintenance and inspection helps preserve residual values and generally
helps us to recover our investment in our leased engines.

Upon termination o& lease, we will lease, sell or part out the related engines. The demand for aftermarket
engines for either sale or lease may be affected by a number of variables, including:

1 general market conditions;

1 regulatory changes (particularly those imposingrammental, maintenance and other requirements on the
operation of engines);

1 changes in demand for air travel;
1 fuel costs;
1 changes in the supply and cost of aircraft equipment; and
1 technological developments.
The value of particular used engines vageeatly depending upon their condition, the maintenance services
performed during the lease term and, as applicable, the number of hours or cycles remaining until the next major
maintenance is required. If we are unable to lease or sell engines orbfaterms, our financial results and our ability
to service debt may be adversely affected. See fARi sk Fa
The value of a particular model of engine is heavily dependent on the status of the types of aircraft on which it
is installed. We beliey values of engines tend to be stable so long as the host aircraft for the engines as well as the

engines themselves are still being manufactured. Prices will also tend to remain stable and even rise after a host aircraft
is no longer manufactured so loag there is sufficient demand for the host aircraft. However, the value of an engine



begins to decline rapidly once the host aircraft begins to be retired from service and/or parted out in significant numbers.
Values of engines also may decline becausearfufacturing defects that may surface subsequently.

As of December 31, 2@l we had a totdkase portfolio oR08aircraft engines and related equipment, 5 spare
parts packageslaircraft and various parts and other engielated equipment with @etbook valueof $1,136.6
million in our lease portfolio. As of December 31, 80We had a totdkease portfolio of 2D aircraft engines and related
equipment, 5 spare parts packadésaircraft and various parts and other engialated equipment with et book
valueof $1,109.2million in our lease portfolio.

As of December 31, 2@]1 minimum future rentals under naancelable operating leases of these engines, parts
and aircraft assets were as follows:

Year (in thousands
2017 $ 89,119
2018 57,192
2019 43,979
2020 33,482
2021 16,930
Thereafter 23,466

$ 264,168

As of December 31, 2@] we had 8 lessees of commercial aircraft engines, aircraft, and other airetafied
equipment in 8 countries. We believe the loss of any one customer would not have a significatdrioragdverse
effect on our business. We operate in a global market in which our engines are easily transferable among lessees located
in many countries, which stabilizdemand and allows us to recover from the loss of a particular customer. As a result,
we do not believe we are dependent on a single customer or a few customers, the loss of which would have a material
adverse effect on our revenues.

On May?25, 2011, we tered into an agreement with MitsiCo., Ltd. to participate in a joint venture formed
as a Dublirbased Irish limited compardy Willis Mitsui& Company Engine Support Limited
purpose of acquiring and leasing jet engines. Each parbids & fifty percent interest in the joint venture. Our
investment in the joint venture i8%.5million as of December 31, 261

On June 3, 2014 we entered into an agreement with China Aviation Supplies Import & Export Corporation
(ACASCO) tobnparpfochnpaventure named CASC Willis Engine L
joint venture based in Shanghai, China. Each partner holds a fifty percent interest in the joint venture. In October 2014,
we made a $15.0 million initial capitabntribution, representing our fifty percent-fipnt funding contribution to the
new joint venture. The company acquires and leases jet engines to Chinese airlines and concentrates on meeting the fast
growing demand for leased commercial aircraftenginesd avi ati on assets in the Peopl e
Willis owned a lease portfolio of 3 engines with a net book value of $49.1 million as of December 31, 2016. Our
investment in the joint venture is $12.9 million as of December 31, ZWirthg 2016, CASC was reorganized, with
portions of its partnership interest in CASC Willis being transferred to three Chinese airlines and another government
owned entity. The 2016 CASC reorganization resulted in no voting structure change to the joint venture

AIRCRAFT LEASING

As of December 31, 2@1 we ownedand leasedbur Boeing 737 aircraft, four ATR7202 turboprop, two
Embraer EL90LR, and oneBombardier Challengaircraft with an aggregate net book value c®% million.

Our aircraftnkeeadskeaaes anhdi phe | essee is responsibl
paying any other expenses associated with the use of the aircraft, such as maintenance, casualty and liability insurance,
sales or use taxes apdrsonal property taxes. In addition, the lessee is responsible for normal maintenance and repairs,
engine and airframe overhauls, and compliance with return conditions of flight equipment on lease. Under the provisions
of many leases, for certain engimed airframe overhauls, we reimburse the lessee for costs incurred up to but not



exceeding maintenance reserves the lessee has paid to us. Maintenance reserves are designed to cover the expected
maintenance costs. The lessee is also responsible for coogpliath all applicable laws and regulations with respect to

the aircraft. We require our lessees to comply with FAA requirements. We periodically inspect our leased aircraft.
Generally, we require a deposit gatonssrearthe leaseyandfthe conditidne | e s
of the aircraft upon return. In addition, the leases contain extensive provisions regarding our remedies and rights in the
event of a default by the lessee and specific provisions regarding the condition afréifé @on return. The lessee is

required to continue to make lease payments under all circumstances, including periods during which the aircraft is not

in operation due to maintenance or grounding.

SPARE PARTS SALES

The sale of spare partsis managed dlye Company és whol |l y o WilliseMerosubsi di ar
primarily engages in the sale of aircraft engine parts and materials through the acquisition or consignment from third
parties of aircraft and engines. The launch of this new business sagrivenvember2013 positioned our Company to
provide endof-life solutions for the growing supply of surplus aircraft and engines. With the establishment of Willis
Aero, we are able to manage the full lifecycle of our lease assets, enhance the returrengimeuyortfolio and create
incremental value for our shareholders. As of December 38, 8pare parts inventory had a carrying valug¢2g.4
million.

WILLIS ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

IN2016Wi I I i s Asset Manage mé&lah ab e menawydoynied Wélsh dubsisiarAs s et
purchased the business and assets of TES, the consulting and asset management business of the TES Aviation Group.
Willis Asset Managemens anasset management, technical services and consultancy budidissAsset
Management has 502 engines under management as of December 31, 2016.

OUR COMPETITIVE ADVANTAGES

We are uniquely positioned in the market and remain competitive, in part, due to the following advantages:

1 We have an entrepreneurial culture amgr size and independent ownership structure gives us a unique
ability to move faster than our competitidWe were founded in 1985 as a startup venture by our Chief
Executive Officer, Charles F. Willi$y, and we continue to foster an entrepreneuridtuate among our
executives and employees. Unlike most other aircraft engine leasing companies, we are not tied to a
particular manufacturer and are not part of a larger corporate entity. As a result, we can react more nimbly
to customer demands and chasgethe industry.

1 Ourindependent ownership allows us to meet our customer needs without regard to any potentially
conflicting affiliate demands to use their engines or serviglesy of the aircraft engine leasing companies
with which we compete are owthén whole or part by aircraft engine manufacturers. As a result, these
leasing companies are inherently motivated to sell to customers the aircraft equipment that is manufactured
by their owners, regardless of whether that equipment best meets the fribedscostomers. As an
independent public company we have the ability to work with customers to correctly identify their needs
and provide them with the engines, equipment and services that are best suited to those needs.

1 We have significant technicalgartise and experienc@ur senior management, marketing and sales teams
all have extensive experience in leasing aircraft engines and equipment. Our technical group makes up
approximately half of our total company staff levels. As a result, we possesp &mbwledge of the
technical details of commercial aircraft engines and maintenance issues associated with these engines that
enables us to provide our customers with comprehensive and up to date information on the various engine
types available for leas

1 We have extensive industry contacts/relationghipsrldwide We have developed lorgianding
relationships with aircraft operators, equipment manufacturers and aircraft maintenance organizations
around the world. Our extensive network of relationshkipables us to quickly identify new leasing



opportunities, procure engines and equipment and facilitate the repair of equipment owned by us and
equipment leased by our customers.

1 We have a trusted reputation for quality engines and engine redtelfravebeen an independent lessor
of aircraft engines and engine equipment since 1985. Since that time we have focused on providing
customers with high quality engines and engine records. As a result of our commitment to these high
standards, a significant pontiaf our customer base consists of customers who have leased engines from
us previously.

1 We have a diverdeaseportfolio by customer, geography and engine tyj®of December 31, 261we
had a total lease portfolmonsisting of 28 engines and relateequipment, 1 aircraft and 5 spare parts
packages with @lessees in3countries and an aggregate net book valuklgt36.6million.

1 We have a diverdeaseproduct offering (by engine type and types of lead¥'s lease a variety of noise
compliant,Stage 11l commercial jet engines manufactured by CFMI, General Electric 8Pdtitney,
Rolls Royce and International Aero Engines. These engines generally may be used on one or more aircraft
types and are the most widely used engines in the world, pgwveirbus, Boeing, McDonnell Douglas,
Bombardier and Embraer aircraft. We offer short and-@nm leases, sale/leaseback transactions and
engine pooling arrangements where members of the pool have quick access to available spare engines from
us or othepool members, which are typically structured as stesrh leases.

COMPETITION

The markets for our products and services are very competitive, and we face competition from a number of
sources. These competitors include aircraft engine and aircrafimemntgacturers, aircraft and aircraft engine lessors,
airline and aircraft service and repair companies and aircraft and aircraft engine spare parts distributors. Many of our
competitors have substantially greater resources than us. Those resourcesudaygieater name recognition, larger
product lines, complementary lines of business, greater financial, marketing, information systems and other resources. In
addition, equipment manufacturers, aircraft maintenance providers, FAA certified repaiefaaititi other aviation
aftermarket suppliers may vertically integrate into the markets that we serve, thereby significantly increasing industry
competition. We can give no assurance that competitive pressures will not materially and adversely affdcessr bus
financial condition or results of operations.

We compete primarily with aircraft engine manufacturers as well as with other aircraft engine lessors. It is
common for commercial aircraft operators and MROs to utilize several leasing companiestteeme@craft engine
needs and to minimize reliance on a single leasing company.

Our competitors compete with us in many ways, including pricing, technical expertise, lease flexibility, engine
availability, supply reliability, customer service and thmlity and condition of engines. Some of our competitors have
greater financial resources than we do, or are affiliates of larger companies. We emphasize the quality of our portfolio of
aircraft engines, supply reliability and high level of customer sertd our aircraft equipment lessees. We focus on
ensuring adequate aircraft engine availability in kigimand locations, dedicate large portions of our organization to
building relationships with lessees, maintain closetdegay coordination with leses and have developed an engine
pooling arrangement that allows pool members quick access to available spare aircraft engines.

INSURANCE

In addition to requiring full indemnification under the terms of our leases, we require our lessees to carry the
types of insurance customary in the air transportation industry, including comprehensive third party liability insurance
and physical damage and casualty insurance. We require that we be named as an additional insured on liability insurance
with ourselves andur lenders normally identified as the loss payee for damage to the equipment on policies carried by
lessees. We monitor compliance with the insurance provisions of the leases. We also carry contingent physical damage
and third party liability insurance agell as product liability insurance.



GOVERNMENT REGULATION

Our customers are subject to a high degree of regulation in the jurisdictions in which they operate. For example,
the FAA regulates the manufacture, repair and operation of all aircraft oper#edUnited States and equivalent
regul atory agencies in other countries, such as the Eur
aircraft operated in those countries. Such regulations also indirectly affect our business operatonsafbperated
in the United States must be maintained under a continuous cordidioitoring program and must periodically
undergo thorough inspection and maintenance. The inspection, maintenance and repair procedures for commercial
aircraft are prezibed by regulatory authorities and can be performed only by certified repair facilities utilizing certified
technicians. The FAA can suspend or revoke the authority of air carriers or their licensed personnel for failure to comply
with regulations and gund aircraft if their airworthiness is in question.

While our leasing and reselling business is not regulated, the aircraft, engines and related parts that we
purchase, lease and sell must be accompanied by documentation that enables the custonmgntdrcapylicable
regulatory requirements. Furthermore, before parts may be installed in an aircraft, they must meet certain standards of
condition established by the FAA and/or the equivalent regulatory agencies in other countries. Specific regafgtions v
from country to country, although regulatory requirements in other countries are generally satisfied by compliance with
FAA requirements. With respect to a particular engine or engine component, we utilize FAA and/or EASA certified
repair stations toepair and certify engines and components to ensure marketability.

Effective Januant, 2000, federal regulations stipulate that all aircraft engines hold, or be capable of holding, a
noise certificate issued under Chapter 3 of Volume 1,IPaftAnnex 16 of the Chicago Convention, or have been
shown to comply with Stage Ill noise levels set out in Se@mb of Appendix C of Pa@6 of the FAA Regulations of
the United States if the engines are to be used in the continental United States. Additrrcdllgf Europe has adopted
similar regulations. As of December 31, BQall of the engines in our lease portfolio are Stage Il engines and are
generally suitable for use on one or more commonly used aircraft.

We believe that the aviation industry wik subject to continued regulatory activity. Additionally, increased
oversight will continue to originate from the quality assurance departments of airline operators. We have been able to
meet all such requirements to date, and believe that we will béoafpleet any additional requirements that may be
imposed. We cannot give assurance, however, that new, more stringent government regulations will not be adopted in
the future or that any such new regulations, if enacted, would not have a material adpacden us.

GEOGRAPHIC AREAS IN WHICH WE OPERATE

At December 31, 2016 paroximately86% of our onlease engines, related aircraft parts, and equipment (all of
which we someti mes r ef ervalteare easediardppeiatpdniretonilly.)All ldases net b ook
relating to this equipment are denominated and payable in U.S. dollars, which is customary in the industry. Future leases
may provide for payments to be made in euros or other foreign currencies6lm@0eased our equipment todess
domiciled in eight geographic regions. We are subject t
Factorso bel ow.
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The following table displays the regional profile of our lease customer base for the years ended December 31,
2016, 2015 and 20%4. The United States and China each accounted for more than 10% of our lease rent revenue in 2016.
No country accounted for more than 10% of our lease rent revenue5n 28& United States accounted for more than
10% of our lease rentvenue in 204. The tables include geographic information about our leased equipment grouped
by the |l esseeds domicile (which does not necessarily in

Years Ended December31,

2016 2015 2014
LeaseRent LeaseRent LeaseRent
Revenue  Percentags Revenue  Percentag¢ Revenue  Percentagt
(dollars in thousands)

Europe $ 44,650 37% $ 43,703 41% $ 37,850 37%
Asia 34,524 29 31,569 29 21,658 21
South America 11,504 10 9,688 9 9,907 10
United States 13,395 11 9,177 8 11,880 12
Mexico 6,251 5 6,886 6 7,771 8
Canada 4,049 3 2,828 3 4,958 5
Middle East 3,674 3 2,223 2 4,143 4
Africa 1,848 2 1,972 2 3,264 3
Total $ 119,895 100% $ 108,046 100% $ 101,431 100%

FINANCING/SOURCE OF FUNDS

We, directly or through WEST I, typically acquire engines with a combination of equity capital and funds
borrowed from financial institutions. In order to facilitate financamgl leasing of engines, each engine is generally
owned through a statutory or common law trust that is wkmMyed by us or our subsidiaries. We usually borrow 85%
of an engine purchase price. Substantially all of our assets secure our related indebiedrnggically acquire engines
from airlines in a saldease back transaction, from engine manufacturers or from other lessors. From time to time, we
selectively acquire engines prior to a firm commitment to lease or sell the engine, depending oe tifalgFiengine
and market demand with the expectation that we can lease or sell such entfiedature

EMPLOYEES

As of December 31, 2@ we hadl47full-time employees (excluding consultants), in sales and marketing,
technical service and adminigtion. None of our employees are covered by a collective bargaining agreement and we
believe our employee relations are satisfactory.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

The following risk factors and other information included in this Annual Report should be acefudidered.
The risks and uncertainties described below are not the only ones we face. Additional risks and uncertainties not
presently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial also may impair our business operations. If any of the
following risks occur, our business, financial condition, operating results and cash flows could be materially and
adversely affected.
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RISKS RELATING TO OUR BUSINESS

We are affected by the risks faced by commercial aircraft operators and maintenance, repair aadloverh
companies (AMROs0) because they are our customer s.

Commercial aircraft operators are engaged in economically sensitive, highly cyclical and competitive
businesses. We are a supplier to commercial aircraft operators and MROs. As a resulindieetly affected by all
the risks facing commercial aircraft operators and MROSs, that are beyond our control. Our results of operations depend,
in part, on the financi al strength of our cmeaskdtplaceer s and
and manage their risks. These risks include, among others:

1 general economic conditions in the countries in which our customers operate, including changes in gross
domestic product;

1 demand for air travel and air cargo shipments;

1 increased copetition;

1 changes in interest rates and the availability and terms of credit available to commercial aircraft operators;
9 concerns about security, terrorism, war, public health and political instability;

1 inclement weather and natural disasters, inclgithiat not limited to volcanic eruptions;

1 environmental compliance and other regulatory costs;

1 labor contracts, labor costs and strikes or stoppaigesmmercial aircraft operators;

9 aircraft fuel prices and availability;

1 technological developments;

1 maintenance costs;

9 airport access and air traffic control infrastructure constraints;

9 insurance and other operating costs;

1 industry capacity, utilization and general market conditions; and

1 market prices for aviation equipment.

To the extent that ouustomers are negatively affected by these risk factors, we may experience:
I adecrease in demand for some engine types in our portfolio;

9 greater credit risks from our customers, and a higher incidence of lessee defaults and corresponding
repossessions;

1 aninability to quickly lease engines and aircraft on commercially acceptable terms when these become
available through our purchase commitments and regular lease terminations; and

1 shorter lease terms, which may increase our expenses and reduce otiontitas.
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Our engine values and lease rates, which are dependent on the status of the types of aircraft on which engines
are installed, and other factors, could decline.

The value of a particular model of engine depends heavily on the types of aircvetiich it may be installed
and the supply of available engines. We believe values of engines tend to be relatively stable so long as there is sufficient
demand for the host aircraft. However, we believe the value of an engine begins to decline mapitie dost aircraft
begins to be retired from service and/or used for spare parts in significant numbers. Certain types of engines may be used
in significant numbers by commercial aircraft operators that are currently experiencing financial diffididtiek.
operators were to go into liquidation or similar proceedings, the resultingsappty of engines from these operators
could have an adverse effect on the demand for the affected engine types and the values of such engines.

Upon termination of dease, we may be unable to enter into new leases or sell the engine or its parts on
acceptable terms.

We own the engines that we lease to customers and bear the risk of not recovering our entire investment
through leasing and selling the engines. Upomitgation of a lease, we seek to enter a new lease or to sell-@upart
the engine. We also selectively sell engines on an opportunistic basis. We cannot give assurance that we will be able to
find, in a timely manner, a lessee or a buyer for our engioméng offlease or for their associated parts. If we do find a
lessee, we may not be able to obtain satisfactory lease rates and terms (including maintenance and redelivery conditions)
or rates and terms comparable to our current leases, and we cao gs®urance that the creditworthiness of any future
lessee will be equal to or better than that of the existing lessees of our engines. Because the terms of engine leases may
be less than 1&onths, we may frequently need to remarket engines. We facskhbat we may not be able to keep
our engines on lease consistently.

We are subject to the risks and costs of aircraft maintenance and obsolescence on the aircraft that we own.

We currentlyown and leaséour Boeing 737 aircraft, four ATR7202 turbopop, two E190LR aircraft and
one Bombardier Challenger aircraft. We may buy other airordftterests in aircraft in the future primarily to seek
opportunities to realize value from the engines or related parts. Among other risks described in tHiRé&poathe
following risks apply when we lease or sell aircraft:

1 we will be subject to the greater maintenance risks and risks of declines in value that apply to aircraft as
opposed to engines, as well as the potentially greater risks of leasintingy aetraft;

1 intense competition among manufacturers, lessorsopéitompanies and sellers may, among other things,
adversely affect the demand for, lease rates and residual values of our aircratft;

1 our aircraft lessees are aircraft operators engagedonomically sensitive, highly cyclical and competitive
businesses and our results of operations from aircraft leasing depend, in part, on their financial strength (for
more details, see the risk fact ordbyconimereial @rordfti t | e d
operators and MROs because they are our customer s

1 our aircraft lessees may encounter significant financial difficulties, which could result in our agreeing to
amend our leases with the customer to, among other things, débegive rent payments or extend lease
terms as an alternative to repossession;

1 our aircraft lessees may file for bankruptcy which could result in us incurring greater losses with respect to
aircraft than with respect to engines; and

9 aircraft technologys constantly improving and, as a result, aircraft of a particular model and type tend to

become obsolete and less in demand over time, when newer, more advanced and efficient aircraft become
available.
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We carry the risk of maintenance for our leased asg@tir maintenance reserves may be inadequate or lessees
may default on their obligations to perform maintenance, which could increase our expenses.

Under most of our engine and aircraft leases, the lessee makes monthly maintenance reserve payments to us
based on the assetds usage and managementds esti mate of
payments on the WEST Il engines are held in related engine reserve restricted cash accounts. Generally, the lessee under
long term leases igsponsible for all scheduled maintenance costs, even if they exceed the amounts of maintenance
reservegaid. Fortynine of our leases comprising approximately 25.3%efnet book value of our dease assets at
December 31, 2016 do not provide for angnthly maintenance reserve payments to be made by lessees, and we can
give no assurance that future leases of our engines will require maintenance reserves. In some cases, including engine
and aircraft repossessions, we may decide to pay for refurbisharaegsirs if the accumulated use fees are inadequate.

We can give no assurance that our operating cash flows and available liquidity reserves, including the amounts
held in the engine reserve restricted cash accounts, will be sufficient to fund neeegmae maintenance. Actual
maintenance reserve payments by lessees and other cash that we receive may be significantly less than projected as a
result of numerous factors, including defaults by lessees. Furthermore, we can provide no assuranceghaillesse
meet their obligations to make maintenance reserve payments or perform required scheduled maintenance or, to the
extent that maintenance reserve payments are insufficient, to cover the cost of refurbishments or repairs.

Failures by lessees to meaheir maintenance and recordkeeping obligations under our leases could adversely
affect the value of our leased engines and aircraft and our ability to lease the engines and aircraft in a timely
manner following termination of the leases.

The value anéhcome producing potential of an engine or aircraft depends heavily on it being maintained in
accordance with an approved maintenance system and complying with all applicable governmental directives and
manufacturer requirements. In addition, for an enginaircraft to be available for service, all records, logs, licenses and
documentation relating to maintenance and operations of the engine or aircraft must be maintained in accordance with
governmental and manufacturer specifications.

Our leases makeegHessees primarily responsible for maintaining the engines or aircraft, keeping related
records and complying with governmental directives and manufacturer requirements. Over time, certain lessees have
experienced, and may experience in the future, diffies in meeting their maintenance and recordkeeping obligations
as specified by the terms of our leases.

Our ability to determine the condition of the engines or aircraft and whether the lessees are properly
maintaining our assets is generally limitedtt he | essees®6 reporting of monthly wus
confirmed by periodic inspections performed by us andhiedr t i e s . A |l esseebds failure to
recordkeeping obligations under a lease could result in:

1 agroundig of the related enginar aircraft

1 arepossession that would likely cause us to incur additional and potentially substantial expenditures in
restoring the enginer aircraftto an acceptable maintenance condition;

1 aneed to incur additional costs areldte resources to recreate the records prior to the sale or lease of the
engineor aircraft

1 loss of lease revenue while we perform refurbishments or repairs and recreate records; and

1 alower lease rate and/or shorter lease term under a nevelgased into by us following repossession of
the engineor aircraft
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Any of these events may adversely affect the value of the engine, unless and until remedied, and reduce our
revenues and increase our expenses. If an engine is damaged during a lessaranthable to recover from the lessee
or though insurance, we may incur a loss.

Our operating results vary and comparisons to results for preceding periods may not be meaningful.

Due to a number of factors, including the risks described in this ITEMur operating results may fluctuate.
These fluctuations may also be caused by:

1 the timing and number of purchases and sales of engines or aircraft;

1 the timing and amount of maintenance reserve revenues recorded resulting from the termination of long
term leases, for which significant amounts of maintenance reserves may have accumulated;

1 the termination or announced termination of production of particular aircraft and engine types;
9 the retirement or announced retirement of particular aircraft mbgedgcraft operators;

9 the operating history of any particular engine, aircraft or engine or aircraft model;

1 the length of our operating leases; and

1 the timing of necessary overhauls of engines and aircraft.

These risks may reduce our engine utilizatiates, lease margins, maintenance reserve revenues and proceeds
from engine sales, and result in higher legal, technical, maintenance, storage and insurance costs related to repossession
and the cost of engines being-tdhse. As a result of the foreggiand other factors, the availability of engines for lease
or sale periodically experiences cycles of oversupply and undersupply of given engine models. The incidence of an
oversupply of engines may produce substantial decreases in engine lease riespprhised and resale value of
engines and may increase the time and costs incurred to lease or sell engines.

We anticipate that fluctuations from period to period will continue in the future. As a result, we believe that
comparisons to results fpreceding periods may not be meaningful and that results of prior periods should not be relied
upon as an indication of our future performance.

Our customers face intense competition and some carriers are in troubled financial condition.

Certain lesseamay be significantly delinquent in their rental payments and may default on their lease
obligations. As of December 31, 2016, we had an aggregate of approximately $3.6 million in lease rent and $2.4 million
in maintenance reserve payments more than 30mestsdue. Our inability to collect receivables or to repossess engines,
aircraft or other leased equipment in the event of a default by a lessee could have a material adverse effect on us.

Following the September 11, 2001 terrorist attacks and the gletedsion that began in 2008, the commercial
aviation industry was negatively affected. The airline industry recovered in the years thereafter and has returned to
profitability with some carriers even posting record profits. However, we cannot givarsstiat delinquencies and
defaults on our leases will not increase during future cyclical downturns in the economy and commercial aviation
industry.

Various airlines have filed for bankruptcy in the United States and in foreign jurisdictions, witlssekmgg to
restructure their operations and others ceasing operations entirely. In the case of airlines that are restructuring, such
airlines often reduce their flights or eliminate the use of certain types of aircraft and the related engine typebleApplica
bankruptcy laws often allow these airlines to terminate leases early and to return our engines or aircraft without meeting
the contractual return conditions. In that case, we may not be paid the full amount, or any part, of our claims for these
lease ¢érminations. Alternatively, we might negotiate agreements with those airlines under which the airline continues to
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lease the engine or aircraft, but under modified lease terms. In the case of an airline which has ceased operations
entirely, in addition tdhe risk of nonpayment, we face the enhanced risk of deterioration or total loss of an engine or
aircraft while it is under uncertain custody and control. In that case, we may be required to take legal action te secure th
return of the engine or airctednd its records or, alternatively, to negotiate a settlement under which we can immediately
recover the engine or aircraft and its records in exchange for waiving subsequent legal claims.

We may not be able to repossess an engjiragrcraft when the lssee defaults, and even if we are able to
repossess the engioe aircraft, we may have to expend significant funds in the repossession, remarketing and
leasing of the asset.

When a lessee defaults and such default is not cured in a timely manner ahlytggiek to terminate the lease
and repossess the engine or aircraft. If a defaulting lessee contests the termination and repossession or is under court
protection, enforcement of our rights under the lease may be difficult, expensive andtisneningWe may not
realize any practical benefits from our legal rights and we may need to obtain consents to export the engine or aircraft.
As a result, the relevant asset may beede or not producing revenue for a prolonged period. In addition, we will
incur direct costs associated with repossessing our engine or aircraft. These costs may include legal and similar costs, the
direct costs of transporting, storing and insuring the engine or aircraft, and costs associated with necessary maintenance
and recordkeping to make the asset available for lease or sale. During this time, we will realize no revenue from the
leased engine or aircraft, and we will continue to be obligated to pay our debt financing for the asset. If an engine is
installed on an airframe, ¢hairframe may be owned by an aircraft lessor or other third party. Our ability to recover
engines installed on airframes may depend on the cooperation of the airframe owner.

We and our customers operate in a highly regulated industry and changes ior leegsilations may adversely
affect our ability to lease or sell our engines or aircratft.

Licenses and consents

We and our customers operate in a highly regulated industry. A number of our leases require specific
governmental or regulatory licensesnsents or approvals. These include consents for certain payments under the leases
and for the export, import or+4export of our engines or aicraft. Consents needed in connection with future leasing or
sale of our engines or aircraft may not be recefiradly or have economically feasible terms. Any of these events could
adversely affect our ability to lease or sell engines or aircraft.

The U. S. Department of Commer ce, or the ACommerce De
Commerce Deparme nt 6 s and the U. S. Department of Stateds regul
aircraft to foreign entities and the export of related parts. These Departments may, in some cases, require us to obtain
export licenses for enginesported to foreign countries. The U.S. Department of Homeland Security, through the U.S.
Customs and Border Protection, enforces regulations related to the import of engines and aircraft into the United States
for maintenance or lease and imports of pamtsrfstallation on our engines and aircraft.

We are prohibited from doing business with persons ¢
Oof fice of Foreign Assets Control, or AOFAC, 0 oarn its fASp
operations and existing and potenti al |l essees for compl
United Nations, the U.S. government, the European Union or other governments could prohibit or restrict us from doing
business in ceria countries or with certain persons, and we must monitor our operations and existing and potential
lessees for compliance with such sanctions.

Anti-corruption Laws

As a U.S. corporation with significant international operations, we are required toyoaitiph number of
U.S. and international laws and regulations, including those combating corruption. For example, the U.S. Foreign
Corrupt Practices Act (the "FCPA") and similar wevilitle antibribery laws generally prohibit improper payments to
foreignofficials for the purpose of influencing any official act or decision or securing any improper advantage. The
scope and enforcement of antirruption laws and regulations may vary. Although our policies expressly mandate
compliance with the FCPA and sianily applicable laws, there can be no assurance that none of our employees or agents
will take any action in violation of our policies. Violations of such laws or regulations could result in substantial civil o

16



criminal fines or sanctions. Actual or aked violations could also damage our reputation, be expensive to defend, and
impair our ability to do business.

Civil aviation regulation

Users of engines and aircraft are subject to general civil aviation authorities, including the FAA and the EASA,
who regulate the maintenance of engines and issue airworthiness directives. Airworthiness directives typically set forth
special maintenance actions or modifications to certain engine and aircraft types or series of specific engines that must be
implemented dr the enginer aircraftto remain in service. Also, airworthiness directives may require the lessee to make
more frequent inspections of an engine, aircraft or particular engine parts. Each lessee of an engine or aircraft generally
is responsible for complying with all airworttéss directives. However, if the engine or aircraft is off lease, we may be
forced to bear the cost of compliance with such airworthiness directives, and if the engine or aircraft is leased, subject to
the terms of the lease, if any, we may be forced &pesthe cost of compliance.

Environmental regulation

Governmental regulations of noise and emissions levels may be applicable where the related airframe is
registered, and where the aircraft is operated. For example, jurisdictions throughout the veodddmed noise
regulations which require all aircraft to comply with Stage Il noise requirements. In addition to the current Stage IlI
compliance requirements, the United States and the I nte
a more stringent set of AStage | VO standards for noise
onward. At this time, the United States regulations do not require any-phiastaircraft that qualify only for Stage Il
compliance but the European Union has established a framework for the imposition of operating limitations on non
Stage IV aircraft. These regulations could limit the economic life of our engines and aircraft or reduce their value, could
limit our ability to lease pbsell the norcompliant engines or aircraft or, if modifications are permitted, require us to
make significant additional investments in the engines or aircraft to make them compliant.

The United States and other jurisdictions are imposing more strilugéston the emission of nitrogen oxide,
carbon monoxide and carbon dioxide emissions from engines, consistent with ICAO standards. These limits generally
apply only to engines manufactured after 1999. In 2005, the European Union launched an EmiadingsSystem
limiting greenhouse gas emissions by various industries and persons, including aircraft operators. Concerns over global
warming could result in more stringent limitations on the operation of oldercompliant engineand aircraft

Anychange to current tax laws or accounting principles making operating lease financing less attractive could
adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our lessees enjoy favorable accounting and tax treatment by usiragingézases. Changes in tax laws or
accounting principles that make operating leases less attractive to our lessees could have a material adverse effect on
demand for our leases and on our business.

Our consolidated financial statements are preparedcordance with GAAP. If there are future changes in
GAAP with regard to how we and our customers must account for leases, it could change the way we and our customers
conduct our businesses and, therefore, could have the potential to have an advérse @ffelsusiness.

In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards BahedRASB") issued Accounting Standards
Update No.201® 2, fAlLeaseso (topic 842). The FASB issued this wu
among organizations bgcognizing lease assets and lease liabilities on the balance sheet and disclosing key information
about leasing arrangements. The updated guidance is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2018,
including interim periods within thosesfial years. Early adoption of the update is permitted. The Company is evaluating
the impact of the adoption of this update on our consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

Our aircraft, engines or parts could cause bodily injury or prapelamage, exposing us to liability claims.

We are exposed to potential liability claims if the use of our aircraft, engines or parts is alleged to have caused
bodily injury or property damage. Our leases require our lessees to indemnify us agairdatmssand to carry
insurance customary in the air transportation industry, including liability, property damage and hull all risks insurance on
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our engines and on our aircraft at agreed upon levels. We can give no assurance that one or more catastiopliic e

not exceed insurance coverage | imits or that | esseesbd i
insurance coverage deficiency or default by lessees under their indemnification or insurance obligations may reduce our
recovery of losses upon an event of loss.

We may not be adequately covered by insurance.

Whil e we maintain contingent insurance covering | 0ss
may not be availabl e i n suramce aovamde & msuffidentwrhadditien, iftatlesseelissmsts e e s
obligated to maintain sufficient insurance, we may incur the costs of additional insurance coverage during the related
lease. We are required under certain of our debt facilities to oluhiicad risk insurance for leases to lessees in
specified jurisdictions. We can give no assurance that such insurance will be available at commercially reasonable rates,
if at all.

Currently, the U.S. government is still offering war risk insurance &-tértificated airlines; however, most
foreign governments have ceased this practice, forcingh8nairlines back into the commercial insurance market for
this coverage. It is unknown how long the U.S. government will continue to offer war risk icesanach whether U.S.
certificated airlines could obtain war risk insurance in the commercial markets on acceptable terms and conditions.

We and our lenders generally are named as an additional issurédbility insurance policies carried by our
lesseesand are usually the loss payees for damage to our engines and aircraft. We have not experienced any significant
aviationrelated claims or any product liability claims related to our engines, aircraft or spare parts that were not insured.
However, an unisured or partially insured claim, or a claim for which tkpatity indemnification is not available, could
have a material adverse effect upon us. A loss of an aircraft where we lease the airframe, an engine or spare parts could
result in significant monaty claims for which there may not be sufficient insurance coverage.

RISKS RELATING TO OUR CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Our inability to obtain sufficient capital would constrain our ability to grow our portfolio and to increase our
revenues.

Our business isapital intensive and highly leveraged. Accordingly, our ability to successfully execute our
business strategy and maintain our operations depends on the availability and cost of debt and equity capital.
Additionally, our ability to borrow against our pfofio of engines and aircraft is dependent, in part, on the appraised
value of our engines and aircraft. If the appraised value of our engines and aircraft declines, we may be required to
reduce the principal outstanding under certain of our debt fagilieailability under such debt facilities may also be
reduced, at least temporarily, as a result of such reduced appraisals.

The relatively recent, weppublicized, worldwide disruptions in the credit and financial markets increase the
risk of adverse éécts on our customers and our capital providers (lenders and derivative quantits) and therefore
on us. The disruptions may also adversely affect our ability to raise additional capital to fund our continued growth.
Although we have adequate debtrouitments from our lenders, assuming they are willing and able to meet their
contractual obligation to lend to us, market disruptions may adversely affect our ability to raise additional equity capital
to fund future growth, requiring us to rely on intdhpgenerated funds. This would lower our rate of capital investment.

We can give no assurance that the capital we need will be available to us on favorable terms, or at all. Our
inability to obtain sufficient capital, or to renew or expand our credilitfas, could result in increased funding costs
and would limit our ability to:

1 meet the terms and maturities of our existing and future debt facilities;
1 add new equipment to our portfolio;

1 fund our working capital needs and maintain adequate liqu g
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1 finance other growth initiatives.
Our financing facilities impose restrictions on our operations.

We have, and expect to continue to have, various credit and financing arrangements with third parties. These
financing arrangements are securecilbpr substantially all of our assets. Our existing credit and financing
arrangements require us to meetaierfinancial conditioriests. Our revolving credit facility prohibits our declaring or
paying dividends on shares of any class or series afamnmon or preferredtock if an event of default under such
facility has or will occur and remains uncured. The agreements governing our debt, including the issuance of notes by
WEST II, also include restrictive financial covenants. A breach of those hadamvenants could, unless waived or
amended by our creditors, result in a crdefault to other indebtedness and an acceleration of all or substantially all of
our debt. We have obtained such waivers and amendments to our financing agreementstirbiltexzasannot
provide any assurance that we will receive such waivers or amendments in the future if we require them. If our
outstanding debt is accelerated at any time, we likely would have little or no cash or other assets available after payment
of our debts, which could cause the value or market price of our outstanding equity securities to decline significantly and
we would have few, if any, assets available for distributions to our equity holders in liquidation.

We are exposed to interest ratekrian our leases, which could have a negative impact on our margins.

We are affected by fluctuations in interest rates. Our lease rates are generally fixed, and a portion of our debt
bears variable rate interest based onmioath LIBOR, so changes in imést rates directly affect our lease margins.
From time to time, we seek to reduce our interest rate volatility and uncertainty through hedging with interest rate
derivative contracts with respect to a portion of our debt. Our lease margins, as wekasowws and cash flows may
be adversely affected by increases in interest rates, to the extent we do not have hedges or other derivatives in place or if
our hedges or other derivatives do not mitigate our interest rate exposure from an economic tt&viepainld be
adversely affected by increasing interestmontaliBORwas As r ep
approximately 0.77% and 0.43% on Decentkier2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively.

An increase in interest rates or our borrowing margin would increase the cost of servicing our debt and
could reduce our profitability.

A significant portion of our outstanding debt bears interest at floating rates. As a result, to the extent we have
not hedged against rising intereates, an increase in the applicable benchmark interest rates would increase our cost of
servicing our debt and could materially adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition, liquidity and cash
flows.

In addition, we regularly refinaecour indebtedness. If interest rates or our borrowing margins increase
between the time an existing financing arrangement was consummated and the time such financing arrangement is
refinanced, the cost of servicing our debt would increase and our m@soiftsrations, financial condition, liquidity and
cash flows could be materially adversely affected.

We have risks in managing our portfolio of engines to meet customer needs.

The relatively long life cycles of aircraft and jet engines can be shortgnedrltl events, government
regulation or customer preferences. We seek to manage these risks by trying to anticipate demand for particular engine
and aircraft types, maintaining a portfolio mix of engines that we believe is diversified and that withingiterin value
and will be sought by lessees in the global market for jet engines, and by selling engines and aircraft that we expect will
experience obsolescence or declining usefulness in the foreseeable future. The WEST Il securitization facéy includ
restrictions and limitations on the sale of engines in that facility including, among others, that (i) the net proceeds from
any individual engine sale must be at least 105% of the debt allocated under the facility to that engine, and (ii) the
aggregatea ppr ai sed value of the facilityds engines sold thro
appraised value of the facilityds engines at the incept
engines since then, and cahexceed 30% thereafter. We can give no assurance that we can successfully manage our
engine portfolio to reduce these risks.
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Our inability to maintain sufficient liquidity could limit our operational flexibility and also impact our ability to
make paynmés on our obligations as they come due.

In addition to being capital intensive and highly leveraged, our business also requires that we maintain
sufficient liquidity to enable us to contribute the Horanced portion of enginend aircrafppurchases asell as to
service our payment obligations to our creditors as they become due, despite the fact that the timing and amounts of
payments under our leases do not match the timing under our debt service obligations. Our restricted cash is unavailable
for gereral corporate purposes. Accordingly, our ability to successfully execute our business strategy and maintain our
operations depends on our ability to continue to maintain sufficient liquidity, cash and available credit under our credit
facilities. Our liqudity could be adversely impacted if we are subjected to one or more of the following: a significant
decline in lease revenues, a material increase in interest expense that is not matched by a corresponding increase in lease
rates, a significant increase operating expenses, or a reduction in our available credit under our credit facilities. If we
do not maintain sufficient liquidity, our ability to meet our payment obligations to creditors or to borrow additional funds
could become impaired as could alnility to make dividend payments or other distributions to our equity holders. See
iManagement 6s Discussion and Anal ysi soLgdidityfrandnCapital i a | Cond
Resources. 0

NUMEROUS FACTORS MAYAFFECT THE TRADING PRICE OPOUR COMMON STOCK
The trading price of our common stock may fluctuate due to many factors, including:
9 risks relating to our business described in this Annual Report;
9 sales of our securities by a few stockholders or even a single significant stockholder;
1 general economic conditions;
1 changes in accounting mandated under GAAP;
1 quarterly variations in our operating results;
1 our financial condition, performance and prospects;
1 changes in financial estimates by us;
1 the level, direction and volatility of farest rates and expectations of changes in rates;
1 the market for securities similar to our common stock; and
1 changes in our capital structure, including additional issuances by us of debt or equity securities.

In addition, the U.S. stock markets hasgerienced price and volume volatility that has affected many

companiesd® stock prices, often for reasons unrelated to
RISKS RELATING TO OUR FOREIGN OPERATIONS

A substantial portion of our lease revenue cofmas foreign customers, subjecting us to divergent regulatory
requirements.

For the year ended December 31, 2@ of our lease revenue was generated by leases to foreign customers.
Such international leases present risks to us because certain favesgnegulations and judicial procedures may not be
as protective of lessor rights as those which apply in the United States. We are also subject to risks of foreign laws that
affect the timing and access to courts and may limit our remedies wheniogllease payments and recovering assets.
None of our leased engines have been expropriated; however, we can give no assurance that political instability abroad
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and changes in the policies of foreign nations will not present expropriation risks in tieetifiatiuare not covered by
insurance.

A substantial portion ofur leases require payments in U.S. dollars but many of our customers operate in other
currencies; if foreign currencies devalue against the U.S. dollar, our lessees may be unable to make thei
payments to us.

A substantial portiolf our current leases require that payments be made in U.S. dollars. If the currency that
our lessees typically use in operating their businesses devalues against the U.S. dollar, those lessees could encounter
diffi culties in making payments in U.S. dollars. Furthermore, many foreign countries have currency and exchange laws
regulating international payments that may impede or prevent payments from being paid to us in U.S. dollars. Future
leases may provide for paymts to be made in euros or other foreign currencies. Any change in the currency exchange
rate that reduces the amount of U.S. dollars obtained by us upon conversion of future lease payments denominated in
euros or other foreign currencies, may, if not appiately hedged by us, have a material adverse effect on us and
increase the volatility of our earnings. If payments on our leases are made in foreign currency, our risks and hedging
costs will increase.

We operate globally and are affected by ourcustams 6 | ocal and regional economi

We believe that our customers6 growth and financi al
areas. The largest portion of our lease revenues come from Europe. European airline opegadioosg the most
heavily regulated in the world. At the same time,Jowst carriers have exerted substantial competitive and financial
pressure on major European airlines. Lowst carriers are having similar effects in North America and elsewhere.

Ouroperations may also be affected by political or economic instability in the areas where we have customers.

We may not be able to enforce our rights as a creditor if a lessee files for bankruptcy outside of the United
States.

When a debtor seeks protectiunder the United States Bankruptcy Code, creditors are automatically stayed
from enforcing their rights. In the case of United Statexdificated airlinesSection1110 of the Bankruptcy Code
provides certain relief to lessors of aircraft equipmentti®e 1110 has been the subject of significant litigation and we
can give no assurance that Sectiot 1 0 wi | | protect our investment in airecr
bankruptcy. In addition, Sectidl10 does not apply to lessees locatatdide of the United States and applicable
foreign laws may not provide comparable protection.

Liens on our engines or aircraft could exceed the value of such assets, which could negatively affect our ability
to repossess, lease or sell a particular ergim aircraft.

Liens that secure the payment of repairersd charges
engines and aircaft. Engines also may be installed on airframes to which liens unrelated to the engines have attached.
Thesdiens may secure substantial sums that may, in certain jurisdictions or for limited types of liens, exceed the value
of the particular engine or aircraft to which the liens have attached. In some jurisdictions, a lien may give the holder the
right to detan or, in limited cases, sell or cause the forfeiture of the engine or aircraft. Such liens may have priority over
our interest as well as our creditorsé interest in the
applicablelocallamr because our creditorsé security interests ar
These liens and lien holders could impair our ability to repossess and lease or sell the engines or aircraft. We cannot give
assurance that our lesseall @omply with their obligations to discharge thiparty liens on our assets. If they do not,

we may, in the future, find it necessary to pay the claims secured by such liens to repossess such assets.

In certain countries, an engine affixed to an aiftmmay become an accession to the aircraft and we may not
be able to exercise our ownership rights over the engine.

In some jurisdictions, an engine affixed to an aircraft may become an accession to the aircraft, so that the
ownership rights of the ownef the aircraft supersede the ownership rights of the owner of the engine. If an aircraft is
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security for the o warg,rthé secuatpihtéregtantthie airoraft mayosuparsetiehour rights as owner
of the engine. This legal principteuld limit our ability to repossess an engine in the event of a lessee bankruptcy or
lease default while the aircraft with the engine installed remains in such a jurisdiction. We may suffer a loss if we are not
able to repossess engines leased to legséiesse jurisdictions.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR SMALL SIZE AND CORPORATE STRUCTURE

Intense competition in our industry, particularly with major companies with substantially greater financial,
personnel, marketing and other resources, could cause our revandebusiness to suffer.

The engine and aircraft leasing industry is highly competitive and global. Our primary competitors include GE
Engine Leasing, Shannon Engine Support Ltd., RAathitney, RollsRoyce Partners Finance and Engine Lease
FinanceCorporation.

Our primary competitors generally have significantly greater financial, personnel and other resources, as well as
a physical presence in more locations, than we do. In addition, competing engine lessors may have lower costs of capital
and mayprovide financial or technical services or other inducements to customers, including the ability to sell or lease
aircraft, offer maintenance and repair services or provide other forms of financing that we do not provide. We cannot
give assurance that wéll be able to compete effectively or that competitive pressures will not adversely affect us.

There is no organized market for the spare engines or the aircraft we purchase. Typically, we purchase engines
and aircraft from commercial aircraft operat@sgine manufacturers, MROs and other suppliers. We rely on our
representatives, advertisements and reputation to generate opportunities to purchase and sell engines and aircraft. The
market for purchasing engine and aircraft portfolios is highly competitienerally involving an auction bidding
process. We can give no assurance that engines and aircraft will continue to be available to us on acceptable terms and in
the types and quantities we seek consistent with the diversification requirements @btofacdities and our portfolio
diversification goals.

Substantially all of our assets are pledged to our creditors.

Substantially all of our assets are pledged to secure our obligations to creditors. Our revolving credit banks have

alienonallofouasset s, including our equity in WEST 11. Due to
subject to the prior payments of WEST |I16s debt and ot h
creditors to participate in any diditition of the assets of WEST Il upon its liquidation, reorganization, dissolution or

winding up wild.l be subject to the prior claims of WEST

to satisfaction of the claims of our lenderslather creditors.

We may be unable to manage the expansion of our operations.

We can give no assurance that we will be able to manage effectively the current and potential expansion of our
operations, or that if we are successful expanding our opesatiat our systems, procedures or controls will be
adequate to support our operations, in which event our business, financial condition, results and cash flows could be
adversely affected.

Any acquisition or expansion involves various risks, which maluge some or all of the following:

9 incurring or assuming additional debt;

T diversion of managementés time and attention from

9 future charges to earnings related to the possible impairment of goodwill and the write duitwer of
intangible assets;

9 risks of unknown or contingent liabilities;
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1 difficulties in the assimilation of operations, services, products and personnel;
1 unanticipated costs and delays;
9 risk that the acquired business does not perform consistently witirmuth and profitability expectations;

9 risk that growth will strain our infrastructure, staff, internal controls and management, which may require
additional personnel, time and expenditures; and

1 potential loss of key employees and customers.
Any of the above factors could have a material adverse effect on us.

Compliance with the regulatory requirements imposed on us as a public company results in significant costs
that may have an adverse effect on our results.

As a public company, we are subject&ious regulatory requirements including, but not limited to,
compliance with the Sarbané&sxley Act of 2002 and the Dodegrank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act
of 2010. Compliance with these regulations results in significant additiosial twous both directly, through increased
audit and consulting fees, and indirectly, through the time required by our limited resources to address such regulations.
We have complied with Section 404a of the Sarb#&wdsy Act as of December 31, 2007, cdeting our annual
assessment of internal controls over financial reporting. We have complied with Section 404b of the -Badlesisst
as of December 31, 2009, and our independent registered public accounting firm audits our internal controls over
finandal reporting. Such compliance requires us to incur additional costs on audit and consulting fees and requires
additional management time that may adversely affect our results of operations and cash flows.

We are effectively controlled by one principaictholder, who has the power to contest the outcome of most
matters submitted to the stockholders for approval and to affect our stock prices adversely if he were to sell
substantial amounts of his common stock.

As of December 31, 2016, our principal dtbolder, Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive
Officer, Mr. Charles F. Willis]V, beneficially owned or had the ability to direct the voting of 2,744,219 shares of our
common stock, representing approximadpo ofthe outstanding share$ our common stock. As a result, Mkillis
effectively controls us and has the power to contest the outcome of substantially all matters submitted to our stockholders
for approval, including the election ofir board of directors. In addition, futurelea by Mr.Willis of substantial
amounts of our common stock, or the potential for such sales, could adversely affect the prevailing market price of our
common stock.

Our business might suffer if we were to lose the services of certain key employees.
Ourbusiness operations depend upon our key employees, including our executive officers. Loss of any of these

employees, particularly our Chief Executive Officer, could have a material adverse effect on our business as our key
employees have knowledge of andustry and customers and would be difficult to replace.
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We are the servicer and administrative agent for the WEST Il facility and our cash flows would be materially
and adversely affected if we were removed from these positions.

We are the servicer ardiministrative agent with respect to engines in the WEST Il facility. We receive
monthly fees of 11.5% as servicer and 2.0% as administrative agent of the aggregate net rents actually received by
WEST Il on its engines. We may be removed as servicer@mihistrative agent by the affirmative vote of a requisite
number of holders of the WEST Il facility notes upon the occurrence of certain specified events, including the following
events, subject to WEST Il following certain specified procedures and prguid certain cure rights as set forth in the
servicing agreement:

1 we fail to perform the requisite services set forth in the servicing agreement or administrative agent
agreement;

1 we fail to provide adequate insurance or otherwise materially and atjvaffect the rights of WEST II;
1 we cease to be engaged in the aircraft engine leasing business;
1 we become subject to an insolvency or bankruptcy proceeding, either voluntarily or involuntarily; and

1 we fail to maintain the following financial covenasdt forth in the Servicing Agreement: Maintain a
minimum consolidated earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization to interest ratio of
2.25t0-1.00

As of December 31, 2016, we were in compliance with the financial covenants set forth Bhere can be no
assurance that we will be in compliance with these covenants in the future or will not otherwise be terminated as service
or administrative agent for the WEST Il facility. If we are removed, our expenses would increase since oidiatemhsol
subsidiary, WEST II, would have to hire an outside provider to replace the servicer and administrative agent functions,
and we would be materially and adversely affected. Consequently, our business, financial condition, results of operations
and cab flows would be adversely affected.

Provisions in Delaware law and our charter and bylaws might prevent or delay a change of control.

Certain provisions of law, our amended certificate of incorporation, bylaws and amended rights agreement
could make théollowing more difficult: (1)an acquisition of us by means of a tender offer, a proxy contest or
otherwise, and (Zhe removal of incumbent officers and directors.

Our board of directors has authorized the issuance of shares of|Semés Participating Preferred Stock
pursuant to our amended rights agreement, by and between us and American Stock Transfer and Trust Company, as
rights agent. The rights agreement could makeoite difficult to proceed with and tend to discourage a mergeteten
offer or proxy contest. Our amended certificate of incorporation also provides that stockholder action can be taken only
at an annual or special meeting of stockholders and may not be taken by written consent and, in certain circumstances
relating to aquisitions or other changes in control, requires an 80% supermajority vote of all outstanding shares of our
common stock. Our bylaws also limit the ability of stockholders to raise matters at a meeting of stockholders without
giving advance notice.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our principal offices are located in Novato, California under a lease that covers 20,534 square feet of office
space. We sulease 7,124 square feet of office and warehouse space for our operations in San Diego, California. We
lease 30,000 square feetaffice and warehouse space in Boynton Beach, Flontla.lease 30,000 square feet of office
and warehouse spaceBnidgend, Wales, UKWe also lease facilities for sales and operations in London, UK;

Shanghai, China; Singapore; Blagnac, FraacelDublin, Ireland.
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

None.
ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of stockholders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal gear 201
PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT 6 S COMMON EQUI TY AND RELATED SHARE]I
MATTERS

The following information relates to our Common Stock, which is listed on the NASDAQ National Market
under the symbol WLFC. As of Maré& 2017 there were approximately@®)4 shareholdersf our Common Stdc

The high and low closing sales price of the Common Stock for each quartei6air20205, as reported by
NASDAQ, are set forth below:

2016 2015
High Low High Low
First Quarter $22.18 $17.55 $21.62 $17.96
Second Quarter 25.40 21.47 19.27 18.20
Third Quarter 2741 2213 1850 15.21
Fourth Quarter 2723 2354 20.27 15.18

During the years ended December 31,&814d 205, we did not pay cash dividends to our common
shareholders. We have not made any dividend payments to our common sharshuldayar inception as all available
cash has been utilized for the business. We have no intention of paying dividends on our common stock in the
foreseeable future. In addition, certain of our debt facilities contain negative covenants which protokit peying
any dividends or making distributions of any kind with respect to our common stock.

The following table outlines our Equity Compensation Plan Information.

Number of securities
remaining available for

Number of securitiesto be future issuanceunder
issuedupon exerciseof Weighted-averageexercise equity compensation
outstanding price of outstanding plans (excluding securities
Plan Category options,warrants andrights options, warrants and rights reflectedin column (a)
(@ (b) (©)
Plans Not Approved by Shareholders:
None n/a n/a n/a
Plans Approved by Shareholders:
Employee Stock Purchase Plan o} n/a 8,898
2007 Stock Incentive Plan 0 n/a 555,388
Total 0 n/a 564,286

The 207 Stock Incentive Plan was approved by shareholders. The 2007 Stock Incentive Plan authorized
2,000,000 shares of common stock. On May 28, 2015, the
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of shares o€Common Stock available for gralmy 800,000 shares bringing the total to 2,800,000 shares authorized.
2,400357 shares of restricted stock were granted under the 2007 Stock Incentive Plan by Decembé: 8X tBi31
amount, 15,745shares of restricted stock were cancelled and redumthe pool of shares which could be granted
under the 2007 Stock Incentive Plan resulting in a net numiEs5888 shares which were available as of December
31, 205 for future issuance under the 2007 Stock Incentive Plan.

On Septembe27, 2012, th&€ompany announced that its Board of Directors has authorized a plan to repurchase
up to $100.0 million of its common stock over the next 5 years. The Board of Directors reaffirmed the repurchase plan
on April 21, 2015. The repurchased shares are taoltbeeguently retired. During 261the Company repurchased
1,212,230shares totaling 3.0 million under our authorized plan. As of December 31 62€ie total number of
common shares outstanding was approximaedynillion.

Common stock repurchasemder our authorized plan, in the quarter ended December A w204 as
follows:

Approximate
Total Number of Dollar Value of
SharesPurchased  Sharesthat May
Total Number of  AveragePrice Paid asPart of Publicly  Yet be Purchased

Period SharesPurchased per Share AnnouncedPlans Under the Plans
(in thousands,exceptper share data)

October 82 $ 25.52 82 $ 34,735

November 32 26.47 32 33,884

December 40 25.46 40 32,886

Total 154 % 25.70 154 % 32,886
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table summarizes our selected consolidated financial data and operating information. The selected
consolidated financial and operating data should be read in conjunction with the Corngélidatesial Statements and

notes thereto and fAManagement 6s Discussion and Analysis

elsewhere in this Forrh0O-K.

Years Ended December31,
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
(dollars in thousands,exceptper sharedata)

Revenue:
Lease rentevenue $ 119,895 $ 108,046 $ 101,431 $ 101,737 $ 94,591
Maintenance reserve revenue 57,091 53,396 53,322 46,694 41,387
Spare partand equipment sales 17,783 25,582 8,917 o] o]
Gain on sale of leased equipment 3,482 8,320 5,882 5,675 5,499
Other revene 9,023 2,718 4,506 4,306 6,613

Total revenue 207,274 $ 198,062 174,058 158,412 148,090

Netincome 14,069 6,460 7,180 15,626 1,535

0.91
0.88

1.95
1.89

2.10
2.05

0.83
0.81

(0.45
(0.45

Basic earnings (loss) per common share
Diluted eanings (loss) per common share
Balance Sheet Data:

$ $ $ $
$ $ $ $ $
Net income (loss) attributable to common sharehol $ 13,780 $ 6,460 $ 7,180 $ 15626 $ (3,793
$ $ $ $ $
$ $ $ $ $

Total asset $ 1,337,887 $ 1,294,285 $ 1,245841 $ 1,199,228 $ 1,078,715

Debt $ 900,255 $ 866,089 $ 825498 $ 787,614 $ 696,988

Shareholdes 6 equi ty $ 196,260 $ 209,223 $ 216,648 $ 212,459 $ 199,163
Lease Portlio:

Engines at end of the period 208 201 207 202 184

Aircraft atend of the period 11 10 5 4 7

Spare parts packages at the end of the period 5 5 5 5 4

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENTO6S DI SCUSSI ON AND ANALYSI S OF FI NANCI A
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

OVERVIEW

Forward-Looking Statement3his Annual Report on Form0-K includes forwardooking statements within
the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Refd\ct of 1995. All statements other than statements of historical
fact, including statements regarding prospects or future results of operations or financial position, made in this Annual
Report on Forn10-K are forwardlooking. We use words such as aiftates, believes, expects, future, intends, and
similar expressions to identify forwatdoking statements. Forwaiddo o ki ng st at ements refl ect
expectations and are inherently uncertain. Actual results could differ materially foety wdnieasons, including,
among others: the effects on the airline industry and the global economy of events such as terrorist activity, changes in
oil prices and other disruptions to the world markets; trends in the airline industry, including grewthf naiarkets and
other economic factors; risks associated with owning and leasing jet engines and aircraft; our ability to successfully
negotiate equipment purchases, sales and leases, to collect outstanding amounts due and to control costs and expenses;
changes in interest rates and availability of capital, our ability to continue to meet the changing customer demands;
regulatory changes affecting airline operations, aircraft maintenance, accounting standards and taxes; and the market
value of engines another assets in our portfolio. These risks and uncertainties, as well as other risks and uncertainties

that could cause our actual results to differ signific
inltemlAof Partl , fRicstkors, 0o which, along with the previous di
that could cause actual results to differ significant/|
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Explanatory Note:Certain2015 and 2014mounts include adjustmentsprior periods see "Note 1. Summary
of Significant Accounting Policies (c) Correction of Immaterial ErroSonsolidated Financial Statements" for further
disclosure.

General Our core business is acquiring and leasiognmercial aircraft engines anelated aircraft equipment
pursuant to operating |l eases, and the selective sale of
As of December 31, 2015, all of our leases were operating leases. As of December 31, 2016, we hadi@0&ssees
countries. Our portfolio is continually changing due to acquisitions and sales. As of December 31, 2016, our lease
portfolio consisted of 208 engines and related equipment, 11 aircraftgpatesengine parts packages with an aggregate
net book vale of $1,136.6 million. As of December 31, 2016, we also mara4@shginesand related equipment on
behalf of other parties.

In 2016, we purchased, through our whol | WilsoAgseted subs
Managemert ) , i meslBuand assets of Tot al Engine Support Limit
and consulting business of the TES Aviation Group.

In 2013, we |l aunched Willis Aer on awunedsabsidiarySwhose i c e s , I
primary focus is the sale of aircraft engine parts and materials through the acquisition or consignment of aircraft and
engines from third parties.

On June 3, 2014 we entered into an agreement with China Aviation Supplies Import & Export Corporation
(ACASCIOo participate in a joint venture named CASC Wil Il
joint venture based in Shanghai, China. Each partner holds a fifty percent interest in the joint venture. In October 2014,
we made a $15.0 millioimitial capital contribution, representing our fifty percent;ftgmt funding contribution to the
new joint venture. The company acquires and leases jet engines to Chinese airlines and concentrates on meeting the fast
growing demand for leased commer@al r cr aft engines and aviation assets in
Willis owned a lease portfolio of 3 engines with a net book value of $49.1 million as of December 31, 2016. Our
investment in the joint venture is $12.9 million as of Decembe2@16. During 2016, CASC was reorganized, with
portions of its partnership interest in CASC Willis being transferred to three Chinese airlines and another gevernment
owned entity. The 2016 CASC reorganization resulted in no voting structure changejtintheenture.

On May25, 2011, we entered into an agreement with Migs@o., Ltd. to participate in a joint venture formed
as a Dublirbased Irish limited compary Willis Mitsui& Company Engi ne Support Limited
purpose of acquiring aneasing jet engines. Each partner holds a fifty percent interest in the joint venture. WMES owns
a lease portfolio of 30 engines with a net book value of $268.0 million at December 31, 2016.

We actively manage our portfolio and structure our leasestdmize the residual values of our leased assets.
Our leasing business focuses on popular Stage Il commercial jet engines manufactured by CFMI, General Electric,
Pratt& Whitney, Rolls Royce and International Aero Engines. These engines are the mégusgdiengines in the
world, powering Airbus, Boeing, McDonnell Douglas, Bombardier and Embraer aircraft.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of our consolidated financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgiéets tha
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates, including those related to residual values, estimated asset
lives, immirments and bad debts. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that
we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readilypparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different
assumptions or conditions.

28



We believe the following critical accounting policies, grouped by our activities, affect our more significant
judgments and estimates dsa the preparation of our consolidated financial statements:

Leasing Related ActivitieRevenue from leasing of aircraft equipment is recognized as operating lease revenue
on a straightine basis over the terms of the applicable lease agreementse Wdtleiction cannot be reasonably assured,
for example, upon a lessee bankruptcy, we do not recognize revenue until cash is received. We also estimate and charge
to income a provision for bad debts based on our experience in the business and with dacbuspemer and the
level of past due accounts. The financial condition of our customers may deteriorate and result in actual losses exceeding
the estimated allowances. In addition, any deterioration in the financial condition of our customers mayyaafiecs
future lease revenues. As of December 31, 2016 all of our engine leases are accounted for as operating leases. Under an
operating lease, we retain title to the leased equipment, thereby retaining the potential benefit and assuming the risk of
the residual value of the leased equipment.

We generally depreciate engines on a strdigktbasis over 15 years to a 55% residual value. Aircraft are
generally depreciated on a straidgine basis over 1-20 years to a 15%7% residual value. Spare [mpackages are
generally depreciated on a straidjne basis over 145 years to a 25% residual value. Major overhauls paid for by us,
which improve functionality or extend the original useful life, are capitalized and depreciated over the shorter of the
estimated period to the next over haul (Adeferral met hod
accrue for planned major maintenance. For equipment which is unlikely to be repaired at the end of its current expected
life, and is likelyto be disassembled upon lease termination, we depreciate the equipment over its estimated life to a
residual value based on an estimate of the wholesale value of the parts after disassembly. As of December 31, 2016, 56
engines and 6 aircraft having a nebk value of $126.1 million were depreciated under this policy with estimated useful
lives ranging from 1 to 124 months.

Asset ValuationLong-lived assets and certain identifiable intangibles to be held and used are reviewed for
impairment whenever evenbr changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the asset may not be
recoverable, and lonrlived assets and certain identifiable intangibles to be disposed of are reported at the lower of
carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell.

On a quarterly basis, management monitors the lease portfolio for events which may indicate that a particular
asset may need to be evaluated for potential impairment. These events may include a decisionttorpsell an asset,
knowledge of specifidl a mage t o an asset, or supply/ demand events w
asset in the future. On an annual basi s, even absent an;
assets in our lease portfolio to detameif any impairment exists, by performing an undiscounted cash flow test for each
asset.

Impairment is identified by comparison of undiscounted forecasted cash flows, including estimated sales
proceeds, over the |if e leflfthe forecasied snditcoumédicash flows are lass thanthé s b
book value, we write the asset down to its fair value. When evaluating for impairment, we group assets at the lowest
level for which identifiable cash flows are largely independent of the ft@ss of other assets and liabilities. In our
portfolio, this is at the individual asset level (e.g., engine or aircraft), as each asset generates its own stream of cash
flows, including lease rents, maintenance reserves and repair costs.

We must makeassumptions which underlie the most significant and subjective estimates in determining
whether any impairment exists. Those estimates, and the underlying assumptions, are as follows:

1 Fair valuei we determine fair value by reference to independent egtsaquoted market prices (e.g., an
offer to purchase) and other factors. We rely on leading accrediteeptirindappraisers for independent
appraisals of current fair value. These appraisers are engine/ aircraft experts and rely on current data from
airlines, engine manufacturers and Maintenance, Re
specific market sales and repair cost data in generating their appraisals.

1 Future cash flow$ when evaluating the future cash flows that an asset will generate, we make assumptions
regarding the lease market for specific engine models, including estimates of market lease rates and future
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demand. These assumptions are based lgase rates that we are obtaining in the current market as well
as our expectation of future demand for the specific engine/ aircraft model.

If the undiscounted forecasted cash flows and fair value of ouflived) assets decrease in the future we may
incur impairment charges.

Management continuously monitors the aviation industry and evaluates any trends, events or uncertainties
involving airlines, individual aircraft and engine models, as well as the engine leasing and sale market which would
materidly affect the methodology or assumptions employed by WLFC. We do not consider there to be any trends, events
or uncertainties that currently exist or that are reasonably likely to occur that would materially affect our methodology or
assumptions. Howeveshould any arise, we will adjust our methodology and our disclosure accordingly.

Spare parts inventory is stated at lower of cost or net realizable value. An impairment charge for excess or
inactive inventory is recorded based upon an analysis thatesssiurrent inventory levels, historical usage patterns,
future sales expectations and salvage value.

Accounting for Maintenance Expenditures and Maintenance Resbisedees received are recognized in
revenue as maintenance reserve revenue if theyoareimbursable to the lessee. Use fees that are reimbursable are
recorded as a maintenance reserve liability until they are reimbursed to the lessee or the lease terminates, at which time
they are recognized in revenue as maintenance reserve revenegap®uditures for maintenance are expensed as
incurred. Expenditures that meet the criteria for capitalization are recorded as an addition to equipment recorded on the
balance sheet.

Accounting for Maintenance Right8Ve identify, measure and accodiot maintenance right assets and
liabilities associated with acquisitions of equipment witipliace leases. A maintenance right asset represents the fair
value of the contractual right under a lease to receive equipment in an improved maintenance esnclitiopared to
the maintenance condition on the acquisition date. A maintenance right liability represents the Company's obligation to
pay the lessee for the difference between the leadecontractual maintenance condition of the equipment and the
actual maintenance condition of the equipment on the acquisition date. The equipment condition at the end of the lease
term may result in either overhaul work being performed by the lessee to meet the required return condition or a financial
settlement.

Whena capital event is performed on the equipment by the lessee, which satisfies their maintenance right
obligation, the maintenance rights are added to the equipment basis and depreciated to the next capital event. When
equipment is sold before the end loé fpreexisting lease, the maintenance rights are applied against any accumulated
maintenance reserves, if paid by the lessee, and the remaining balance is applied to the disposition gain or loss. When a
lease terminates, an end of lease-trpas perfomed and the maintenance right is applied against the accumulated
maintenance reserves or, for a@serve lessees the final settlement payment, and any remaining net maintenance right
is recorded in the income statement.
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YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 COMPARED TO THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Revenue is summarized as follows:

Years Ended December31,
2016 2015
Amount % Amount %
(dollars in thousands)
Lease rent revenue $ 119,895 57.8% $ 108,046 54.6%
Maintenance reserve revenue 57,091 27.5% 53,396 27.0%
Spare parts and equipment sales 17,783 8.6 % 25,582 12.9%
Gain on sale of leased equipment 3,482 1.7% 8,320 4.2%
Other revenue 9,023 4.4% 2,718 1.4%
Total revenue $ 207,274 100.0% $ 198,062 100.0%

Lease Rent Revenu@ur lease rent revenue for the year ended December 31, 2016 increased by 11.0% over the
comparable period in 201%his increase primarily reflects a higher average portfolio utilization in the current period,
which translated into higher percentage of lease rent revenue earning a3detsaggregate net book value of
equipment held for lease at December 31, 2016 and 2015, was $1,136.6 million and $1,109.2 million, respectively, an
increase of 2.5%. Portfolio utilization is definasl the net book value of #@ase assets as a percentage of the net book
value of total lease assets. As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, approximately 93% and 90%, respectively, of equipment
by net book value was dease. The average utilization for theay ended December 31, 2016 was 90% compared to
87% in the prior year. During the year ended December 31, 2016, 20 engines and 1 aircraft were added to our lease
portfolio at a total cost of $153.1 million (including capitalized costs). During the yeadddetembeBl, 201512
engines and 6 aircraft were added to our lease portfolio at a total cost of $172.7 million (including capitalized costs)

Maintenance Reserve RevenQ@eir maintenance reserve revenue for the year ended December 31, 2016
increased.9% to $57.1 million from $53.4 million for the comparable period in 20h8.increase was due to both
higher utilization, driving a ®.7 million increase in short term maintenance revematally offset by$2.0 million of
lower maintenance reservevenues related talower termination of long term leases in thearendedDecember 31
2016 than in the year ago period.

Spare Parts and Equipment Sal&pare parts and equipment sales for the year ended December 31, 2016 was
$17.8 million comparetb $25.6million in 2015. Euipment salesf $3.3million werefor the sale ofhreeairframes
during theyearendedDecember 312016. Equipment sales werg030million for the sale ofwo airframe one engine
and related equipmefdr the year endedd&ember 31, 2Bl Spare parts sales for the year ended December 31, 2016
were $45 million compared to $5.6 million in the comparable period in 2015.

Gain on Sale of Leased Equipmentiring the year ended December 31, 2016, we sold 7 enginesrangsva
enginerelated equipment from the lease portfolio for a net gain of $3.5 million. During the year ended D&&Ember
2015,we sold 8 engines and various engiakted equipment from the lease portfolio for a net gain & B8lion.

Other Revenuéur other revenue consists primarily of management fee income, lease administration fees and
third party consignment commissions earned by Willis Aero. Other revenue increased $6.3 million from the prior year
primarily due to recognizing revenue of $4.0lion of security payments for aircrafipon default of a lesseend $0.6
million foreign subsidy recognized in the period. The
resulting from our China subsidiary operating in the Shanfgbaitrade zone.

Depreciation and Amortization Expend$epreciation and amortization expense decreased $3.1 million or 4.5%
to $66.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2016, from the comparable period prid@drly due to changes in
portfolio mix associated with our ongoing portfolio management efforts.

Cost of Spare Parts and Equipment Safésst of spare parts and equipment sales for the year ended December

31, 2016 was $13.3 million a decrease of 25.5% from the comparable period in&t ®f equipment sales wag.8
million and %.7 million in the yearendedDecember 312016 and 2015, respectivelyost of spare parts sales for the
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year ended December 31, 2016 wet8.8million compared to $2.1 million in the comparable period in 2016ross
margin on spare parts sales for 2016 was 24.6% compap2d26é for 2015 primarily due to a change in the mix of
parts sold in 2016.

Write-down of EquipmeniVrite-down of equipment to their estimated fair values totaled $9.5 million for the
year ended December 31, 2016, an increase of $0.3 million from the $9.2 million recorded in the comparable period in
2015.A writedown of $5.5 million was recorded due to the adjustment of the carrying value for six impaired endine
one impaired aircrafwithin the portfolio to reflect estimated market value.fuRherwrite-down of equipment totaling
$2.0 million was recorded in thearendedDecember 312016 due to a management decision to consign one engine for
partout and sale, in whichtheatsé s net book value exceeded the estimated
million was recorded iyear ended December 32016 to adjust the carrying value of engine parts held on consignment
for which market conditions for the sale of parts tlasnged.

A write-down of equipment totaling $9.2 million was recorded in the year ended December 31, 2015. This
amount includes a writdown of equipment totaling $5.5 million due to a management decision to consign four engines
for partoutand sale,iwhi ch t he assetsdé net book val vaut Writedemvesbe d t he
held for use equipment to their estimated fair values totaled $0.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2015 due to an
adjustment of carrying values for cart impaired parts packages within the portfolio to reflect estimated market values.
A further writedown of $2.8 million was recorded in the year ended December 31, 2015 to adjust the carrying value of
engine parts for which market conditions for the sdilparts has changed. An additional widtgwn of $0.3 million
was recorded in the year ended December 31, 2015 based on a comparison of the inventory values with the revised net
proceeds expected from part sales.

General and Administrative Expens€eneral and administrative expenses increased 11.8% to $47.8 million
for the year ended December 31, 2016, from the comparable period in 2015 due primarily to increases in contingency
bonus ($3.1 million) resulting from improved operating results-{@xeearnings and utilization) as well as increases in
salary expense ($1.4 million) from increased headcount, and higher legal expenses ($1.0 million).

Technical Expensd echnical expenses consist of the cost of engine repairs, engine thrust rental fees,
outsourced technical support services, sublease engine rental expense, engine storage and freight costs. These expenses
decreased 25.6% to $7.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2016, from the comparable period in 2015 due
primarily to a decrease in eing maintenance costs due to reduced engine shop visits ($1.4 mdlicar)engine thrust
rental fees ($0.million), and lower engine technical services expense3(®dlion) due to decreased engine returns

Net Finance Costd\et finance costs includeterest expense and gain on debt extinguishment. Net finance
costs increased 9.0% to $41.3 million for 2016, from the comparable period in 2015, due primarily to higher average
debt balances in the current period compared to the year ago aedtie recording of a gain on debt extinguishment
of $1.2 million in the prior year period. The average notes payable balances for the years ended December 31, 2016 and
2015 were $892.4 million and $858.2 million, respectively, an increase of 4.0%. As of DeGdmp@t6, $619.7
million of our debt is tied to onmonth U.S. dollar LIBOR which increased from an average of 0.21% for 2015 to an
average of @5% for 2016 (average of montnd rates). At December 31, 2016 and 2015;r00eth LIBOR was
0.77% and 0.43%gespectively.

To mitigate exposure to interest rate changes, we periodically enter into interest rate swap agreements. As of
December 31, 20168uch swap greement had a notional outstanding amount of $100.0 million, with a remaining term
of 52 monthsNo interest rate swap agreements existed duhiag/ear ended December 31130

Income Taxedncome tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2016, increased to $9.9 millidh3rom $
million for the comparable period in 2015. The effective tax fi@t¢he years ended December 31, 2016 and December
31, 2015 were 41.2% and 4%, respectively.This decrease was due to lower forecasted permanestauhurctible
expenses for executive compensation (IRS code 162(m) calculatidrghanges in the propiors of revenue generated
within and outside of Californiduring theyearendedDecember 3, 2016.
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Our tax rate is subject to change based on changes in the mix of assets leased to domestic and foreign lessees,
the proportions of revenue generatathin and outside of California, the amount of executive compensation exceeding
$1.0 million as defined in IRS code 162(m) and numerous other factors, including changes in tax law.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 COMPARED TO THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 204

Revenue is summarized as follows:

Years Ended December31,
2015 2014
Amount % Amount %
(dollars in thousands)
Lease rent revenue $ 108,046 54.6% $ 101,431 58.3%
Maintenance reserve revenue 53,396 27.0% 53,322 30.6%
Spare parts and equipment sales 25,582 12.9% 8,917 5.1%
Gain on sale of leased equipment 8,320 4.2% 5,882 3.4%
Other revenue 2,718 1.4% 4,506 2.6%
Total revenue $ 198,062 100.0% $ 174,058 100.0%

Lease Rent Revenu@ur lease rent revenue for the year ended December 31, 2015 increassfd byeg.the
comparable period in 2014. This increase primarily reflects an increase in the average size of the lease portfolio and
higher average portfolio ilization in the current period, which translated into a higher amount of equipment on lease.

The aggregate of net book value of equipment held for lease at December 31, 2015 and 20140%vasniiligh and

$1,066.4 million, respectively, an increasetd¥. Portfolio utilization is defined as the net book value ofease

assets as a percentage of the net book value of total lease assets. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, approximately 90%
and 79%, respectively, of equipment by net book value wdsase. The average utilization for the year ended

December 31, 2014 was 87% compared to 83% in the prior year. During the year ended December 31, 2015, 12 engines
and 6 aircraft were added to our lease portfolio at a total cost of $172.7 million (incbaghitalized costs). During the

year ended Decemb8di, 2014, 21 engines and one aircraft were added to our lease portfolio at a total cost of $137.4

million (including capitalized costs).

Maintenance Reserve RevenQeir maintenance reserve revenue ligryear ended December 31, 2015
increased.1% to $53.4 million from $533 million for the comparable period in 2014. The increase was due to higher
maintenance reserves billed reflecting increased usage of engines under lease resulting from higiventdzatadn
in 2015 compared to 2014.

Spare Parts and Equipment Sal8pare parts and equipment sales for the year ended December 31, 2015 was
$25.6 million compared to $8.9 million in 2014. The increase was due to the sale of two airframes aethteder
equipment in the current period related to recent aircraft purchases as well as growth in spare parts sales due to an
increase in inventory acquisitions in late 2014 at Willis Aero.

Gain on Sale of Leased Equipmentiring the year endddecember 31, 2015, we sold 8 engines and sold
various engineelated equipment from the lease portfolio for a net gain of $8.3 million. During the year ended
DecembeBl, 2014, we sold 7 engines, exchanged 2 engines and sold variousrefagat equipmerfrom the lease
portfolio for a net gain of $5.9 million.

Other Revenuéur other revenue consists primarily of management fee income, lease administration fees and
third party consignment commissions earned by Willis Aero. Other revenue decreasedll&h8rom the prior year
primarily due to a decrease in fees earned related to engines managed on behalf of third parties and lower commissions
on third party spare parts sales.

Depreciation and Amortization Expendepreciation and amortization exgenincreased $4.1 million or 6.3%
to $694 million for the year ended December 31, 2015, from the comparable period in 2014 due to growth in the lease
portfolio and changes in estimates of useful lives and residual values on certain older engine types.
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Cost of Spare Parts and Equipment Safésst of spare parts and equipment sales for the year ended December
31, 2015 was $18.million an increase of 188% from the comparable period in 2014. Gross margin on spare parts
sales for 2015 was 22.4% compated.6.2% for 2014 primarily due to a change in the mix of parts sold in 2015. Cost
of equipment sales increased to $5.7 million in 2015 from Nil in 2014 due to the sale two airframes and other related
equipment in 2015 related to recent aircraft purchases

Write-down of EquipmeniVrite-down of equipment to their estimated fair values totaled $9.2 million for the
year ended December 31, 2015, an increase of $3.6 million from the $5.6 million recorded in the comparable period in
2014.A write-down of equipnent totaling $5.5 million was recorded in the year ended December 31, 2015 due to a
management decision to consign four engines forpartt and sal e, in which the assets:
estimated proceeds from panit. Writedowns on helddr use equipment to their estimated fair values totaled $0.6
million for the year ended December 31, 2015 due to an adjustment of carrying values for certain impaired parts
packages within the portfolio to reflect estimated market values. A furtherdenita of $2.8 million was recorded in
the year ended December 31, 2015 to adjust the carrying value of engine parts for which market conditions for the sale of
parts has changed. An additional waitewn of $0.3 million was recorded in the year ended Deeefdb, 2015 based
on a comparison of the inventory values with the revised net proceeds expected from part sales.

A write-down of equipment totaling $5.6 million was recorded in the year ended December 31, 2014. This
amount includes a writdown of equiprent totaling $2.6 million due to a management decision to consign six engines
forpartout and sale, in which the assetsd ne-butWiotedewnyoml ue e x
held for use equipment to their estimated fair valuededt$2.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2014, due to
the adjustment of carrying values for certain impaired engines within the portfolio to reflect estimated market values. A
further writedown of $0.6 million was recorded in the year ended Déegr@1, 2014 to adjust the carrying value of
engine parts for which market conditions for the sale of parts has changed.

General and Administrative Expens&eneral and administrative expenses increased 19.2% to $42.7 million
for the year ended Decemi&t, 2015, from the comparable period in 2014 due primarily to increases in contingency
bonus ($2.5 million) resulting from improved operating results-{@xesarnings and utilization) as well as increases in
salary expense ($1.6 million), corporate aifcexpense ($1.4 million), bad debt expense ($0.7 million), stock based
compensation ($0.6 million) and other selling expenses ($0.5 million), which was partially offset by lower legal
expenses ($0.7 million).

Technical Expensd@ echnical expenses considtthe cost of engine repairs, engine thrust rental fees,
outsourced technical support services, sublease engine rental expense, engine storage and freight costs. These expenses
decreased 23.8% to $9.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2015, éroontparable period in 2014 due
primarily to a decrease in engine maintenance costs due to lower engine repair activity ($3.6anillidagreased
engine storage fees ($0.2 million), which was partially offset by higher thrust rental fees due tozee iimctiee number
of engines operated at higher thrust levels under the CFM thrust rental program ($0.5 million) and increased third party
technical service fees ($0.3 million).

Net Finance Costd\et finance costs include interest expense and gain dreétguishment. Net finance
costs increased 2.2% to $37.9 million for 2015, from the comparable period in 2014, due primarily to higher average
debt balances in the current period compared to the year ago period partially offset by the recordingmf dedati
extinguishment of $1.2 million in the current period. The average notes payable balances for the years ended December
31, 2015 and 2014 were $878.7 million and $769.2 million, respectively, an increase of 14.2%. As of December 31,
2015, $562.1 iHion of our debt is tied to onenonth U.S. dollar LIBOR which increased from an average of 0.16% for
2014 to an average of 0.21% for 2015 (average of menthrates). At December 31, 2015 and 2014;masth
LIBOR was 0.43% and 0.17%, respectively. Titigate exposure to interest rate changes, we periodically enter into
interest rate swap agreements. Our previous interest rate swap agreements matured in November 2013. For 2014,
interest expense was reduced by $0.5 million resulting from interestvaps.s

Income Taxedncome tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2015, increased to $6.3 million from $4.6
million for the comparable period in 2014. The effective tax rate for the years ended December 31, 2015 and December
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31, 2014 were 49.4% an®.8%, respectively. This increase was primarily due to the impact of state and foreign taxes
and the IRS code 162(m) calculation for executive compensation during the year ended December 31, 2015. Our tax
rate is subject to change based on change&imtk of assets leased to domestic and foreign lessees, the proportions of
revenue generated within and outside of California, the amount of executive compensation exceeding $1.0 million as
defined in IRS code 162(m) and numerous other factors, inclutisgges in tax law.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In January 2017, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update
("ASU") 2017-04, Intangibles Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Simplifying the Test for Goodwilpairment, which
eliminates the requirement to determine the fair value of individual assets and liabilities of a reporting unit to measure
goodwill impairment. Under the amendments in the new ASU, goodwill impairment testing will be performed by
comparirg the fair value of the reporting unit with its carrying amount and recognizing an impairment charge for the
amount by which the carrying amount exceeds the reporti
and interim goodwill impairme tests in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019, and should be applied on a
prospective basis. Early adoption is permitted for annual or interim goodwill impairment testing performed after January
1, 2017. The Company is currently evaluatingithpact of adopting this guidance.

In November 2016, the FASB issued ASU 241, Restricted Cash, which requires amounts generally
described as restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents be included with cash and cash equivalents when reconciling
the total beginning and ending amounts for the periods shown on the statement of cash flows. AG%Jig@ffective
for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018 (including interim periods within those periods) using a retrospective
transition methodo each period presented. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting this guidance.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 260% CompensationStock Compensation (Topic 718):
Improvements to Employee ShaBased Payment Accounting. Thandard is intended to simplify several areas of
accounting for sharbased compensation arrangements, including the income tax impact, classification on the statement
of cash flows and forfeitures. ASU 2008 is effective for fiscal years, and interpariods within those years,
beginning after December 15, 2016, and early adoption is permitted. Althrough early adoption is permitted, we will
adopt these provisions prospectively in the first quarter of fiscal 2017. These changes will impact ouidiax pcagh
flows from operating activities and cash flows from financing activities. We will continue to estimate forfeitures each
period, so there will be no change associated with forfeitures. Excess tax benefits and deficiencies are heavily impacted
by factors outside of our control such as the number of stock options exercised and the market price of our stock.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2@5 Leaseqtopic 842) The FASB issued this update to increase
transparency and comparability ang organizations by recognizing lease assets and lease liabilities on the balance sheet
and disclosing key information about leasing arrangements. The updated guidance is effective for annual periods
beginning after December 15, 2018, including interimqas within those fiscal years. Early adoption of the update is
permitted. The Companys evaluating the impact dfie adoption of this update on our consolidated financial statements
and related disclosures.

In July 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015 ,Smplifying the Measurement of Inventory, which simplifies the
measurement of inventory by requiring certain inventory to be measured at the lower of cost or net realizable value. The
amendments in this ASU are effective for fiscal years beginning aftenibecel5, 2017 and for interim periods therein.

We are evaluating the impact that this new guidance will have on our consolidated financial position.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2008, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, which supersedes
previousrevenue recognition guidance. The new standard requires that a company recognize revenue when it transfers
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the company expects to receive in
exchange for those goods @nrgces. Companies will need to use more judgment and estimates than under the guidance
currently in effect, including estimating the amount of variable revenue to recognize over each identified performance
obligation. Additional disclosures will be reged to help users of financial statements understand the nature, amount
and timing of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts. In July 2016, the FASB deferred the effective date for
annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017 (includargn reporting periods within those periods).
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Early adoption is permitted to the original effective date of periods beginning after December 15, 2017 (including

interim reporting periods within those periods). The amendments may be applied retregptctach prior period

presented or retrospectively with the cumulative effect recognized as of the date of initial application. While we have not
completed our assessment of the new revenue recognition standard, we currently expect that this neéwiitantar

have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

We finance our growth through borrowings secured by our equipment lease portfolio. Cash of approximately
$149.0million, $192.7million and $54.4million, in the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015, and 2014, respectively,
was derived from this borrowing activity. Also in 2016 we generated $19.8 million of cash from the sale of preferred
stock. In these same time pericisl4.Omillion, $153.8million and $.01.1million, respectively, was used to pay down
related debt. Cash flow from operating activities generdi®®d.9million, $107.4 million and$62.8million in the years
ended December 31, 2016, 2015, and 2014, respectively.

At December 31, @16, $4.6 million in cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash were held in foreign
subsidiaries. We do not intend to repatriate the funds held in foreign subsidiaries to the United States. In the event that
we decide to repatriate these funds to tinétéd States, we would be required to accrue and pay taxes upon the
repatriation.

Our primary use of funds is for the purchase of equipment for lease. Purchases of equipment (including
capitalized costs) totale®il 73.7million, $174.8million and$119.0million for the years ended December 31, 2016,
2015, and 2014, respectively.

During 2016, we made $0.6 million of capital contributions to our investment in WMES and received $1.3
million in distributions. During 2015, we made additional capital contribos of $2.6 million to our investment in
WMES.

On June 3, 2014 we entered into an agreement with China Aviation Supplies Import & Export Corporation
(ACASCO) to participate in a joint venture Wianeds 0QASG W
joint venture based in Shanghai, China. Each partner holds a fifty percent interest in the joint venture. In October 2014,
we made a $15.0 million initial capital contribution, representing our fifty percesitpnpfunding contributia to the
new joint venture. The company acquires and leases jet engines to Chinese airlines and concentrates on meeting the fast
growing demand for | eased commerci al aircraft engines a
Willis owneda lease portfolio of 3 engines with a net book value of $49.1 million as of December 31, 2016. Our
investment in the joint venture is $12.9 million as of December 31, 2016. During 2016, CASC was reorganized, with
portions of its partnership interest in CBSVillis being transferred to three Chinese airlines and another government
owned entity. The 2016 CASC reorganization resulted in no voting structure change to the joint venture.

Cash flows from operations are driven significantly by payments made omdierase agreements, which
comprise lease revenue, security deposits and maintenance reserves, and are offset by interest expense and general and
administrative costs. Cash received as maintenance reserve payments for some of our engines on I&alg are par
restricted by our debt arrangements. The lease revenue stream, in tHershad at fixed rates while a portion of our
debt is at variable rates. If interest rates increase, it is unlikely we could increase lease rates in the short term and thi
would cause a reduction in our earnings and operating cash flows. Revenue and maintenance reserves are also affected
by the amount of equipment off lease. Approximately 93% and 90%, by book value, of our assetslease as of
December 31, 2016 and Bmmber31, 2015, respectively. The average utilization rate for the year ended December 31,
2016 was 90% compared to 87% a year ago. If there is an increasdeasaffrates or deterioration in lease rates that are
not offset by reductions in interesteg, there will be a negative impact on earnings and cash flows from operations.

At December 31, 2016, notes payable consists of loans to&8D@ 3million payable over periods of
approximatelyl.Oyears to7.5 years with interest rates varying betwegproximately % and 5.5%. Substantially all
of our assets are pledged to secure our obligations to creéfitorirther information on our debt instruments, see the
"Notes PayableNote4 in Part I, Item 8 ofthis Form 16K.
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Virtually all of the dove debt requires our ongoing compliance with the covenants of each financing, including
debt/equity ratios, minimum tangible net worth and minimum interest coverage ratios, and other eligibility criteria
including customer and geographic concentratistrictions. In addition, under these facilities, we can typically borrow
up to 85% of an engineb6és net book value and 65% of spar
funds for the balance of the purchase price of any new equigmbatpurchased or we will not be permitted to draw on
these facilities. The facilities are also crolefaulted against other facilities. If we do not comply with the covenants or
eligibility requirements, we may not be permitted to borrow additionaldand accelerated payments may become
necessary. Additionally, much of the above debt is secured by engines to the extent that engines are sold, repayment of
that portion of the debt could be required.

At December 31, 2016, we are in compliance withcineenants specified in the revolving credit facility,
including the Interest Coverage Ratio requirement of at least 2.25 to 1.00, and the Total Leverage Ratio requirement to
remain below 4.25 to 1.00. As defined in the revolving credit facility Creditéxgeat, the Interest Coverage Ratio is
the ratio of Earnings before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization and othien@obarges (EBITDA) to
Consolidated Interest Expense and the Total Leverage Ratio is the ratio of Total Indebtednessl®oNetrigibrth. At
December 31, 2016, we are in compliance with the covenants specified in the WEST Il indenture and servicing
agreement.

Approximately $23.6 million of our debt is repayable during 2017. Such repayments primarily consist of
scheduled instaments due under term loans. Repayments are funded by the use of unrestricted cash reserves and from
cash flows from ongoing operations. The table below summarizes our contractual commitments at December 31, 2016:

Paymentdue by period (in thousands)

Lessthan More than
Total 1Year 1-3Years 3-5Years 5 Years
Long-term debt obligations $ 913,703 $ 23,624 $ 56,725 $ 654,298 $ 179,056
Interest payments under loterm debbligations 130,571 39,100 62,189 21,876 7,406
Operating lease obligations 2,939 1,628 1,311 d d
Total $ 1,047,213 $ 64,352 $ 120,225 $ 676,174 $ 186,462

We have estimated the interest payments due undetdomgdebt by applying the interest rates applieal
December 31, 2016 to the remaining debt, adjusted for the estimated debt repayments identified in the table above.
Actual interest payments made will vary due to changes in the rates fararib LIBOR.

The following table lists our properties atikir remaining lease commitments:

Lease Remaining Lease
Location Property Type Expiration Commitment
(in thousands)
Novato, California Principal Office 09/30/18 $ 932
Boynton Beach, Florida Warehouse and office 10/29/19 822
San Diego, California Warehouse and office 10/31/19 481
Bridgend, WalesUnited Kingdom Warehouse and office 10/31/17 368
Singapore Office 12/31/17 102
Shanghai, China Office 12/31/17 86
Shanghai, China Warehouse 07/31/17 4
Dublin, Ireland Office 05/15/17 12
London, United Kingdom Office 11/18/18 116
Blagnac, France Office 12/31/17 16
Total $ 2,939

We believe our equity base, internally generated funds and existing debt facilities are sufficient to maintain our
level of operations through 2017. A decline in the level of internally generated funds could result if the amount of
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equipment offlease inceases or there is a decrease in availability under our existing debt facilities or there is a
significant stepup in borrowing costs, would impair our ability to sustain our level of operationgowtaue tadiscuss
additions to our capital base with aommercial and investment banks. If we are not able to access additional capital,
our ability to continue to grow our asset base consistent with historical trends will be impaired and our future growth
limited to that which can be funded from internalgngrated capital.

Management of Interest Rate Exposure

At December 31, 2016, $619.7 million of our borrowings were on a variable rate basis at various interest rates
tied to onemonth LIBOR. Our equipment leases are generally structured at fixed ae&wfor specified terms.
Increases in interest rates could narrow or result in a negative spread, between the rental revenue we realize under our
leases and the interest rate that we pay under our borrowifegsave entered intaterest rate derivativiastrumensto
mitigate our exposure to interest rate risk and not to speculate or trade in these derivative frodogt2016, ve
entered into oneterest rate swap agreement whick hational outstanding amouwit $100.0 million, with remaining
term of52 months. The fair value of the swap at December 316 @@k $8,000representing a netssefor us.

We record derivative instruments at fair value as either an asset or liability. We have used derivative instruments
(primarily interest rate swaps) to manage the risk of interest rate fluctuation. While substantially all our derivative
transactions are esred into for the purposes described above, hedge accounting is only applied where specific criteria
have been met and it is practicable to do so. In order to apply hedge accounting, the transaction must be designated as a
hedge and the hedge relationshipp st be highly effective. The hedging inst
regression analysis at the inception of the hedge and on at least a quarterly basis throughout its life. All of the
transactions that we have designated as hedgescmended for asash flow hedgesThe effective portion of the gain
or loss on a derivative instrument designated as a cash flow hedge is reported as a component of other comprehensive
income and is reclassified into earnings in the period during whidinahgaction being hedged affects earnings. The
ineffective portion of these hedges flows through earnings in the current period. The hedge accounting for these
derivative instrument arrangements increased (decreased) interest expense by $25,000($Nif emlion) for the
years ended December 31, 2016, December 31, 2015 and De@&mBei4, respectively. This incremental cost
(benefit) for the swaps effective for hedge accounting was included in interest expense for the respective periods.

For anyinterest rate swaps that we enter into, we will be exposed to risk in the eventgdrfanmance of the
interest rate hedge countearties. We anticipate that we may hedge additional amounts of our floating rate debt in the
future.

Related Party Transactions

Stock Buybacks

On April 1, 2016, in a transaction approved by a Special Committee of the Board of Directors, the Company
purchased 60,000 shares of its common stock directly fr.
Thepuchse price was $20.59 per share, the closing price o

On December 8, 2016, in a transaction approved by a Special Committee of the Board of Directors, the
Company purchased 40,080ares of its commonstodki r ect |y from the Companyés Chief
F. Willis. The purchase price was $24 9% sharea 2% discounttd he ¢l osing price of the Col
as of December 8, 2016 of $25.46.

WMES
Ot her revenueo tatemertdf mco@eintladed madagementfeeSearned of $2.1 million,

$1.7 million and $2.0 million during the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively, related to the
servicing of engines for the WMES lease portfolio.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATI VE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Our primary market risk exposure is that of interest rate risk. A change in LIBOR rates would affect our cost of
borrowing. Increases in interest rates, which may cause us to raise the implicit rated tthatgecustomers, could
result in a reduction in demand for our leases. Alternatively, we may price our leases based on market rates so as to keep
the fleet orlease and suffer a decrease in our operating margin due to interest costs that we are pasbl@tto our
customers. As of December 31, 2016, $619.7 million of our outstanding debt is variable rate debt. We estimate that for
every one percent increase or decrease in interest rate, the annual interest expense for our variable rate debt, would
increase or decrease $5.2 million (in 2015, $5.6 million).

We hedge a portion of our borrowings from time to time, effectively fixing the rate of these borrowings. This
hedging activity helps protect us against reduced margins on longer term fixed rateBlassdsn the implied forward
rates for onenonth LIBOR we expect interest expense willibereased by approximatel¥) & million for the year
ending December 31, 20As a result of our hedges. Such hedging activities may limit our ability to participate in the
benefits of any decrease in interest rates, but may also protect us from increases in interest rates. Furthermore, since leas
rates tend to vary with interestte levels, it is possible that we can adjust lease rates for the effect of change in interest
rates at the termination of leases. Other financial assets and liabilities are at fixed rates

We are also exposed to currency devaluation risk. During the gaded December 31, 2016, 2015, and 2014,
respectively, 89%, 92% and 88% of our total lease rent revenues came frasnitesh States domiciled lessees. All of
our | eases require payment in U.S. d o B.lddlar,ghe ledsdfes couide s e | e
potentially encounter difficulty in making their lease payments.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
The information required by this item is submitted as a separate section of this report beginningdén page

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

(a) Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedusa s ed on management 6s evaluat.
of our Chief Executive Office(CEQO) andChief Financial Officer (CFQ)), as of the end of the period covered by this
report, our CEO and CFO have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined3aFi(exnd
15d-15(e)under the Securis Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act)), are effective to provide
reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed by us in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange
Act is recorded, processed, summarized, and repuaiithth the time periods specified in SEC rubes forms, and is
accumulated and communicated to management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer,
as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Inherent Limitations on Controls

Managemat, including the CEO an@FO, does not expect that our disclosure controls and procedures will
prevent or detect all error and fraud. Any control system, no matter how well designed and operated, is based upon
certain assumptions and can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that its objectives wHurthereho
evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that misstatements due to error or fraud will not occur or that all
control isses and instances of fraud, if any, within the Company have been detébdesign of a control system
must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their
costs.
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Ma n a g e me ntordlsternBl €pntrol over Financial Reportingdur management is responsible for
establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined ib3adled) and 15d
15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. i@tarnal control over financial reporting includes policies and
procedures that: (gdertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect our
transactions and dispositions of assetsp(byide reasonable assucarthat transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and that our
receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance with authorizationmahagement and Board of
Directors; and (cjprovide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use
or disposition of our assets that could have a material effect on our financial statements. Our imeohaiver
financial reporting is a process designed with the participation of our principal executive officer and principal financial
officer or persons performing similar functions to provide reasonable assurance to our management and board of
directorsregarding the reliability of financial reporting and preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounted principles.

Our management assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over firgueiitig as of December 31,

2016. In making this assessment, we used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COS®) Internal Controtintegrated Framework (2013Based on this assessment our
managenent believes that, as of December 31,&@uUr internal control over financial reporting is effective under those
criteria.

KPMG LLP, the independent registered public account.i
included in this Anna | Report, i ssued an audit report on the Compar
KPMG6s audit repdrt appears on page

(b) Changes in internal control over financial reportinthere has been no change in our internal control over
financialreporting during our fourth fiscal quarter ended December 318 @@t has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None
PART III
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

We have adopted a Standards of Ethical Conduct Pdhiefi(Code of Et hicso) that appl
directors including our Chief Executive Officé&tresidentand Chief Financial Officer. The Code ohlgss is filed in
Exhibit 14.1 and is also available on our website at www.willislease.com.

The remainder of the information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our Proxy Statement.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information requéd by this item is incorporated by reference to our Proxy Statement.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our Btatgment. The information in
Item 5 of this report regarding our Equity Compensation Plans is incorporated herein by reference.
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ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS
The information required by this item is incorporated by referenoern®roxy Statement.
ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

We were billed the following amounts by our principal accountant:

2016 2015
Audit fees $ 1,417,10C $ 1,228,632
Tax fees 38,051 43,640
Total $ 1,455,151 $ 1,272,272

The remaining information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our Proxy Statement.
PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) (1) Financial Statements
The response to this portion lbém 15 is submitted as a separate section of this report beginning of6page

(a) (2) Financial Statement Schedule
Schedule I, Parent Company Financial Statements, and Schedule Il, Valuation Accounts, is submitted as a separate

section of this reportarting on pag8&1.

All other financial statement schedules have been omitted as the required information is not pertinent to the
Registrant or is not material or because the required information is included in the Financial Statements and Notes

thereto.

(a) (3), (b)and (c): Exhibits: The response to this portion of Iltem 15 is submitted below.
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Exhibit
Number

EXHIBITS

Description

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

4.4

10.1

10.2

10.c

10.4

10.7

108

109*

10.10*

Certificate of Incorporation, dated Mard®, 1998, as amended by the Certificate of Amendmen
Certificate of Incorporation, dated May;, 1998 (incorporated by reference to Exhidit to our
report on FormlO-K filed on March 31, 2009).

Bylaws, dated April 18, 2001 as amended by (1) Amendment to Bylaws, dated November 13,
(2) Amendmento Bylaws, dated December 16, 2008, (3) Amendment to Bylaws, dated Septer
28, 2010, (4) Amendment to Bylaws, dated August 5, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhi
to our report on Form & filed on August 9, 201,3nd (5) Amendment to Bylawdated October 7,
2016 (incorporated by reference to Exhibid.1 to our report on Form-& filed on October 18, 201
Rights Agreement dated as of SeptemBédr 1999, by and between Willis Lease Finance Corpor
and American Stock Transfer andi§irCompany, as Rights Agent (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit4.1 to our report on Form-K filed on Octobed, 1999).

Second Amendment to Rights Agreement dated as of Decefrther005, by and between Willis
Lease Finance Corporation and AmaniStock Transfer and Trust Company, as Rights Agent
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit5 to our report on Formd0-K filed on March 31, 2009).
Third Amendment to Rights Agreement dated as of SepterBBeR008, by and between Willis Le
Finance Corporation and American Stock Transfer and Trust Company, as Rights Agent (incc
by reference to Exhibit.6 to our report on Form0-K filed on March 31, 2009).

Formof Certificate of Designations of the Registrant with respect eoSleried Junior Participating
t NEBFSNNBR {201 6 7F12NWERNX 2N tyI2MIyA O &L SWA St
reference to Exhibi#.7 to our report on FormlO-K filed on March 31, 2009).

Formof Amendment Nol to Certificateof Designations of the Registrant with respect to Sdries
Junior Participating Preferred Stock (incorporated by reference to Exh#bio our report on
Form10-K filed on March 31, 2009).

Formof Indemnification Agreement entered into between tRegistrant and its directors and
officers (incorporated by reference to Exhitt@@.1 to our report on ForrB8-K filed on Octobet,
2010).

1996 Stock Option/Stock Issuance Plan, as amended and restated as ofIM26€I8 (incorporated
by referenceo Exhibit99.1 to Forns8 filed on Septembe26, 2003).

'YSYRSR IyR wS&aGlFIGSR wnnt {201 LYyOSyGAdS
Proxy Statement for 2015 Annual Meeting of Stockholders filed on 2§r015).

Amendedand Restated Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Charles F. Willis
dated as of Decembdr, 2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit.1 to our report on Forr8-K
filed on DecembeR2, 2008).

Employment Agreement between the Registt and Donald A. Nunemaker dated NovemBgy
2000 (incorporated by reference to Exhithd.3 to our report on Form0-K filed on ApriR, 2001).
Amendment to Employment Agreement between Registrant and Donald A. Nunemaker dated
Decembef31, 2008incorporated by reference to Exhildi0.6 to our report on Form0-Q filed on
May9, 2011).

Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Scott B. Flaherty dated May 20, 2016
(incorporated by reference to ExhildiD.1 to our report on Forr8-K fied on May 25, 2016).
Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Dean M. Poulakidas dated March 31, 20
(incorporated by reference to Exhildi0.23 to our report on Forr8-K filed on Juné&9, 2013).
Indenture dated as of Septembéd,2012 among Willis Engine Securitization Trust Il, Deutsche
Trust Company Americas, as trustee, the Registrant and Crédit Agricole Corporate and Invest
Bank (incorporated by reference to Exhib@.14 to our report on Forrh0-Q filed on Novembe®,
2012).

Security Trust Agreement dated as of Septenib&r2012 by and among Willis Engine Securitiza
Trust I, Willis Engine Securitization (Ireland) Limited, the Engine Trusts listed on Schedule V
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10.11*

10.12*

10.13

10.1&

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.22

111
12.1
14.1

21.1
23.1
31.1

31.2

32
101.IN!
101.SC

101.CA
101.DE

each of the additional grantors reffred to therein and from time to time made a party thereto an
Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibio
our report on Forml0-Q filed on Novembe®, 2012).

Note Purchase Agreement dated asSefptembel6, 2012 by and among Willis Engine Securitizat
Trust 11, the Registrant, Credit Agricole Securities (USA) Inc. and Goldmarg Eacl{corporated
by reference to Exhibit0.16 to our report on Forrhi0-Q filed on Novembe®, 2012).

Servicing Agreement dated as of Septembér2012 between Willis Engine Securitization Trust
the Registrant and the entities listed on Appendix A thereto (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit10.17 to our report on Forrh0-Q filed on Novembe®, 20D).

Administrative Agency Agreement dated as of Septenii¥er2012 among Willis Engine
Securitization Trust Il, the Registrant, Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as trustee, al
entities listed on Appendix A thereto (incorporated figference to Exhibil0.18 to our report on
Form10-Q filed on Novembe®, 2012).

Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of April 20, 2016, among the Comp
MUFG Union Bank, N.A. as administrative agent and security agent, daih egher lenders and
financial institutions named thereitincorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to our report on |
10-Q filed on August 16, 2016).

Employment Agreement between the Company and Brian R. Hole dated January 14, 2016
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our report on For fled on February 16, 2016).
Employment Agreement between the Company and Austin C. Willis dated February 9, 2016
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to our report on F&#filed on February 16, 2016).
Trust Amendment No. 2 dated as of September 9, 2016 to Amended and Restated Trust Agre
of Willis Engine Securitization Trust Il dated as of September 14, 2012 (incorporated by refere
Exhibit 10.1 to oureport on Form & filed September 20, 2016).

General Supplement 2016 dated as of September 9, 2016 to Trust Indenture dated as of
September 14, 2012 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to our report on F&riiledl
September 20, 2016).

Series A Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of October 11, 2016 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our report on FornK&iled October 18, 2016).

Amended and Restated Certificate of Designations, PreferencefRelative Rights and Limitation
of Series A Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock dated as of October 13, 2016 (incorpora
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to our report on ForrK&iled October 18, 2016).

Certificate Eliminating Series | JuniortRgpating Preferred Stock of Willis Lease Finance
Corporation dated as of October 7, 2016 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to our rept
Form 8K filed October 18, 2016).

Statement re Computation of Per Share Earnings.

Statementre Computation of Ratios.

Code of Ethics (incorporated by reference to ExHiBitl to our report on Formh0-K filed on
March11, 2016).

Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

Consent of KPMG LLP.

Certification of Charles WVillis, IV, pursuant to Sectioh350 as adopted pursuant to Sectid@?2 of
the Sarbane®xley Act of 2002.

Certification of Scott B. Flaherty, pursuant to Secti@50 as adopted pursuant to Secti8@2 of the
SarbanegOxley Act of 2002.

Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Secti@%0, as adopted pursuant to Secti®@6 of the Sarbane
Oxley Act of 2002.

XBRL Instance Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase
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101.LAI  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels Linkbase
101.PR XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase

*  Confidential treatment has been requested for certain portions of this exhibit.pbnéses have been omitted and
filed separately with the SEC.

(d) Financial Statements

Financial Statements are submitted as a separate section of this report beginningd®n page
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Secti@wor 15(d)of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has
duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, duly authorized officers and directors.

Dated: March 15, 2017

Willis Lease Finance Corporation

By: /s/ CHARLES FWILLIS, IV
Charles F. Willis)V
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

Dated: Title Signature
Date: March 5, 2017 Chief Executive Officer and Director /s CHARLES F. WILLIS, IV
(Principal Executive Officer) Charles F. Willis)V
Date: March 5, 2017 Chief Financial Officer /sl Scott B. Flaherty
(Principal Finance and Accounting Officer) Scott B. Flaherty
Date: March 5, 2017 Director /sl ROBERT T. MORRIS
Robert T. Morris
Date: March 5, 2017 Director /s HANS JOERG HUNZIKER
Hans Joerg Hunziker
Date: March 5, 2017 Director /s ROBERT J. KEADY
Robert J. Keady
Date: March 5, 2017 Director /sl AUSTIN C. WILLIS
Austin C. Willis
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Willis Lease Finance Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Willis Lease Finance Corposatitsiciaudes

(the ACompanyo0) 2@6and2015 dne theeretate@ cons@idated statements of income, comprehensive
income redeemabl@referredstockands har ehol der s6 equity, and cagdar fl ows f o
period ended December 3416 In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, we also have

audited financial statement schedules | En@ihese consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedules

are the responsibility of the Companydés management. Our
financial statements and financial statement scheduled baseur audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant esthates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present failllynaterial respects, the financial
position of Willis Lease Finance Corporation and subsidiaries as of Decemi218hnd2015 and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the years in theybergeriod ended December 20,16 in conformity

with U.S.generally accepted accounting principles. Also in our opinion, the related financial statement schedules, when
considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, present fairlyenhisall mat
respects, the information set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), Wi llis Lease Finance Cor por adpdrtingas af Betembar®lsi di ar
2016 based on criteria establishedrernal Controld Integrated Framework (20133sued by the Committee of

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report dated 120V éxpressed an

unqua i fi ed opinion on the effectiveness of the Companyés

/sl KPMG LLP

San Francisco, California
March 15, 2017
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Willis Lease Finance Corporation:

We have audited Willis Lease Finance Corporation and su
reporting as of December 32016 based on criteria establishediiternal Controld Integrated Framework (2013)

issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Willis Lease Finance
Corporation and subsidiariesd management verfnancielsponsi bl e
reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the
accompanying Management s Report on Internal Control ov
expressaw pi ni on on the Companyds internal control over fina

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan andpetfie audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether

effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessingskithat a material weakness exists, and testing

and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audit also
included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circematartedieve that our audit

provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A companyds internal control over financi al reporting i
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparationin&fcial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A companyds i

and procedures that (pgrtain to the maintenance of records that, inaealle detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the compamprp{@jle reasonable assurance that transactions are

recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance vétly g@ecepted accounting

principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; angr8)ide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely

deecti on of wunauthorized acquisition, wuse, or dispositio
financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect mésgtat

Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

In our opinion, Willis Lease Finance Corporation and subsidiaries maintained, in all material respects, effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 3116 based on criteria establishedriernal Controld Integrated
Framework (®13)issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the consolidated balance sheets of Willase Finance Corporation and subsidiaries as of Decemb2d1H,

and2015 and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive iredeeepable preferred stock and
sharehol dersé equity, and c awydapdribdended DEcembereBl6é Andoukr t he vy e
report dated March3] 2017, expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements.

/sl KPMG LLP

San Francisco, California
March 15, 2017
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WILLIS LEASE FINANCE CORPORATION
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In thousands, except share data)

December31, December31,
2016 2015 (1)

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 10,076 $ 9,732
Restricted cash 22,298 33,026
Equipment held for operating lease, less accumulated deprecia$#8bb53and$316,366at DecembeBl, 2016 anc
2015, respectively 1,136,603 1,109,168
Maintenance rights 17,670 12,140
Equipment held for sale 30,710 23,454
Operating lease related receivables, net of allowancEs8afand$912at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respective 16,484 13,626
Spare parts inventory 25,443 20,826
Investments 45,406 41,295
Property, equipmer& furnishings, less accumulated depreciatio®B58and$11,102at DecembeB1, 2016 and
2015, respectively 16,802 20,247
Intangible assets, net 2,182 932
Other assets 14,213 9,839
Total assets (2) $ 1337887 $ 1,294,285
LI ABI'LITIES, REDEEMBABLE PREFERRED STOCK AND SHATF
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 17,792  $ 21,665
Deferred income taxes 104,978 96,154
Notes payable 900,255 866,089
Maintenance reserves 71,602 71,054
Security deposits 21,417 25,010
Unearned revenue 5,823 5,090
Total liabilities (3) 1,121,867 1,085,062
Redeemable preferred stod0(01par value1,000,000hares authorized;000,000andnil sharesssuedand
outstandingat Decembe81, 2016 and 2015, respectively) 19,760 6]
Sharehol dersoé6 equity:
Common stock$0.01par value20,000,00Ghares authorize;401,92%nd7,548,395haresssuedandoutstanding
at DecembeB1, 2016 and 2015, respectively) 64 75
Paidin capital in excess of par 2,512 28,720
Retained earnings 194,729 180,949
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of income tax beng86dand$275at December 31, 2016 and
December 31, 2015, respectively. (1,045 (521
Total shareholdersd equity 196,260 209,223
Total liabilities, redeemable preferrstbck and shareholders' equity $ 1337887 $ 1,294,285

(1) Certain amounts include adjustments to prior periods see "Note 1. Summary
of Significant Accounting Policies (c) Correction of Immaterial Errors
Consolidated Financial Statements" for further disclosure.

(2) Total assets at December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015 include the
following assets of a variable interest entity (VIE) that can only be used
to settle the liabilities of the VIE: Cas$257and$750; Restricted
Cash$22,298and$33,026 Equipment$309,815and$328,118and Other,
$4,139 and $6,329 respectively."

(3) Total liabilities at December 31, 2016 dbecember 31, 2015 include
the following liabilities of a VIE for which the VIE creditors do not have

recourse to Willis Lease Finance Corporation: Notes paydp¥ks3,380
and$293,33] respectively.

See accompanying notes to tansolidated financial statements.
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WILLIS LEASE FINANCE CORPORATION
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Income
(In thousands, except per share data)

Years Ended December 31,

2016 2015 (1) 2014 (1)
REVENUE
Lease rent revenue $119,895 $108,046 $101,431
Maintenance reserve revenue 57,091 53,396 53,322
Spare parts and equipment sales 17,783 25,582 8,917
Gain on sale deased equipment 3,482 8,320 5,882
Other revenue 9,023 2,718 4,506
Total revenue 207,274 198,062 174,058
EXPENSES
Depreciation and amortization expense 66,280 69,424 65,314
Cost of spare parend equipment sales 13,293 17,849 7,474
Write-down of equipment 9,514 9,181 5,602
General and administrative 47,780 42,744 35,859
Technical expense 6,993 9,403 12,336
Net finance costs:

Interest expense 41,144 39,012 37,062
Loss (gain) on debt extinguishment 137 (1,151 o}
Total net finance costs 41,281 37,861 37,062
Total expenses 185,141 186,462 163,647
Earnings from operations 22,133 11,600 10,411
Earnings from joint ventures 1,813 1,175 1,329
Income before income taxes 23,946 12,775 11,740
Income tax expense 9,877 6,315 4,560
Net income $ 14,069 $ 6,460 $ 7,180

Preferred stock dividends 281 o} o}

Accretion of preferred stock issuance costs 8 o) o)

Net income attributable to common shareholders $ 13,780 $ 6,460 $ 7,180
Basic earnings per common share: $ 210 $ 083 $ 091
Diluted earnings per common share: $ 205 $ 081 $ 0.88
Average common shares outstanding 6,570 7,817 7,917
Diluted average common shares outstanding 6,714 7,987 8,141

(1) Certain amountmclude adjustments to prior periods see "Note 1.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (c) Correction of
Immaterial Errors Consolidated Financial Statements"” for further
disclosure.

See accompanying notes to tansolidated financial statements.
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WILLIS LEASE FINANCE CORPORATION
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
(In thousands)

Years Ended December 31,

2016 2015 (1) 2014 (1)

Net income $ 14069 $ 6460 $ 7,180
Other comprehensive income (loss):

Currency translation adjustment (868 (796, o}

Unrealized losses on derivative instruments 69 o} o}

Reclassification adjustment for losses (gains) included in

income 0 0 (499

Net gain (loss) recognized in other comprehensive incom: (799 (796 (499

Tax benefit (expense) related to items of other comprehel

income 275 275 174

Other comprehensive income (loss) (524 (521 (325
Total comprehensive income $ 13545 $ 5939 $ 6,855

(1) Certain amounts include adjustments to prior periods see¢
"Note 1. Summary o$ignificant Accounting Policies (c)
Correction of Immaterial ErrorsConsolidated Financial
Statements" for further disclosure.

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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WILLIS LEASE FINANCE CORPORATION

Consol i

dated

AND SUBSIDIARIES
St atement s

of

Years Ended December 31, 2016, 2015, and 2014
(In thousands)

Balances at Decembad, 2013
Net income

Net unrealized gain from derivative instruments, net of tax benef
$174

Shares repurchased

Shares issued under stock compensation plans

Cancellation of restricted stock units in satisfaction of withholding
Stockbased compensation, net of forfeitures

Tax benefit on disqualified disposition of shares

Balances at Decembafl, 2014

Net income

Net unrealized loss from derivative instruments, net of tax benefi
$275

Shares repurchased

Shares issued under stock compensation plans

Cancellation of restricted stock units in satisfaction of withholding
Stockbased compensation, net of forfeitures

Tax benefit on disqualified disposition of shares

Balances at Decemb8il, 2015

Net income

Net unrealized loss from currency translation adjustment, net of |
benefit of$300

Net unrealized gain from derivative instruments, net of tax exper
$25

Shares repurchased

Shares issued under stock compensation plans

Cancellation of restricted stock units in satisfaction of withholding
Stockbased compensation, net of forfeitures

Issuance of preferred stock

Accretion of preferred shares issuance costs

Preferred stock dividend

Tax benefit on disqualified disposition of shares

Balances at Decembafl, 2016

(1) Certain amounts include adjustmentgiior periods see "Note 1
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (c) Correction of

Immaterial Errors Consolidated Financial Statements" for further
disclosure.

Stodkholders' Equity

Redeemabl e

Preferred

Redeemable Accumulated Other
Preferred Stock Common Stock Paid-in Capital in Comprehensive Retained TotalShar eh
Shares  Amount  Shares Amount Excessof par Income/(Loss) Earnings (1) Equity
o] $ 6] 8400 $ 84% 44,741 $ 325 $ 167,309 $ 212,459
<] (<] <] <] (<] (<] 7,180 7,180
<] (<] <] <] (<] (325, <] (325,
<] (<] (249, (2 (5,350 (o] <] (5,352
o] 6] 272 2 408 8 o] 410
<] [¢] 77, (1) (1,543 (o] <] (1,544
o] 6] o] o] 3,509 8 o] 3,509
_ 0 <] <] <] 311 <] <] 311
o] $ ¢} 8346 $ 83% 42,076 $ [¢} $ 174,489 $ 216,648
<] (<] <] <] [¢] [¢] 6,460 6,460
<] (<] <] <] (<] (521, <] (521,
o] [¢] (912, 9) (16,491 [¢] e} (16,500
<] (<] 205 2 516 (<] <] 518
o] [¢] (91) (1) (1,557 [¢] e} (1,558
<] (<] <] <] 4,150 (<] <] 4,150
_ 90 [¢] d 3 26 [¢] 3 26
<] $ [¢] 7548 $ 75% 28,720 $ (521, $ 180,949 $ 209,223
o] [¢] o] o] [¢] [¢] 14,069 14,069
<] (<] <] <] (<] (568, <] (568,
<] (<] <] <] (<] 44 <] 44
6] d (1,212 (12) (28,946 [¢] o] (28,958
6] 6] 127 1 154 6] 6] 155
o] [¢] (61) o] (1,369 [¢] [¢] (1,369
6] 6] 6] 6] 3,717 6] 6] 3,717
1,000 19,752 o] o] [¢] [¢] [¢] <]
<] 8 <] <] (<] (<] (8) (8)
3 3 B B 3 3 (281 (281
_ 0 <] <] <] 236 <] <] 236
1,000 $19,760 6402 $ 64% 2512 % (1,045 $ 194,729 $ 196,260

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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WILLIS LEASE FINANCE CORPORATION
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements o€ash Flows
(In thousands)

Years Ended December 31,

2016 2015 (1) 2014 (1)
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 14,069 $ 6,460 $ 7,180
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization expense 66,280 69,424 65,314
Write-down of equipment 9,514 9,181 5,602
Stockbased compensation expenses 3,717 4,150 3,509
Amortization of deferred costs 4,271 4,307 4,319
Amortization of interest ratderivative cost ls] 5] (499
Allowances and provisions (571 697 (81)
Gain on sale of leased equipment (3,482 (8,320 (5,882
Income from joint ventures (1,813 (1,175 (1,329
Loss (gain) on del#xtinguishment 137 (1,151 5]
Deferred income taxes 9,100 6,027 4,110
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Receivables (2,287 (5,769 4,812
Spare parts inventory (5,093 3,828 (5,964
Intangibles (1,511 5] 5]
Other assets (1,707 (2,635, (590,
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 2,329 1,677 (1,998
Restricted cash 10,728 9,636 (6,831
Maintenance reserves 548 4,580 (10,861
Security deposits (4,048 5,747 1,158
Unearned lease revenue 732 748 793
Net cash provided by operating activities 100,913 107,412 62,762
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sale of equipment (neselfing expenses) 62,525 41,608 43,632
Restricted cash for investing activities (1,345 (16,763 6,366
Capital contribution to joint ventures (5,545, (630; (17,623
Distributions received from joint ventures 1,167 1,304 847
Maintenance rights payments received 5] 5,802 5]
Purchase of equipment held for operating lease and for sale (173,662 (174,772 (119,008
Purchase of maintenance rights (5,530 (8,844 (9,098
Purchase of property, equipment and furnishings (1,006 (3,988 (13,831
Net cash used in investing activities (123,396 (156,283 (108,715
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of nopesyable 149,000 192,700 154,395
Debt issuance cost (3,808 (13) (5,074
Interest bearing security deposits 455 (1,606 4,553
Proceeds from shares issued under stock compensation plans 155 518 410
Cancellation of restricted stock units in satisfaction of withholding tax (1,369 (1,558 (1,544
Repurchase of common stock (28,958 (16,500 (5,352
Excess tax benefit from stodlased compensation 236 26 311
Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock 19,752 6] 6]
Principal payments on notes payable (113,981 (153,816 (101,054
Restricted cash for financing activities 1,345 25,359 [s)
Net cash provided by financing activities 22,827 45,110 46,645
Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 344 (3,761 692
Cash and caséquivalents at beginning of period 9,732 13,493 12,801
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 10,076  $ 9,732  $ 13,493
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Net cash paid for:
Interest $ 37,319 $ 35568 $ 33,132
Income Taxes $ 459 $ 353 % 210

Supplemental disclosures of noash investing activities:
During the years ended DecemBdr, 2016, 2015, 2014, a liability 6,337 $4,662and$8,188 respectively, was incurred but not pa
in connection with oupurchase of aircraft and engines.
During the years ended DecemBér, 2016, 2015, 2014, engines and equipment tot&28g560 $22,079 and$3,071 respectively, wel
transferred from Held for Operating Lease to Held for Sale.
During the years ended DecemBér, 2016, 2015, 2014, engines and equipment totaling6,061and$9,649were transferred from
Held for Sale to Spare Parts Inventory, respectively.
During the years ended DecemB4r, 2016, an aircraft &?2,925was transferred from Property, equipment and furnishings to Asse
Held for Lease.
As of DecembeB1, 2016, accrued preferred stock dividends 2@l
During the year ended Deceml®dr, 2016, the accretion of preferred stock issuance cost$8vas

(1) Certain amounts include adjustments to prior periods see “Note 1.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (c) Correction of

Immaterial Errors Consolidated Financial Statements" for further
disclosure.

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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WILLIS LEASE FINANCE CORPORATION
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidatedrinancial Statements

(1) Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Organization

Willis Lease Finance Corporation (AWillisd or the #fCc
focus is providing operating leasescofmmercial aircraft engines and other aircrafated equipment to air carriers,
manufacturers and overhaul/repair facilities worldwide. Willis also engages in the selective purchase and resale of
commercial aircraft engines. WLFC (Ireland) Limited, WLF@nding (Ireland) Limited and WLFC Lease (Ireland)
Limited are whollyo wned | ri sh subsidiaries of W llis formed to fa
activities. Willis Aviation Finance Limited in Ireland is a whoeliwned subsidiary fornteto facilitate the leasing and
technical support of worldwide activities. Willis Lease France is a winnlged French subsidiary of Willis formed to
facilitate sales and marketing activities in Europe. Willis Lease (China) Limited is a vavatigd subsiiary of Willis
formed to facilitate the acquisition and leasing of assets in China.

Willis Engine Securitization Trust || (AWEST |1 d) 1is
established for the purpose of financing aircraft engines gifvan assdbacked securitization. WEST Engine
Acquisition LLC and Facility Engine Acquisition LLC are wholbyvned subsidiaries of WEST Il and own the engines
which secure the notes issued by WEST II. Willis Engine Securitization (Ireland) Limited ieandtolly-owned
subsidiary of WEST Il and was established to facilitate certain international leasing activities by WEST II. WEST Il is a
variable interest entity which the Company ovi@9%of the equity and consolidates in our financial statements.

IN2013, the Company | aunched Wil Il i s whAdlyownedaulisidiaryga!| Ser \
whose primary focus is the sale of aircraft engine parts and materials through the acquisition or consignment from third
parties of aircraft and enugs.

In 2016, we purchased, through our wholly owned subs
Management o), the business and assets of Total Engine S
and consulting business oEtlES Aviation Group. Willis Asset Management has 502 engines under management as of
December 31, 2016.

(b) Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Willis, WEST Engine Funding LLC, WEST
Engine Funding (Ireland) Limited, WEST Engine Acquisition LLC, Facility Engine Acquisition LLC, WLFC (Ireland)
Limited, Willis Lease (Ireland) Limited, WLFE€unding (Ireland) Limited, Willis Aviation Finance Limited, Willis
Lease France, Willis Lease (China) Limited, WEST Engine Securitization Trust I, Willis Engine Securitization
(Ireland) Limited, Willis Aero, Willis Lease Singapore Pte. Ltd., and WAkset Management Limited (together, the
AfiCompanyo) .

We evaluate all entities in which we have an economic interest firstly to determine whether for accounting
purposes the entity is a variable interest entity or voting interest entity. If the eatitaigble interest entity we
consolidate the financi al statements of that enttyty i f
is a voting interest entity we consolidate the entity when we have a majority of voting smtekéshtercompany
balances are eliminated upon consolidation.
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(c) Correction of Immaterial Error$ Consolidated Financial Statements

During 2016 the Company determined that its financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2015
2014 and forprior years contained errors resulting from the incorrect accounting for equipment purchasegplaitl in
|l eases. The Company previously did not identify measure
accounting policy for maintenaa rights is described below as note 1(d). Management evaluated the materiality of the
errors described above from a qualitative and quantitative perspective in accordance with the requirements of the
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) Staff Acdogigulletin No. 99, Materiality (SAB 99). Based on such
evaluation, we have concluded that these corrections would not be material to any individual prior period and have
corrected such balances herein.

The associated correcting entries were recordétkimespective period starting with the opening consolidated
balance sheet of December 31, 2014. The Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2015 presented herein has
been revised as follows: decrease in Equipment Held for Operating Le&%8.Bynillion, increase in Maintenance
Rights by$12.1million, decrease in Deferred Income TaxespBy6 million and decrease in retained earningssiyl
million as of December 31, 2015.

The adjustments to the previously reported Consolidated Statemenbwofdrior the years ending December
31, 2015 and 2014 were as follows: a decrease in Maintenance Reserve Reddntmitifon and$41,000
respectively; an increase (decrease) in Gain on Sale of Leased Equipii$3#,000)and$0.1million, respectively an
decrease in Depreciation and Amortization expeng®d@million and$0.1million, respectively; and a decrease in
Income Tax Expense &0.5million and$35,000 a decrease in net income&df.9million and$0.1million,
respectively; and a decreanébasic and diluted earnings per sharé@fl1and$0.01, respectively.

The adjustments to the previously reported Consolidated Statement of cash flows for the years ending
December 31, 2015 and 2014 were as follows: a decrease in cash providedabipgperome of1.7million; and a
decrease in the cash used by investing activiti@d afmillion.

There were other immaterial out of period adjustments recorded that affected lease rent revenue, spare part sales
revenue and expense and generaladministrative expenses for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014.

(d) Revenue Recognition

Revenue from leasing of aircraft equipment is recognized as operating lease revenue on-frstrbagis
over the terms of the applicable leaggeements. Revenue is not recognized when cash collection is not reasonably
assured. When collectability is not reasonably assured, the customer is placeeaonrnahstatus and revenue is
recognized when cash payments are received.

We regularly selequipment from our lease portfolio. This equipment may or may not be subject to a lease at
the time of sale. The gain or loss on such sales is recognized as revenue and consists of proceeds associated with the sale
less the net book value of the asset smid any direct costs associated with the sale. To the extent that deposits
associated with the engine are not included in the sale we include any such amount in our calculation of gain or loss.

The Company evaluates sales arrangements under FinanomaluAoct i ng St andards Board (1
Accounting Standards2BpdRéventtieoRe(dfgBLCO)O0BOSMuUIlLtiple E
ASC605250), which addresses accounting for multiple el eme
deliverables, the sale of equipment and the management services, are separate units of accounting. Therefore, revenue is
recognized in accordance with FASB ASC 815599, Revenue Recognition: Overall: SEC Materials, formerly SAB
104, for each unit.

For mutiple deliverable revenue arrangements, the Company allocates revenue to equipment sales and
management services using the relative selling price method to recognize revenue when the revenue recognition criteria
for each deliverable are met. The sellingcgerof a deliverable is based on a hierarchy and if the Company is unable to
establishvendes peci fi c objective evi denc epadyfeviderea df deling priper i ce ( iV
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(ATPEO), and i f no such ndaattead isselavianigl apbrliec,e i(tfA BuSsPeds) .a bVeh
established, the Company attempts to establish the selling price of each element based on TPE. When the Company is
unable to establish selling price using VSOE or TPE, the Company uses BSP. The olj&Sikdto determine the

price at which the Company would transact a sale if the equipment or service were sold oralbs&abdsis. The

selling price of the service elementis based on TPE and is determined by reviewing information from management
agrements entered into by other parties on a standalone basis, compared it to the management agreements entered into
with the investor group and determined that the fees charged on a standalone basis were comparable to the fees charged
when the Company enterénto the management agreement concurrent with the sale of the portfolio of engines.

Accordingly, the Company determined that the fees charged for its management services were comparable to those
charged by other asset managers for the same service.

The Company recognizes revenue from management fees under equipment management agreements as earned
on a monthly basis. Management fees are based upon a pe
portfolio calculated on an accrual basis aecbrded in Other revenue.

Under the terms of some of our leases, the lessees pay use fees (also known as maintenance reserves) to us
based on usage of the leased asset, which are designed to cover expected future maintenance costs. Some of these
amounts ee reimbursable to the lessee if they make specifically defined maintenance expenditures. Use fees received are
recognized in revenue as maintenance reserve revenue if they are not reimbursable to the lessee. Use fees that are
reimbursable are recordedasnaintenance reserve liability until they are reimbursed to the lessee or the lease
terminates, at which time they are recognized in revenue as maintenance reserve revenue.

Certain lessees may be significantly delinquent in their rental payments artbfaalf on their lease
obligations. As of Decembé&l, 2016, we had an aggregate of approximaglgmillion in lease rent an#i2.4million
in maintenance reserve receivables more 8tagtays past due. Our inability to collect receivables or to repesses
engines or other leased equipment in the event of a default by a lessee could have a material adverse effect on us. The
Company estimates an allowance for doubtful accounts for lease receivables it does not consider fully collectible. The
allowance for dubtful accounts includes the following: @pecific reserves for receivables which are impaired for
which management believes full collection is doubtful; anca(@gneral reserve for estimated losses based on historical
experience.

We recognize salasf spare parts upon shipping and the amount reported as cost of sales is recorded at specific
cost.

We recognize service revenue from fees earned under engine maintenance service agreements as earned on a
monthly basis.

No customer accounted for greatiean 10% of total lease rent revenue in 2016, 2015 and 2014.
(e) Other Revenue

Other revenue consists primarily of management fee income, lease administration fees and third party
consignment commissions earned by Willis Aero. During the year ended December 31, 2016, other revenue included
$4.0million of security payments for airdtaupon default of a lessee.

(f) Equipment Held for Operating Lease

Aircraft assets held for operating lease are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Certain costs incurred
in connection with the acquisition of aircraft assets are capitalzedrd of the cost of such assets. Major overhauls paid
for by us, which improve functionality or extend the original useful life, are capitalized and depreciated over the shorter
of the estimated period to t he iningusefulldevoktheequiprent(Wedenbte r r a |
accrue for planned major maintenance. The cost of overhauls of aircraft assets under long term leases, for which the
lessee is responsible for maintenance during the period of the lease, are paid for lsg¢herléesm reimbursable
maintenance reserves paid to the Company in accordance with the lease, and are not capitalized.
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Based on specific aspects of the equipment, we generally depreciate engines on distréigbis over 45
year period from the aaisition date to &5%residual value. We believe that this methodology accurately reflects our
typical holding period for the assets and, that the residual value assumption reasonably approximates the selling price of
the assets 15 years from date ofuasigion. Our typical 15 year holding period is the estimated useful life of our engines
based on our business model and plans, and represents how long we anticipate holding a newly acquired engine. The
technical useful life of a new engine can be in ex@#?5 years. We review the useful life and residual values of all
engines periodically as demand changes to accurately depreciate the cost of equipment over the useful life of the engines.

The useful life of older generation engines and aircraft magigméficantly less thad5 years, based upon the
technical status of the engine, as well as supply and demand factors. For these older generation engines and aircraft, the
remaining useful life and our remaining expected holding period are typicallyrttee Bar older generation engines or
aircraft that are unlikely to be repaired at the end of the current expected useful lives, we depreciate the engines or
aircraft over their estimated lives to a residual value based on an estimate of the wholesalethalparts after
disassembly. As of December 31, 2036 engines an® aircraft having a net book value $126.1million were
depreciated under this policy with estimated useful lives ranging frtmmi24 months. We adjust our estimates
annually fot hese ol der generation assets, including updating
operating life as well as future residual value expected fromopdthased on the current technical status of the engine
or aircraft.

For engines oriecraft that are unlikely to be repaired at the end of the current expected useful lives, we
depreciate the engines or aircraft over their estimated lives to a residual value based on an estimate of the wholesale
value of the parts after disassembly.

Theaircraft owned by us are depreciated on a strdightbasis over an estimated useful lifel8fto 20 years
to al5%to 17%residual value. The spare parts packages owned by us are depreciated on dirstraigis over an
estimated useful life df4-15years to 25%residual value.

The Company reviews iteng-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverabléeidathgssets to be disposed are reportadeat
lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell. Impairment is identified by comparison of undiscounted
forecasted cash fl ows, including estimated sales procee
forecasted undeounted cash flows are less than the book value the asset is written down to its fair value. Fair value is
determined per individual asset by reference to independent appraisals, quoted market prices (e.g. an offer to purchase)
and other factors considereglevant by Management. We conduct a formal annual review of the carrying value-of long
lived assets and also evaluate assets during the year if we note a triggering event indicating impairment is possible. Such
review resulted in an impairment chargeb@f8million, $0.6million and$2.4million in 2016, 2015, and 2014,
respectively {dlomwnl wde c qiun pfim&mittote in the Consolidated St a

(g) Equipment Held for Sale

Equipment held for sale includes engines being marketeshferas well as engines removed from our lease
portfolio that are being parted out, with our investment in the long lived asset being recovered through the sale of spare
parts. The assets to be disposed are reported at the lower of carrying amounatuddass costs to sell

(h) Debt Issuance Costs and Related Fees

To the extent that we are required to pay fees in order to secure debt, such fees are capitalized, included in

Notes Payable on the Consolidate Balance Sheet, and amortized over the life of the related loan using the effective
interest method.
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() Maintenance and Repair Costs

Maintenance and repair costs under our leases are generally the responsibility of the lessees. Under many of our
leases, lessees pay periodic use fees (often called maintenance reserves) to us based on the usage of thatesset. Under
terms of some of our leases, the lessees pay amounts to us based on usage, which are designed to cover the expected
maintenance cost. Some of these amounts are reimbursable to the lessee if they make specifically defined maintenance
expenditures.

Usefees billed are recognized in maintenance reserve revenue if they are not reimbursable to the lessee. Use
fees that are reimbursable are included in maintenance reserve liability until they are reimbursed to the lessee or the lease
terminates, at which tienthey are recognized in maintenance reserve revenue. Our expenditures for maintenance are
expensed as incurred. Expenditures that meet the criteria for capitalization are recorded as an addition to equipment
recorded on the balance sheet. Major overhaails for by us, which improve functionality or extend the remaining
useful |l ife, are capitalized and depreciated over the s
met hodo) or the remaining us eueiolplainédfmajorméintenamee. equi pment .

() Interest Rate Hedging

We enter into various derivative instruments periodically to mitigate the exposure on our variable rate
borrowings. The derivative instruments are fixatke interest swaps that are recordef@diatvalue as either an asset or
liability.

While substantially all our derivative transactions are entered into for the purposes described above, hedge
accounting is only applied where specific criteria have been met and it is practicable to doder. to apply hedge
accounting, the transaction must be designated as a hed
effectiveness is assessed utilizing regression analysis at the inception of the hedge and on at least a quarterly basis
throughout its life. All of the transactions that we have designated as hedgestaftow hedgesThe effective portion
of the change in fair value on a derivative instrument designated as a cash flow hedge is reported as a component of other
comprehensge income and is reclassified into earnings in the period during which the transaction being hedged affects
earnings. The ineffective portion of the hedges is recorded in earnings in the current period.

k) Income Taxes

We use the asset and liabilityethod of accounting for income taxes. Under the asset and liability method,
deferred income taxes are recognized for the tax conseq
tax rates applicable to future years to differences bettteefinancial statement carrying amounts and the tax bases of
existing assets and liabilities. The effect on deferred taxes of a change in the tax rates is recognized in income in the
period that includes the enactment date.

The Company recognizes in tfieancial statements the impact of a tax position, if that position is more likely
than not of being sustained on audit, based on the technical merits of the position. Recognized income tax positions are
measured at the largest amount that is greaterSd#tiikely of being realized. Changes in recognition or measurement
are reflected in the period in which the change in judgment occurs (See Note 6).

The Company files income tax returns in various states and countries which may have different statutes of
limitations. The open tax years for federal and state tax purposes are frofR@BL8nd 2012016, respectively. The
Company records penalties and accrued interest related to uncertain tax positions in income tax expense. Such
adjustments have historitabeen minimal and immaterial to our financial results.

() Property, Equipment and Furnishings
Property, equipment and furnishings are recorded at cost and depreciated using thdis&raigiihod over the
estimated useful lives of the related assetsich range fronthreeto fifteen years. Leasehold improvements are

recorded at cost and depreciated by the strdiightmethod over the shorter of the lease term or useful life of the
leasehold.
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(m) Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider highly liquidhvestments readily convertible into known amounts of cash, with original maturities
of 90 days or less, as cash equivalents.

(n) Restricted Cash

We have certain bank accounts that are subject to restrictions in connection with our WEST Il borrowings.
Under WEST II, cash is collected in a restricted account, which is used to service the debt and any remaining amounts,
after debt service and defined expenses, are distributed to the Company. Additionally, a portion of maintenance reserve
payments and alebse security deposits are accumulated in restricted accounts and are available to fund future
maintenance events and to secure lease payments, respectively. Under WEST II, cash from maintenance reserve
payments are held in the restricted cash account tmjtlee maintenance obligations projected for the subsegibent
months, and are subject to a minimum balanck9ddmillion. Security deposits are held until the end of the lease, at
which time provided return conditions have been met, the deposhievi#turned to the lessee. To the extent return
conditions are not met, these deposits may be retained by us.

(0) Spare Parts Inventory

Inventory consists of spare aircraft and engine parts and is stated at lower of cost or net realizable value. An
impairment charge for excess or inactive inventory is recorded based upon an analysis that considers current inventory
levels, historical usage patterns, future sales expectations and salvage value.

(p) Intangible Assets

Intangible assetsincludecuste r r el ati onships and goodwill arising
Powerandlr ot a l Engine Support Limited (ATESO). I ntangi bl e a
350, Al ®tGomgiwillds and Ot her . 0

Gooduwill is assessedfimpairment annually. Customer relationships are amortized on a straight line basis over
their estimated useful life diive years. The Company has intangible assets with indefinite useful lives.

(q) Management Estimates

These financial statemertiave been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the
repored amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities.
On an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates, including those related to residual values, estimated asset lives,
impairments and bad b&s. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from atheurces. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different
assumptions or conditions.

Management believes that the accounting policies on revenue recognition, maintenance reserves and
expenditures, useful life of equipment, asset residalales, asset impairment and allowance for doubtful accounts are
critical to the results of operations.

If the useful lives or residual values are lower than those estimated by us, upon sale of the asset a loss may be
realized. Significant management judgmbis required in the forecasting of future operating results, which are used in
the preparation of projected undiscounted d#slis and should different conditions prevail, material impairment write
downs may occur.
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(r) Per share information

Basicearnings per common share is computed by dividing net income by the weagtadie number of
common shares outstanding during the period. The computation of fully diluted earnings per share is similar to the
computation of basic earnings per share, exfm@phe inclusion of all potentially dilutive common shares. Redeemable
preferred stock is not convertible and does not affect dilutive shares. The reconciliation between basic common shares
and fully diluted common shares is presented below:

Years Ended December 31,
2016 2015 2014
(in thousands)

Shares:

Weightedaverage number of common shares outstanding 6,570 7,817 7,917
Dilutive and potentially dilutive common shares 144 170 224
Total shares 6,714 7,987 8,141

(s) Investments

Our investment in the WMES and CASC Willis joint ventures, where we5®&fof the equity of the
ventures, are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. The investments are recorded at the amount invested
plus or minus our 50% share of net income or loss, less any distributions or return of capital received froteshe en

(t) Stock Based Compensation

We recognize compensation expense in the financial statements febakateawards based on the gidette
fair value of those awards. Additionally, stelbised compensation expense includes an estimate foegirey
forfeitures and is recognized over the requisite service periods of the awards on alstmalgsis, which is generally
commensurate with the vesting term.

(u) Initial Direct Costs associated with Leases

We account for the initial direct costs, including sales commission and legal fees, incurred in obtaining a new
lease by deferring and amortizing those costs over the term of the lease. The amortization of these costs is recorded
under General and Administive expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Inchhme amounts amortized were
$1.6million, $1.6million and$1.5million for the years ended Decemisdr, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

(v) Maintenance Rights
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We identify, measure and accotdiot maintenance right assets and liabilities associated with acquisitions of
equipment with irplace leases. A maintenance right asset represents the fair value of the contractual right under a lease
to receive equipment in an improved maintenance camd#s compared to the maintenance condition on the acquisition
date. A maintenance right liability represents the Company's obligation to pay the lessee for the difference between the
leaseend contractual maintenance condition of the equipment and thed awintenance condition of the equipment on
the acquisition date. The equipment condition at the end of the lease term may result in either overhaul work being
performed by the lessee to meet the required return condition or a financial settlement.

When a capital event is performed on the equipment by the lessee, which satisfies their maintenance right
obligation, the maintenance rights are added to the equipment basis and depreciated to the next capital event. When
equipment is sold before the endtloé preexisting lease, the maintenance rights are applied against any accumulated
maintenance reserves, if paid by the lessee, and the remaining balance is applied to the disposition gain or loss. When
lease terminates, an end of lease-trpas perfeomed and the maintenance right is applied against the accumulated
maintenance reserves or, for A@serve lessees the final settlement payment, and any remaining net maintenance right
is recorded in the income statement.

Maintenance right assets we$#7.7 million and$12.1million as of December 31, 2016 and December 31,
2015, respectively.

(w) Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an
exit price) in theprincipal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants on the measurement date. Valuation techniques used to measure fair value must maximize the use of
observable inputs and minimize the ag@inobservable inputs, to the extent possible. We use a fair value hierarchy
based on three levels of inputs, of which the first two are considered observable and the last unobservable, to measure
fair value which are the following:

Level 1- Quoted pries in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2- Inputs other than Level 1 that are observable, either directly or indirectly, such as quoted prices for similar
assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active;asriopiuts that are observable or can be corroborated
by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities.

Level 3- Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significanaibovihleid of
the assets or liabilities.

Assets Measured and Recorded at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

As of DecembeB1, 2016, we measured the fair value of our interest rate sw&i9@Omillion (notional
amount) based on Level 2 inputs, due toukage of inputs that can be corroborated by observable market data. The
Company estimates the fair value of derivative instruments using a discounted cash flow technique and, at 8&ecember
2016, has used creditworthiness inputs that corroborate obkeevabmar ket data eval uating t
count er par t-pedaniance. We Rad anfinteresi nate swap agreement which had a net fair $&62.6000
as of Decembesl, 2016. In 2016525,000 was realized through the income statement as agdse in interest
expense.

The following table shows by level, within the fai
value as of Decemb@&d, 2016:
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Assetsand (Liabilities) at Fair Value
December31, 2016

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(in thousands)
Derivatives $ 0 $ 69 % ) $ 69
Total $ 0 $ 69 % d $ 69

No derivatives existed during the year ended December 31, 2015.
Assets Measured and Recorded at Fair Vak on a Nonrecurring Basis

We determine fair value of loAgved assets held and used, such as Equipment held for operating lease and
Equipment held for sale, by reference to independent appraisals, quoted market prices (e.g. an offer to purchase) and
other factors. An impairment charge is recorded when the carrying value of the asset exceeds its fair value.

The following table shows by Il evel, within the fair
on a nonrecurring basis during theays ended Decemb@t, 2016 and 2015, and the losses recorded during the years
ended Decembedl, 2016 and 2015 on those assets:

Assetsat Fair Value Total Losses
December3l, 2016 December3l, 2015 December31,
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 2016 2015
(in thousands) (in thousands)
Equipment
held for lease $ o $ 119 $ o $ 1,196 $ o $ 2,154 $ o $ 2,154 $ (3,674 $ (2,536
Equipment
held for sale o] 8,976 o] 8,976 o] 4,931 o] 4,931 (5,365 (6,645
Spare parts
inventory d 1,538 d 1,538 o) d o) d (475) d
Total $ 5 $ 11,710 $ 5 $ 11,710 $ 3 $ 7,085 $ 3 $ 7085 $ (9514 $ (9,181

At Decembel, 2016, the Company used Level 2 inputs to measure write down of equipment held for lease,
equipment held for sale, and spare parts inventory. Level 2 inputs include quoted prices for similar assets in inactive
markets.

An impairment charge is recorded when the carrying value of the asset exceeds its fair valesdowWristef
equipment to thie estimated fair values totalé&®.5million for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to $9.2
million recorded in the year ago period. A writedowr$bf5million was recorded due to the adjustment of the carrying
value for six impaired engines andevimpaired aircraft within the portfolio to reflect estimated market value. A further
write-down of equipment totalin2.0million was recorded in the year ended December 31, 2016 due to a management
decision to consign one engine forpantandsale i n whi ch the assetbés net book val
proceeds. An additional writedown $2.0million was recorded in year ended December 31, 2016 to adjust the carrying
value of engine parts held on consignment for which market conditionsfsalé of parts has changed.

A write-down of equipment totaling $9.2 million was recorded in the year ended December 31, 2015- A write
down of equipment totalin§5.5million was recorded in the year ended December 31, 2015 due to a management
decision ¢ consign four engines forpastut and sal e, in which the assetsd net
proceeds from paxut. Writedowns on held for use equipment to their estimated fair values t&aléchillion for the
year ended December 31, 20dife to an adjustment of carrying values for certain impaired parts packages within the
portfolio to reflect estimated market values. A further wedtavn of$2.8million was recorded in the year ended
December 31, 2015 to adjust the carrying value of enparts for which market conditions for the sale of parts has
changed. An additional writdown of$0.3million was recorded in the year ended December 31, 2015 based on a
comparison of the inventory values with the revised net proceeds expected frealgmrt
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(x) Foreign Currency Translation

The Companyds foreign investments have been convert e
changes in exchange rates in our foreign investments reported under the equity method are included inrstsc&holde
equity as accumulated other comprehensive income.

(y) Redeemable Preferred Stock

The Companyds Series A pat¥0 pershassgbn thehoacurerce aiceain r e d e e ma
events. The Company classifies this equity as mezzanine asdbiglitionally redeemable security.

The Company incurred approximately $0.2 million of issuance costs during 2016, in connection with the
issuance of its preferred shares. The Company is accreting the issuance costs to redemption value overrma period f
the date of issuance to October 2023, such that the carrying amounts of the securities will equal the redemption amounts
at the earliest redemption date.

(2) Equipment Held for Operating Lease

As of December 31, 2016, we had a total lease portfolgD8hircraft engines and related equipméngpare
parts package4,1 aircraft and various parts and other engiglated equipment with a net book value of $1,136.6
million in our lease portfolio As of December 31, 2015, we had a total lease portfo@®baircraft engines and related
equipmentb spare parts packagédd) aircraft and various parts and other engielated equipment with a net book
value of $1,109.2 million in our lease potifo

A majority of our equipment is leased and operated internationally. All leases relating to this equipment are
denominated and payable in U.S. dollars.

We lease our equipment to lessees domicilezightgeographic regions. The tables below setfgeographic
information about our leased equipment grouped by domicile of the lessee (which is not necessarily indicative of the

assetds actual |l ocation):

Years Ended December 31,
Leaserent revenue 2016 2015 2014
(in thousands)

Region
Europe $ 44650 $ 43,703 $ 37,850
Asia 34,524 31,569 21,658
South America 11,504 9,688 9,907
United States 13,395 9,177 11,880
Mexico 6,251 6,886 7,771
Canada 4,049 2,828 4,958
Middle East 3,674 2,223 4,143
Africa 1,848 1,972 3,264

Totals $ 119,895 $ 108,046 $ 101,431
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Leaserent revenuelessapplicable depreciation and interest

Years Ended December 31,
2016 2015 2014

Region
Europe
Asia
South America
United States
Mexico
Canada
Middle East
Africa
Off-lease and other
Totals

Net book value of equipmentheld for operating lease

Region
Europe
Asia
South America
United States
Mexico
Canada
Middle East
Africa
Off-lease and other
Totals

(in thousands)

$ 13,137 11,074 6,988
10,318 8,867 5,891
3,464 1,929 3,503
1,053 634 2,577
2,430 2,310 2,157

74 (123 (100!

743 474 1,277

460 206 1,041

(13,303 (19,713 (19,525
$ 18376 $ 5658 $ 3,809

Years Ended December 31,
2016 2015 2014
(in thousands)

384,661 387,652 343,102
265,736 309,158 232,511
112,268 112,718 107,080
148,208 $ 99,876 $ 61,521
55,114 35,374 57,371
35,199 18,893 11,026

8,971 9,612 12,063

42,949 18,937 17,125
83,497 116,948 215,582

$ 1,136,602 $ 1,109,166 $ 1,057,381

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the lease status of the equipment held for operating lease was as follows:

December31, 2016

LeaseTerm Net Book Value

(in thousands)
Off-lease and other $ 83,497
Month-to-month leases 88,546
Leases expiring 2017 396,155
Leases expiring 2018 144,977
Leases expiring 2019 70,511
Leasesxpiring 2020 180,732
Leases expiring 2021 57,196
Leases expiring thereafter 114,989
$ 1,136,603
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December31, 201t

LeaseTerm Net Book Value

(in thousands)
Off-lease and other $ 116,948
Month-to-monthleases 90,173
Leases expiring 2016 429,635
Leases expiring 2017 106,923
Leases expiring 2018 87,916
Leases expiring 2019 60,022
Leases expiring 2020 86,922
Leases expiring thereafter 130,629
$ 1,109,168

As of December 31, 2016, minimum future payments underaamcelable leases were as follows:

Year (in thousands)
2017 $ 89,119
2018 57,192
2019 43,979
2020 33,482
2021 16,930
Thereafter 23,466

$ 264,168

(3) Investments

On May 25, 2011, we entered into an agreement with Mitsui & Co., Ltd. to participate in a joint venture formed
as a Dublirbased Irish limited compary Wi | | i s Mi t sui & Company Engine Support
purpose oficquiring and leasing jet engines. Each partner holds a fifty percent interest in the joint venture and the
Company uses the equity method in recording investment activity. The investment has increased to $32.5 million as of
December 31, 2016 as a resultlee Company making $5.5 million in capital contributions to WMES, receiving $1.2
million in distributions, recording $1.2 million as deferred gain as a result of the Company selling four engines to
WMES and the Companyds s ha$2d milion dWihyEhS yearemedrDecendberi3ln 2006me o f

On June 3, 2014 we entered into an agreement with China Aviation Supplies Import & Export Corporation
(ACASCO) to participate in a joint venture nlalmesdd )CASaL
joint venture based in Shanghai, China. Each partner hdiftg percent interest in the joint venture. In October 2014,
we made &15.0million initial capital contribution, representing our fifty percent;fignt funding contributiorto the
new joint venture. The company acquires and leases jet engines to Chinese airlines and concentrates on meeting the fast
growing demand for | eased commercial aircraft engines a
Willis owned alease portfolio of 3 engines with a net book valug48.1million as of December 31, 2016. Our
investment in the joint venture $12.9million as of December 31, 2016. During 2016, CASC was reorganized, with
portions of its partnership interest in CASllis being transferred to three Chinese airlines and another government
owned entity. The 2016 CASC reorganization resulted in no voting structure change to the joint venture.
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CASC

Years Ending December31, 2016 and 2015 (in thousands) WMES Willis Total

Investment in joint ventures as of DecemBgy 2014 $ 26672 $ 14918 $ 41,590
Investment 630 o} 630
Earnings (losses) from joint ventures 1,274 (99) 1,175
Distribution (2,304 o} (1,304
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment 0 (796, (796
Investment in joint ventures as of DecemB&r 2015 $ 27272 % 14,023 $ 41,295
Investment 5,545 o} 5,545
Earnings (losses) from joint ventures 2,032 (219 1,813
Deferred gain on engine sale (1,212 o} (1,212
Distribution (1,267 o} (1,167
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment 0 (868 (868
Investment in joint ventures as of DecemBgy 2016 $ 32470 $ 12,936 $ 45,406

iOt her revenueo on the Consolidated St a®.emileomt of
$1.7million and$2.0 million during the years ended December 2116 2015and 204, respectively, related to the
servicing of engines for the WMES lease portfolio. Du&8d5, WMES consigned an engine for part out and sale to
our Willis Aero subsidiary. The value of the engin&@sl million as of December 32016

Summaized financial information for 100% of WMES is presented in the following table:

Years Ended December 31,

2016 2015 2014
(in thousands)
Revenue $ 35463 $ 26,909 $ 25,757
Expenses 31,669 24,574 23,150
WMES net income $ 3794 $ 2335 % 2,607

December3l, December3l,

2016 2015
(in thousands)
Total assets $ 293,299 $ 256,126
Total liabilities 219,881 195,258
Total WMES net equity $ 73418 $ 60,868
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(4) Notes Payable
Notes payable consisted of the following:

As of December31,
2016 2015
(in thousands)

Credit facility at a floating rate of interest of LIBOR pl2§5% secured by engines. The
facility has a committed amount $890.0million at December 31, 2016, which revolves

until the maturity date of April 2021. $ 608,000 $ 549,000
WEST Il Serie012A term notes payable at a fixed rate of intere§.60% maturing in

SeptembeR037. Secured by engines. 279,541 300,467
Note payable at fixed interest rates ranging f&60%to 2.97% maturing in July 2024.

Secured by an aircraft. 14,453 16,135
Note payable at a variable interest rate of LIBOR gl25% maturing in January 2018.

Secured by engines. 11,709 13,082
Notes payable 913,703 878,684
Less:unamortized debt issuance costs (13,448 (12,595
Total notes payable $ 900,255 $ 866,089

Onemonth LIBOR wag$).77% and0.43% as of December 32016and December 32015 respectively.

Principal outstanding at December 2016 is repayable as follows:

Year (in thousands
2017 $ 23,624
2018 33,294
2019 23,430
2020 23,031
2021 (includes $608.0 million outstanding on revolving credit facility) 631,268
Thereafter 179,056

$ 913,703

Virtually all of the above debt requires our ongoing compliance with the covenants of each financing, including
debt/equity ratios, minimum tangible net worth and minimum interest coverage ratios, and other eligibility criteria
includingcustomer and geographic concentration restrictions. The Company also has certain negative financial
covenants such as liens, advances, change in business, sales of assets, dividends and stock.r€épeseheseenants
are tested quarterly and the Compavas in full compliance with all covenant requirements at Decemb&038,

At December 312016 we are in compliance with the covenants specified in the revolving credit facility,
including the Interest Coverage Ratio requirement of at 2asto 100, and the Total Leverage Ratio requirement to
remain below4.25to 1.00. As defined in the revolving credit facility Credit Agreement, the Interest Coverage Ratio is
the ratio of Earnings before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization andrathiene charges (EBITDA) to
Consolidated Interest Expense and the Total Leverage Ratio is the ratio of Total Indebtedness to Tangible Net Worth. At
December 312016 we are in compliance with the covenants specified in the WEST Il indenture and servicing
agreement.
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At December 312016 notes payable consists of loans totaB8§0.3million payable over periods of
approximatelyl.O years to7.5 years with interest rates varying between approxim&@éysand5.5% Substantially all
of our assets are plgdd to secure our obligations to creditors. Our significant debt instruments are discussed below:

At December 312016 we had a revolving credit facility to finance the acquisition of equipment for lease as
well as for general working capital purposeghwhe amounts drawn under the facility not to exceed that which is
allowed under the borrowing base as defined by the credit agreedmeApril 20, 2016 we entered into a Third
Amended and Restated Credit Agreement which increased the revolving acéityt fo $890.0million from $700.0
million and extended the term to April 2021. This $890 million revolving credit facility has an accordion feature which
would expand the entire credit facility up$a billion. The initial interest rate on the faitylis LIBOR plus2.75% The

interest rate is adjusted quarterly, based on the Compa
credit facility. As of December 3122016and December 32015 $2820 million and$151.0million were available

under this facility, respectively. On a quarterly basis
as calculated under the terms of the revol l5@g credit f

December 312016 the interest rate on this facility @emonth LIBORplus2.75%as of December 32016 Under
the revolving credit facility, all subsidiaries except WEST Il jointly and severally guarantee payment and performance of
the terms bthe loan agreement. The guarantee would be triggered by a default under the agreement.

On Septembet7, 2012, we closedanasteec k ed secur i ti zat i emategd A ABSO) t hr c
bankruptcyremote, Delaware statutory trust, WEST II, of which the Company is the sole beneficiary. WEST Il issued
and sold$390million aggregate principal apunt of Clasf012A Ter m Not es (t he$384bot esod) an
million in net proceedsThe Notes 6éreditors do not have recourse to the Comp®y.used these funds, net of
transaction expenses and swap termination costs in combination with ournmgwsdit facility, to pay off the prior
WEST notes totalin§435.9million. Atclosing,22engi nes wer e pledged as coll ateral
revolving credit facility, which provided the remaining funds to pay off the WEST notes.

Theassetand | iabilities of WEST |1 wild.l remain %n the C
commercial jet aircraft engines and leases thereof secures the obligations of WEST Il under the ABS. The Nuaies have
fixed amortization and are payabldedp from revenue received by WEST Il from the engines and the engine leases,
after payment of certain expenses of WEST II. The Notes bear interest at a fixedbr&a@ger annum. The Notes
may be accelerated upon the occurrence of certain eventglimgthe failure to pay interest féive business days after
the due date thereof. The Notes are expected to be pHid/@ars. The legal final maturity of the Notes is
Septembel5, 2037.

In connection with the transactions described above, effegptembel7, 2012, the Company entered into a
Servicing Agreement and Administrative Agency Agreement with WEST Il to provide certain engine, lease management
and reporting functions for WEST Il in return for fees based on a percentage of collected\eases and asset sales.
Because WEST Il is consolidated for financial statement reporting purposes, all fees eliminate upon consolidation.

At December 312016and2015 $279.5million and $3®0.5million of WEST Il term notes were outstanding,
respectively. The assets of WEST Il are not available to satisfy our obligations or any of our affiliates other than the

obligations specific to WEST Il. WEST Il is consolidated for financial statementrpteset i on pur poses. WE!
ability to make distributions and pay dividends to the Company is subject to the prior payments of its debt and other
obligations and WEST |11 6s maintenance of adequate reser:

restricted account, which is used to service the debt and any remaining amounts, after debt service and defined expenses,
are distributed to the Company. Additionally, a portion of maintenance reserve payments and all lease security deposits
are accumulatkin restricted accounts and are available to fund future maintenance events and to secure lease payments,
respectively. Cash from maintenance reserve payments are held in the restricted cash account equal to the maintenance
obligations projected for thaiesequent six months, and are subject to a minimum bala$&0zhillion.

On September 13, 2016, the Company entered into an a
and Restated Trust Agreement of WEST I, as amended by Trust Amendment Atedlasiof September 14, 2012.
The Amendment No. 2 allows the Company to make additional equity contributions to fund engine maintenance
expenses, to make up shortfalls in required net sale proceeds from engine dispositions and to provide additional funds
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the acquisition of replacemeangines for WEST Il.These potential future equity contributions by the Company are
voluntary. The Amendment N. 2 also increases the percentage of WEST Il engines subject to disposition and modifies
certain concentratiolimits.

On September 18, 2013, we completed the acquisition diftyrgoercent membership interest held by the other
joint venture partner in WOLF, with the transaction being accounted for as an asset acquisition. As a result of the
transaction, we n@ ownone hundreghercent of WOLF. The WOLF assets and liabilities and the results of operations
related to the WOLF assets have been included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements as of the
acquisition date, September 18, 20T3vo term rotes with an original principal amount $86.0million, with a balance
outstanding o%$24.0million as of December 32015 are included in Notes payable. On March 2815, we paid off
the $23.1million balance of the two term notes associated with¥@LF assets at 8% discount. This transaction
resulted in the recording of a $1.2 million gain on debt extinguishment which has been included in our statement of
income for the year ended December Z115.

On July 162014, we closed on a loanith atenyear term totaling13.4million. During the second quarter of
2016 we closed omwo additional loans totalin§4.7 million, repayable over the same ten year term. The interest is
payable at fixed rates ranging from 2.60% to 2.97% for the ifiilyears of the loan term and principal and interest is
paid monthly. The loans provided 100% of the funding for the purchase of a corporate aircraft and subsequent
modifications and upgrades. The balance outstanding on these loadSsimilion and $56.1 million as December 31,
2016and December 32015 respectively.

On January 1014, we extended the term of an existing loan that was scheduled to mature on January 11,
2015 The loan has a term dfyears with a maturity date of January 11, 201&rbkgt is payable at oimeonth LIBOR
plus2.25%and principal and interest is paid quarterly. The loan is securdddBengines. The balance outstanding on
this loan is $1.7 million and $B.1million as of December 32016and December 32015 respetvely.

(5) Derivative Instruments

We periodically hold interest rate derivative instruments to mitigate exposure to changes in interest rates, in
particularonemonth LIBOR with $619.7million and$562.1million of our borrowings at December 3016 and
2015 respectively, at variable rates. As a matter of policy, we do not use derivatives for speculative pDtpivges.
2016, we entered intoneinterest rate swap agreement which has notional outstanding am@1@tG®million, with
remaining terms a2 months. The fair value of the swap at December 31, 201&&&Q00 representing a nasset
for us.We recorded &25,000Q nil and $0.5million) expenselfenefi) to net finance costs during the years ended
Decembe1, 2016, 2015and 204 respectivelyfrom derivative investments

The Company estimates the fair value of derivative instruments using a discounted cash flow technique and has
used creditworthiness inputs that corroborate observable marketdatal uat i ng t he Companyds ani
of nonperformance. Valuation of the derivative instruments requires certain assumptions for underlying variables and
the use of different assumptions would result in a different valuation. Managemewébélieas applied assumptions
consistently during the period. We apply hedge accounting and account for the change in fair value of our cash flow
hedges through other comprehensive income for all derivative instruments.
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Earnings Effects of Derivative Ingruments on the Statements of Income

The following table provides information about the income effects of our cash flow hedging relationships for
the years ended December 2016 2015 and 20%:

Amount of Loss(Gain) Recognizedon
Derivativesin the Statementsof Income

Derivativesin CashFlow Hedging Location of Loss(Gain) Recognizedon Years Ended December31,
Relationships Derivativesin the Statementsof Income 2016 2015 2014

(in thousands)
Interest rate contracts Interest expense $ 25 $ o8 & (499
Total $ 25 $ o0 $ (499

Our derivatives were designated in a cash flow hedging relationship with the effective portion of tleeichang
fair value of the derivative reported in the cash flow hedges subaccount of accumulated other comprehensive income.

Effect of Derivative Instruments on Cash Flow Hedging

The following tables provide additional information about the financial statement effects related to our cash
flow hedges for the years ended Decembe2814 2015 and 204

Amount of Gain (Loss)Recognized Location of Loss(Gain) Amount of Loss(Gain) Reclassified
in OCI on Derivatives Reclassifiedfrom from Accumulated OCI into Income
Derivativesin (Effective Portion) Accumulated OCI into (Effective Portion)
CashFlow Hedging Years Ended December31, Income Years Ended December31,
Relationships 2016 2015 2014 (Effective Portion) 2016 2015 2014
(in thousands) (in thousands)

Interest rate contracts $ 69 $ 0 $ 0 Interest expense $ 25 3 0 $ (499
Total $ 69 $ s} $ o] Total $ 25 % e} $ (499

The effective portion of the change in fair value on a derivative instrument designated as a cash flow hedge is
reported as a component of other comprehensive income and is reclassified into earnings in the period during which the
transaction being hedgedfects earnings or it is probable that the forecasted transaction will not occur. The ineffective
portion of the hedges is recorded in earnings in the current period. However, these are highly effective hedges and
significant ineffectiveness occurredthe periods presented.

Counterparty Credit Risk

The Company evaluates the creditworthiness of the counterparties under its hedging agreements. The swap
counterparty for the interest rate swap in place di2bitwas a large financial institution in the United States that
possessed an investment grade credit rating. Based on this rating, the Company believes that the counterparty was
creditworthy and that their continuing performance under the hedging agreensgmtovable, and did not require the
counterparty to provide collateral or other security to the Company.
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(6) Income Taxes

The components of income before income taxes are as follows

Years endedDecember31,
2016 2015 2014
(in thousands)
U.S. $ 21,634 $ 11,319 $ 10,433
Non U.S. 2,312 1,456 1,307
Income from before income taxes $ 23,946 $ 12,775 $ 11,740

The components of income tax expense for the years ended Decen®@t@2015 and 204, included in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income were as follows:

Federal State Foreign Total
(in thousands)

DecembeBl1, 2016

Current $ 324 % 14 $ 440 $ 778
Deferred 8,807 292 o) 9,099
Total 2016 $ 9,131 $ 306 $ 440 $ 9,877
Decembe31, 2015

Current $ (208 $ 13 % 476 $ 281
Deferred 4,871 1,163 o] 6,034
Total 2015 $ 4663 $ 1,176 $ 476 $ 6,315
DecembeBl, 204

Current $ 109 % 179 % 311 $ 599
Deferred 3,797 164 o) 3,961
Total 2014 $ 3,906 $ 343 $ 311 $ 4,560

The following is a reconciliation of the federal income tax expense at the statutory rate of 34% to the effective
income tax expense:

Years Ended December31,

2016 2015 2014
(in thousandsand % of pre-tax income)
$ % $ % $ %

Statutory federal income tax expense 8,142 34.0 4,343 34.0 3,992 34.0
State tars, net of federal benefit 202 0.8 776 6.1 118 1.0
Foreign tax paid 440 1.8 476 3.7 101 0.9
Tax consguences of the sale of engines to WMES d o} (306 (2.4) (36) (0.3)
Uncertain tax positions (40) (0.1) (195 (1.5 (101 (0.9)
Permanentlifferencesnondeductible executive

compensation 1,201 5.0 1,117 8.7 768 6.5
Permanent differences and other (68) (0.3) 104 0.8 (282 (2.4)
Effective income tax expense 9,877 41.2 6,315 49.4 4,560 38.8

The Company records tax expense or benefit for unusuafrequent items discretely in the period in which
they occur.
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The following table summarizes the activity related

(in thousands)
Balance as of Decembaf., 2014 $ 464
Increases related to current year tax positions 5
Decreases due to tax positions released - (195
Balance as of Decembat, 2015 274
Increases related to current year tax positions 4
Decreases due to tax positions expired (72)
Balance as of Decembai, 2016 $ 206

No reserve was established as of Decembe2B16and December 32015for the exposure in Europe. If the
Company is able to eventually recognize these uncertain tax positions, all of the unrecognized benefit would reduce the
Companybds effective tax rate.

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to signtfipartions of the deferred tax assets and
liabilities are presented below:

As of December31,
2016 2015
(in thousands)

Deferred tax assets:

Unearned lease revenue $ 1839 $ 1,511
State taxes 1,035 944
Reserves and allowances 1,659 898
Other accruals 2,501 1,767
Alternative minimum tax credit 377 377
Net operating loss carry forward 35,693 35,827
Charitable contributions 52 42
Total deferred tax assets 43,156 41,366
Less: valuation allowance (1,280 (1,280
Net deferred tax assets 41,876 40,086
Deferred tax liabilities:

Depreciation and impairment on aircraft engines and equipment (147,827 (137,496
Other deferred tax assets (liabilities) 422 981
Net deferred tax liabilities (147,405 (136,515
Other comprehensive loss deferred tax asset 551 275
Net deferred tax liabilities $ (104978 $ (96,154

As of December 312016 we had net operating loss carry forwards of approxim&®dg.0 million for federal
tax purposes ant4.7 million for state tax purposes. The federal net operating loss carry forwards will expire at various
times from 2023 to 20Band the state net operating loss carry forwards will expire at various time2d23no 2034.
During 2014, a valuation allowance of $1.3 million was established for the net operating losses expiring in California for
the period017to 2024. TheCompay 6 s abi |l ity to utilize the net operatin
future may be subject to restriction in the event of past or future ownership changes as defined in Section 382 of the
Internal Revenue Code and similar state tax law. fA3szember 312016 we also had alternative minimum tax credit
of approximately $0.4 million for federal income tax purposes which has no expiration date and which should be
available to offset future regular tax liabilities. Management believes thatlnation allowance is required on deferred
tax assets related to federal net operating loss carry forwards, as it is more likely than not that all amounts are
recoverable through future taxable income.
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Deferred tax assets relating to tax benefits of eyg@stock option grants have been reduced to reflect
exercises i2016 Some exercises resulted in tax deductions in excess of previously recorded benefits based on the
option value at the time of grant (antveflecteldinaét bpératingtax Al t hou
loss carryforwards, pursuant to ASC 718, in the amoui8dfmillion as of December 32016 the additional tax
benefit associated with the windfall is not recognized until the deduction reduces taxes payableefféet @ix
windfalls included in net operating loss carryforwards but not reflected in deferred tax asg6tsfre$1.0million
and will be recorded to paid capital when recognized.

(7) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amourreported in the consolidated balance sheets for cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash,
operating lease related receivables, and accounts payable approximates fair value because of the immedigeror short
maturity of these financial instruments.

The carrying amount of the Companyé6és out st2@6add ng bal
2015was estimated to have a fair value of approxima#864.0million and$890.1million, respectively, based on the
fair value of estimated futureagments calculated using the prevailing interest rates at each year end.

(8) Risk Managementd Risk Concentrations and Interest Rate Risk

Risk Concentrations

Financial instruments which potentially subject us to concentrations of credit risk consigigily of cash
deposits, lease receivables and interest rate swaps.

We place our cash deposits with financial institutions and other creditworthy institutions such as money market
funds and limit the amount of credit exposure to any one party. Weroggdarity of principal as opposed to yield.
Concentrations of credit risk with respect to lease receivables are limited due to the large number of customers
comprising our customer base, and their dispersion across different geographic areas. Soraedesse@®ed to make
payments for maintenance reserves at the end of the lease however, our risk is considered limited due to the relatively
few lessees which have this provision in the lease. We enter into interest rate swap agreements with cauttiatpartie
are investment grade financial institutions.

Interest Rate Risk Management

To mitigate exposure to interest rate changes, we periodically enter into interest rate swap agrkefents.
December 31, 2016, one swap agreement had a notional ourtgtangbunt of6100.0million, a remaining term a2
months.In 2016 2015and 204, $25,000Q nil, and($0.5million) was realized through the income statement as an
increase (decrease) in interest expense, respectively.
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(9) Commitments, ContingenciesGuarantees and Indemnities

The following table lists our properties and their remaining lease commitments:

Lease Remaining Lease
Location Property Type Expiration Commitment
(in thousands)
Novato, California Principal Office 09/30/18 $ 932
Boynton Beach, Florida Warehouse and office 10/29/19 822
San Diego, California Warehouse and office 10/31/19 481
Bridgend, WalesUnited Kingdom Warehouse and office 10/31/17 368
Singapore Office 12/31/17 102
Shanghai, China Office 12/31/17 86
Shanghai, China Warehouse 07/31/17 4
Dublin, Ireland Office 05/15/17 12
London, United Kingdom Office 11/18/18 116
Blagnac, France Office 12/31/17 16
Total $ 2,939

(10) Equity

Common Stock Repurchase

On September 27, 2012, the Company announced that its Board of Directors has authorized a plan to repurchase
up t0o$100.0million of its common stock over the nexyyears. The Board of Directors reaffirmed the repurchase plan
on April 21, 2016. This plan extends the previous plan authorized on December 8, 2009, and increases the value of the
total number of shares authorizfr repurchase up to $100.0 million. During 2016, the Company repurch@3e§230
shares of common stock for approximately $29.0 million under this program, at a weighted averageb@Bad per
share. The repurchased shares were subsequentygretir

Redeemable Preferred Stock

On October 11, 2016, the Company entered into a Stock Purchase Agreement with Development Bank of Japan
Inc., relating to the sale and issuance of an aggregdt®€@®,006s har es of 6.6%SeresAHredenedd s
Stock,$0.0lpar val ue per share (the A RB2080per shareTtie pBrthase &ndJaleaft a p
the Preferred Stock closed on October 14, 201ite net proceeds to the Company after deducting investor fees were
$19.8million.

The Preferred Stock carries a quarterly dividend at the rate per annum of 6.5% per share, with a $20.00
liquidation preference per share.

The rights and privileges of the Preferred Stock are described below:
Voting Rights

Holders of the Preferred Stock dot have general voting rights.
Dividends

The Preferred Stock carries a quarterly dividend at the rate per antuswber share. As of December 31,
2016,nodividends have been declaredpaid

Liguidation Preference
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The holders of the Preferred Stock have preference in the event of any voluntary or involuntary liquidation,
dissolution, or windingup of the corporation, including a merger or consolidation. Upon such liquidation event, the
preferred stockholders are gied to be paid out of the assets of the Company available for distribution to its

stockholders after payment of all the Companyés indebte

made to the holders of common stock or any other classri@s of stock ranking on liquidation junior to the Preferred
Stock an amount equal to the greate$2®.00per share, plus any declared but unpaid dividends.

Redemption

The preferred stock has no stated maturity date, however the holders of the Preferred Stock have the option to
require the Company to redeem all or any portion of the Preferred Stock for cash upon occurrence of any significant
changes in operating resultsynership structure, or liqudity events as defined in the Preferred Stock purchase
agreements. The redemption pric&29 per share plus dividends accrued but not paid. The Company is accreting the
Preferred Stock to redemption value over the periochfthe date of issuance to October 2023, such that the carrying
amounts of the securities will equal the redemption amounts at the earliest redemption date.

(11) Stock-Based Compensation Plans

The components of stock compensation expense for the geded December 32016 2015 and 204,
included in the accompanying consolidated statements of income were as follows:

2016 2015 2014
(in thousands)
2007 Stock Incentive Plan $ 3681 $ 4102 $ 3,459
Employee Stock Purchase Plan 36 48 50
Total Stock Compensation Expense $ 3717 $ 4150 $ 3,509

The significant stock compensation plans are described below.

Our 2007 Stock Incentive Plan (the 2007 Plan) was adopted on May 24, 2007. Under this 2007 Plan, a total of
2,000,000shares are authorized for stock based compensation available in the form of either restricted stock or stock
options. On May 28, 2015, the Companyds sharehol ders
Stock available for grant l800,0® shares bringing the total £y§800,000shares authorized2,400,357%hares of
restricted stock were granted under the 2007 Stock Incentive Plan by December 31, 2016. Of this 8/ @4ét,
shares of restricted stock were cancelled and returned todhefpshares which could be granted under the 2007 Stock
Incentive Plan resulting in a net numbebéb,388shares which were available as of December 31, 2016 for future
issuance under the 2007 Incentive Plan. The fair value of the restricted stodk agaaled the stock price at the date of
grants.
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The following table summarizes restricted stock activity during the years ended De&dmber

Shares
Restricted stock at Decemhb#t, 2013 515,130
Granted in 2014 (vesting ov8iyears) 174,500
Granted in 2014 (vesting over 4 years) 13,000
Granted in 2014 (vesting on first anniversary from date of issuance) 50,208
Cancelled in 2014 (5,750
Vested in 2014 (221,732
Restricted stock at Decemb&t, 2014 525,356
Granted in 2015 (vesting ov8iyears) 125,000
Granted in 2015 (vesting ovéiyears) 5,000
Granted in 2015 (vesting on first anniversary from date of issuance) 16,440
Cancelled in 2015 o}
Vested in 2015 (275,201
Restricted stock at Decemb&t, 2015 396,595
Granted in 2016 (vesting over 2 years) 20,000
Granted in 2016 (vesting ov8lyears) 85,000
Granted in 2016 (vesting ovéiyears) 13,250
Granted in 201@vesting on first anniversary from date of issuance) 18,395
Cancelled in 2016 (20,377
Vested in 2016 (213,528
Restricted stock at Decemhigt, 2016 299,335

Our accounting policy is to recognize the associated expense of such awards on dierdighis over the
vesting period. At December 32016the stock compensation expense related to the restricted stock awards that will be
recognized over the avemgemaining vesting period @f5 years total$3.8 million. At December 312016 the
intrinsic value of unvested restricted stock awardig million. The Plan terminates on M&¢, 2017.

A summary of activity under the 2007 Plan for the years ended Decem!2&1%12015 and 204 is as
follows:

Weighted Average AggregateGrant
Number Outstanding Grant Date Fair Value Date Fair Value
Balance as of Decembagi, 2013 515,130 $ 13.71 $ 7,060,474
Shares granted 237,708 19.84 4,710,362
Shares cancelled (5,750 14.02 (80,630
Shares vested (221,732 13.24 (2,903,59E
Balance as of Decemb@t, 2014 525,356 $ 13.71 $ 8,786,611
Shares granted 146,440 18.53 2,713,15¢
Shares cancelled o} o} o}
Shares vested (275,201 15.87 (4,368,57C
Balance as of Decemb@t, 2015 396,595 $ 17.98 $ 7,131,20C
Shares granted 136,645 21.55 2,944,941
Shares cancelled (20,377 17.79 (362,536
Shares vested (213,528 17.12 (3,655,268
Balance as of Decemb@gi, 2016 299,335 $ 20.24 $ 6,058,33€

Employee Stock Purchase Plabnder our Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP), as amended and restated
effective May20, 2010250,000shares of common stock have been reserved for issuance. The Purchase Plan was
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effective in September996. Eligible employees majesignate not more thd®% of their cash compensation to be

deducted each pay period for the purchase of common stock under the Purchase Plan. Participanthasaynot

more tharil,000shares 06250000f common stock in any one calendar year. Each Ja®laaynd JulyB1 shares of

common stock are purchased with the employeesdé payroll
price per share @d5%of the lesser of the market pricetbe common stock on the purchase date or the market price of

the common stock on the date of entry into an offering peric2016and2015 11,014and10,374shares of common

stock, respectively, were issued under the Purchase Plan. We issue nevthsbiagbsour transfer agent upon employee
stock purchase. The weighted average per share fair val
the rights granted we®6.35, $6.17and$3.19for 2016 2015and 204, respectively.

1996 Stok Option/Stock Issuance Plawe granted stock options under our 1996 Stock Option/Stock Issuance Plan (the
1996 Plan), as amended and restated as of Mar2003, until the plan terminated in JR@06. Under this Plan, a total

of 3,025,000shares wereuwhorized for grant. These options have a contractual tetengkars and vest at a rate of
25%annually commencing on the first anniversary of the date of grant. For shares outstanding with graded vesting, our
accounting policy is to value the optiorscmeaward and recognize the associated expense on a stiagh#sis over

the vesting period. We issue new shares through our transfer agent upon stock option exercise. In the year ended
December 312014, 26,437 options were exercised with a tatadinsic value at exercise date of approximagkéy2

million. In the year ended December 2015, 49,000 options were exercised with a total intrinsic value at exercise date

of approximately$0.3million. As of December 312016 there areno options remining under the 1996 Plan.

(12) Employee 401(k)Plan

We adopted The Willis 401(IBlan (the 401(kPlan) effective as of Januat®97. The 401(kPlan provides for
deferred compensation as described in Seddr{k) of the Internal Revenue Code. The 40lgn is a contributory
plan available to all our flittime and partime employees in the United States2016 employees who participated in
the 401(k)Plan could elect to defer and contribute to the 40R{&h up ta20% of pretax salary or wages up%a8,000
(or $24,000for employees at leaS0D years of age). We match0% of employee contributions up 8% of the
empl oyeeo6s s als@imilionnd4 noillion and$0.anbillrdfor the years ended December, 2016
2015 and 204, respectively.

(13) Quarterly Consolidated Financial Information (Unaudited)

The following is a summary of the unaudited quarterly results of operations for the years ended December 31,
2016, 2015, and 2014 (in thousands, except per share data).

Fiscal 2016 (1) 1stQuarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter Full Year

Total revenue $ 50,719 $ 49,618 $ 51,461 $ 55,476 $ 207,274
Net income attributable to common shareholders 4,011 3,366 3,985 2,418 13,780
Basic earnings per common share 0.57 0.50 0.63 0.40 2.10
Diluted earnings per common share 0.55 0.49 0.62 0.39 2.05
Average common shares outstanding 7,149 6,685 6,307 6,149 6,570
Diluted average common shares outstanding 7,272 6,819 6,448 6,275 6,714
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Fiscal 2015 (1) 1stQuarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter Full Year

Total revenue $ 41,336 $ 43,810 $ 57,730 $ 55,186 $ 198,062
Net income (loss) attributable to common shareholde 1,358 (486 2,551 3,037 6,460
Basic earnings (loss) per common share 0.17 (0.06! 0.33 0.39 0.83
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share 0.17 (0.06 0.32 0.38 0.81
Average common shares outstanding 7,848 7,841 7,839 7,739 7,817
Diluted average common shares outstanding 8,044 7,841 7,963 7,872 7,987
Fiscal 2014 (1) 1stQuarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter Full Year

Total revenue $ 43,340 $ 43,994 $ 45,519 $ 41,205 $ 174,058
Net income (loss) attributable to common shareholde 4,352 2,319 1,000 (491 7,180
Basic earnings (loss) per common share 0.55 0.29 0.13 (0.06 0.91
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share 0.54 0.28 0.12 (0.06 0.88
Average common shares outstanding 7,914 7,976 7,938 7,839 7,917
Diluted average common shares outstanding 8,129 8,179 8,123 8,037 8,141

(1) Certin amounts include adjustments to prior periods see "Note
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (c) Correction of
Immaterial Errors Consolidated Financial Statements" for furth
disclosure.

(14) Related Party Transactions

Stock Buyback

On April 1, 2016, in a transaction approved by a Special Committee of the Board of Directors, the Company
purchase®0,000s har es of iits common stock directly frWwihs. t he Com
The purchase price w21.59per share, the closing price of the Compan)

On December 8, 2016, in a transaction approved by a Special Committee of the Board of Directors, the
Company purchasetD,000sharesb it s common stock directly from the Comg
F. Willis. The purchase price w&24.95per share, 2% di scount to the closing price of
as of December 8, 2016 $25.46

WMES
Ot her revenueodo on the Consolidated St a®.emleomt of | nc
$1.7million and$2.0 million during the years ended December 2116 2015and 204, respectively, related to the

servicing of engines for the WMES8dse portfolioDur i ng 2016, the Company sold four
3. I nvestmentsodo for further disclosure.
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(15) Operating Segments

The Company operates two business segments: (igasing and Related Operations which involves acquiring
and leasing, primarily pursuant to operating leases, commercial aircraft, aircraft engines and other aircraft equipment and
the selective purchase and resale of commerciabétiengines and other aircraft equipment andSiiare Parts Sales
which involves the purchase and resale of aftarket engine and airframe parts, whole engines, engine modules and
portable aircraft components and leasing of engines destined forediddgsand sale of parts.

The Company evaluates the performance of each of the segments based on profit or loss after general and
administrative expenses and intemmpany allocation of interest expense. While the Company believes there are
synergies betwen the two business segments, the segments are managed separately because each requires different
business strategies.

The following tables present a summary of the operating segments (amounts in thousands):

Leasingand
For the year ended DecembeB1, 2016 Related Operations SpareParts Sale: Eliminations (1) Total
Revenue:
Lease rent revenue $ 119,895 $ o % 0 $ 119,895
Maintenance reserve revenue 57,091 o] o] 57,091
Spare parts anelquipment sales 3,335 14,448 o] 17,783
Gain on sale of leased equipment 3,482 o] o] 3,482
Other revenue 8,711 1,947 (1,635 9,023
Total revenue 192,514 16,395 (1,635 207,274
Expenses:
Depreciation and amortization expense 65,939 341 o] 66,280
Cost of spare parts and equipment sales 2,394 10,899 o) 13,293
General and administrative 44,703 3,077 o] 47,780
Net finance costs 40,813 468 o] 41,281
Other expense 16,507 o] o] 16,507
Total expenses 170,356 14,785 o) 185,141
Earnings from operations $ 22,158 $ 1,610 $ (1635 $ 22,133

Leasingand
For the year ended DecembeB1, 2015 RelatedOperations SpareParts Sales  Eliminations (1) Total
Revenue:
Lease rent revenue $ 108,046 $ o $ d $ 108,046
Maintenance reserve revenue 53,396 o) o] 53,396
Spare parts and equipment sales 9,975 15,607 o] 25,582
Gain on sale of leased equipment 8,320 o) o] 8,320
Other revenue 2,517 659 (458 2,718
Total revenue 182,254 16,266 (458 198,062
Expenses:
Depreciation and amortization expense 69,135 289 o] 69,424
Cost of spare parts and equipment sales 5,734 12,115 o] 17,849
General and administrative 39,974 2,770 o] 42,744
Net finance costs 37,474 387 o] 37,861
Other expense 18,584 o] o] 18,584
Total expenses 170,901 15,561 o) 186,462
Earnings (loss) from operations $ 11,353 $ 705 $ (458 $ 11,600
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Leasingand

For the year ended DecembeB1, 2014 RelatedOperations SpareParts Sale: Eliminations (1) Total
Revenue:

Lease rent revenue $ 101,431 $ o $ o $ 101,431
Maintenance reserve revenue 53,322 o} o} 53,322
Spare parts anglquipment sales o} 8,917 o} 8,917
Gain on sale of leased equipment 5,882 o} o} 5,882
Other revenue 3,581 1,661 (736, 4,506
Total revenue 164,216 10,578 (736, 174,058
Expenses:

Depreciation and amortization expense 65,025 289 0 65,314
Cost of spare parts and equipment sales o} 7,474 o} 7,474
General and administrative 33,211 2,648 0 35,859
Interest expense 36,779 283 o} 37,062
Other expense 17,830 108 0 17,938
Total expenses 152,845 10,802 fo) 163,647
Earnings from operations $ 11,371 $ (224, $ (736, $ 10411
(1) Represents revenue generated between our operating segr

Total assets as of Deceml&dr, 2016 $ 1,307,46C $ 30,427 $ o $1,337,887
Total assets as of Decemi&dr, 2015 $ 1,267,414 $ 26,871 $ 0 $1,294,28E
Total assets as of Decemidr, 2014 $ 1,226,701 $ 19,140 $ 0 $1,245,841
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WILLIS LEASE FINANCE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

SCHEDULE | 8 CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS
Parent Company Information
(In thousands, except share data)

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Equipment held for operating lease, less accumulated depreciation
Equipment held for sale

Maintenance Rights

Operating lease related receivable, net of allowances

Spare parts inventory

Due from affiliate

Investments

Investment in subsidiaries

Property, equipmer& furnishings, less accumulated depreciation
Intangible assets, net

Other assets, net

Total assets

LI ABILITIES, REDEEMABLE PREFERRED ST
EQUITY

Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Deferred income taxes

Notes payable

Maintenance reserves

Security deposits

Unearned lease revenue

Total liabilities

Redeemable preferred sto@0.01par value1,000,000shares authorized; 000,000
andnil sharegssuedandoutstandingat DecembeB1, 2016 and 2015, respectively)

Sharehol dersé equity:

Common stock%0.01par value20,000,00Ghares authorized3,401,92%nd
7,548,395haresssuedandoutstandingat DecembeBl, 2016 and 2015, respectivel
Paidin capital in excess of par

Retained earnings

Accumulated othecomprehensive loss, net of income tax benefit

Tot al sharehol dersé equity

Total liabilities, redeemable preferred stock and equity
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December31, December31,
2016 2015
$ 4574 % 2,894
811,091 753,024
22,446 10,938
16,468 22,680
7,853 4,170
17,554 16,420
24,723 20,286
45,406 41,295
(2,879 (1,280
16,096 19,964
1,021 271
12,289 8,118
$ 976,642 $ 898,780
$ 13428 $ 17,659
43,265 37,358
626,876 572,759
54,655 38,072
18,555 20,612
3,843 3,090
760,622 689,550
19,760 o}
64 75
2,512 28,727
194,729 180,949
(1,045 (521
196,260 209,230
$ 976,642 $ 898,780




WILLIS LEASE FINANCE CORPORATION
AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE | 8 CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Parent Company Information
(In thousands)

Years Ended December31,

2016 2015 2014
REVENUE
Lease rent revenue $ 76,283 $ 63,443 $ 50,492
Maintenance reserve revenue 30,742 29,937 22,229
Spare parts and equipment sales 8,404 20,210 7,588
Gain on sale of leasestjuipment 3,322 2,420 2,276
Other revenue 10,660 7,017 5,227
Total revenue 129,411 123,027 87,812
EXPENSES
Depreciation expense 43,451 40,623 29,276
Cost of spare parts and equipment sales 6,591 13,559 6,354
Write-down of equipment 5,989 6,764 4,681
General and administrative 39,201 35,898 29,479
Technical expense 4,637 6,805 4,455
Interest expense 23,358 18,448 13,500
Total expenses 123,227 122,097 87,745
Earnings from operations 6,184 930 67
Earnings from joint ventures 1,813 1,175 1,329
Income before income taxes 7,997 2,105 1,396
Income tax expense 4,710 2,277 1,346
Equity in income of subsidiaries, net of tax$&,168 $4,037 and$3,214at
DecembeB3l, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively 10,782 6,632 7,130
Net income $ 14069 $ 6,460 $ 7,180
Preferred stock dividends 281 o} o}
Accretion of preferred stock issuance costs 8 o} o}
Net income attributable to common shareholders $ 13,780 $ 6,460 $ 7,180
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WILLIS LEASE FINANCE CORPORATION
AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE | 8 CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Parent Company Information
(In thousands)

Years Ended December31,
2016 2015 2014

Net income $ 14,069 $ 6,460 $ 7,180
Other comprehensiviacome:

Currency translation adjustment (868 (796 o}

Unrealized losses on derivative instruments 69 o} o}

Reclassification adjustment for losses (gains) included in net income 0 0 (499

Net gain (lossyecognized in other comprehensive income (799 (796 (499

Tax benefit (expense) related to items of other comprehensive income (lo: 275 275 174

Other comprehensive income from parent (524, (521 (325
Total comprehensive income $ 13545 $ 5939 $ 6,855

83



WILLIS LEASE FINANCE CORPORATION
AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE | 8 CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Parent Company Information
(In thousands)

Years Ended December31,

2016 2015 2014
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 14,069 $ 6,460 $ 7,180
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Equity in income of subsidiaries (10,782 (6,632 (7,130
Depreciation expense 43,451 40,623 29,276
Write-down of equipment 5,989 6,764 4,681
Stockbased compensation expenses 3,717 4,150 3,509
Amortization of deferred costs 2,704 2,646 2,391
Amortization of interest rate derivative cost o) o) (499,
Allowances and provisions Q) a7 34
Gain on sale of leased equipment (3,322, (2,420 (2,276
Income from joint ventures (1,813 (1,175 (1,329
Loss on extinguishment of debt 137 o] o]
Deferred income taxes 4,710 1,806 1,478
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Receivables (4,884 (865, (1,204
Spare parts inventory (1,608, 4,547 (5,533
Intangibles (750) 6] 6]
Other assets (2,648, (2,420 (942
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 3,723 4,471 2,425
Due to / from subsidiaries (4,437, (1,242 (17,651
Maintenance reserves 16,583 5,227 17,563
Security deposits (2,283 5,354 2,303
Unearned lease revenue 878 817 1,048
Net cash provided by operating activities 63,433 68,094 35,324
Cash flows from investing activities:
Increase in investment in subsidiaries (2,329, (23,923 (9,666
Distributions received from subsidiaries 15,500 3,791 17,582
Proceeds from sale of equipment held for operating lease (net of selling expenses) 60,893 18,792 21,360
Capital contribution tgoint venture (5,545, (630; (17,623
Distributions received from joint venture 1,167 1,304 847
Maintenance rights payments received o] 5,802 o]
Purchase of equipment held for operating lease (167,874 (161,888 (101,710
Purchase of maintenance rights (5,530, (8,844 (3,296
Purchase of property, equipment and furnishings (443) (3,736 (13,767
Net cash used in investing activities (104,161 (169,332 (106,273
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of notes payable 149,000 192,700 154,395
Debt issuance cost (3,808 (13) (5,074
Proceeds from shares issued under stock compensation plans 155 518 410
Cancellation of restricted stock units in satisfaction of withholding tax (2,369 (1,558 (1,544
Security deposit 455 (1,606 4,553
Repurchase of common stock (28,958 (16,500 (5,352
Excess tax benefit from stoddlased compensation 236 26 311
Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock 19,752 6] 6]
Principal payments on notes payable (93,055 (71,846 (75,859
Net cash provided by financing activities 42,408 101,721 71,840
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,680 483 891
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 2,894 2,411 1,520
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 4574  $ 2894 % 2,411
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Net cash paid for:
Interest $ 20,619 $ 16,462 $ 11,110
Income Taxes $ 20 % 7B 76

Supplemental disclosures of roash investing and financing activities:

During the years ended DecemBdr, 2016, 2015, 2014, engines and equipment tot&22§ $41,410and
$120,880Q respectively, were transferred to the parent from its subsidiaries.

During the years ended DecemBar, 2016, 2015, 2014, engines and equipment tot8it) 194 $21,786and
$3,071 respectively, were transferred from Held for Operatiegse to Held for Sale.

During the years ended DecemBdr, 2016, 2015 and 2014, engines and equipment totalirs,061and
$9,649 respectively, were transferred from Held for Sale to Spare Parts Inventory.

During the years ended DecemBdr 2016, an aircraft &2,925was transferred from Property, equipment an
furnishings to Assets Held for Lease.

As of DecembeB1, 2016, accrued preferred stock dividends \$2&L

During the year ended Deceml®dr, 2016, the accretion of preferred stock issuance cost$8vas

84



WILLIS LEASE FINANCE CORPORATION
AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE Il 8 VALUATION ACCOUNTS

(In thousands)

Additions
Balanceat Charged Net
Beginning (Credited) (Deductions  Balanceat
of Period to Expense Recoveries End of Period

DecembeBl, 2014

Accounts receivable, allowance for doubtful accounts 296 (26) (55) 215
DecembeBl, 2015
Accountsreceivable, allowance for doubtful accounts 215 697 o} 912
DecembeBl1, 2016
Accounts receivable, allowance for doubtful accounts 912 (125 o} 787

Deductions in allowance for doubtful accounts represent uncolleetiblaunts written off, net of recoveries.
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Exhibit 11.1

WILLIS LEASE FINANCE CORPORATION
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Computation of Earnings Per Share
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Years Ended December31,
2016 2015 2014
Basic
Earnings:
Net income attributable to common shareholders $13,78! $6,46( $7,18(
Shares:

Average common shares outstanding 6,57( 7,81 7,917
Basic earnings per common share $2.1( $0.8: $0.91
Assuming full dilution

Earnings:
Net income attributable to common shareholders $13,78I $6,46( $7,18(
Shares:

Average common shares outstanding 6,57( 7,817 7,915

Potentially dilutive common shares outstanding 144 17C 224

Diluted average common shares outstanding 6,71« 7,98 8,141
Diluted earnings per common share $2.0¢ $0.81 $0.8¢

Supplemental information:
The difference between average common shares outstanding to calculate bas&uaridg full dilution is due

to options outstanding under the 1996 Stock Option/Stock Issuance Plan and restricted stock issued under the 2007 Stock
Incentive Plan.
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Exhibit 12.1

WILLIS LEASE FINANCE CORPORATION
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Statement ofComputation of Ratios of
Earnings to Fixed Charges and Preferred Dividends
(In thousands, except ratios)

Years Ended December31,
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

Earnings:

Earnings from continuingperations before income

taxes $22,13:  $11,60(  $10,41: $7,77¢ $937

Fixed charges 41,58 39,39 37,41¢ 38,99( 32,00¢

Cash distributions from equity method investmen 1,16 1,30¢4 847 0 80z
Total earnings $64,88°  $52,29¢  $48,70:  $46,76:  $33,74"
Fixed charges:

Interest expense $41,14.  $39,01: $37,06:  $38,71¢  $31,74¢

Estimated interest expense within rental expense 445 38:¢ 354 271 25¢
Total fixed charges $41,58  $39,39!  $37,41t  $38,99(  $32,00¢

Preferred stock dividend (2) 281 fo) fo) o} 4,37¢

Total fixed charges and preferred stock dividends $41,86¢  $39,39!  $37,41t  $38,99(  $36,38:

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges 1.5¢ 1.3t 1.3C 1.2C 1.0t

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges and preferred stc
dividends 1.5¢ 1.3 1.3(C 1.2C 0.9

(1) Represents an estimate of the interest within rental expense. There is no expressed interest expense within rental
expense. Rather, the imputiederest expense within rental expense is calculated by multiplying by 30% the office
rent expense for each of the years ended, as indicated above.

(2) Represents prax earnings required to pay preferred stock dividends.
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Exhibit 21.1

WILLIS LEASE FINANCE CORPORATION
AND SUBSIDIARIES
List of Subsidiaries

Subsidiary Stateor Jurisdiction of Incorporation
WEST Engine Funding LLC Delaware

WEST Engine Funding (Ireland) Limited Rep. of Ireland

Willis Lease (Ireland) Limited Rep. oflreland

WLFC (Ireland) Limited Rep. of Ireland

WLFC Funding (Ireland) Limited Rep. of Ireland

Willis Aviation Finance Limited Rep. of Ireland

Willis Lease France France

Willis Lease (China) Limited Peopl eds Republic of Chine
Willis Engine Securitization Trust Il Delaware

WEST Engine Acquisition LLC Delaware

Facility Engine Acquisition LLC Delaware

Willis Engine Securitization (Ireland) Limited Rep. of Ireland

Willis Aeronautical Servicesnc. Delaware

Willis Lease Singapore Pte. Ltd. Singapore

Willis Asset Management Limited United Kingdom
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Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors
Willis Lease Finance Corporation:

We consento the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements (NA.5333, 33348258, 333
63830, 333109140, 333118127, 333142914, 333L70049) on Form -8 of Willis Lease Finance Corporation of our
reports dated March 15, 2016, with respect tocthesolidated balance sheets of Willis Lease Finance Corporation and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive
income, redeemabl e preferred st docdachafrthd yeardimtheghagear der s 6 e q
period ended December 31, 2016, and related financial statement schedules | and Il, and the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2016, which reports appears in the Deder2b&6 Zinnual report
on Form 16K of Willis Lease Finance Corporation.

/s/ KPMG LLP
San Francisco, California
March 15, 2017
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Charles F. Willis IV, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this report on FolixK of Willis Lease Finance Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under whictesuehtstaere made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condjtresults of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for,
the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrantds other certifying officer and | are
procedures (as deféd in Exchange Act Ruld8a15(e)and 15d15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Ruld8a15(f) and 15d15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused sugdutdéscbntrols and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
periodin which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantos di
repat our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d Disclosed in this report any c¢hangmpoitingthatbceurrede gi st r
during the registrantdéds most recent fiscal quarter
annual report) that has materially affected, or is
internal contrbover financial reporting; and

r

5. The registrantés other ¢ y
t

over financi al reporting,
performing the equivalent functions):

of ficer and | have
st

ertifying
o the regi ofaire¢todsqor @ersahs t or s

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financi al reporting which are r ea ditntaredord, | i kel y
process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrantés internal <co

Date: March 15, 2017 /s/ Charles F. Willis]V
Charles F. Willis)V
Chief Executive Officer
Chairman of the Board
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Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Scott B. Flaherty, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this report on Fol+K of Willis LeaseFinance Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements wete mad
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, resultgesbitions and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for,
the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrantdéds other certifying officer and | ar e
procedures (as defined in Exchamget Rules13al15(e)and 15d15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Ruld8a15(f) and 15d15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosureac@hprasedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which thigeport is being prepared,;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporing and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantds di
report our conclusins about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d Disclosed in this report any change i n toocerred egi str
during the registrantoés most recent fiscal quarter
annual report) that has materially affected, or is
internal control over financiaeporting; and

5. The registrantés other certifying officer and | have
over financi al reporting, to the registrant 6 orpargodsi t or s

performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financi al reporting which are reasonablg I ikely
process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrantdéds internal co

Date: March 15,2017 /sl Scott B. Flaherty
Scott B. Flaherty
Chief Financial Officer
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CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANESOXLEY ACT OF 2002

Each of the undersigned hereby certifies, in hisesrcapacity as an officer of Willis Lease Finance Corporation (the
AiCompanyo), for pur plds asadapted plr8uantto Scldsb. of tie Sarliane®xley Act of
2002, that to his or her knowledge:

1 the Annual Report of the Compaog Form10-K for the year ended Decemlit, 2016 fully
complies with the requirements of Sectibd(a)or 15(d)of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934;
and

1 the information contained in such report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operation of the Company.

Date: March 15, 2017
/sl Charles F. WillislV

Charles F. Willis]V
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

/sl Scott B. Flaherty
Scott B. Flaherty
ChiefFinancial Officer
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